
Innovations Academy Board Agenda: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 
Meeting location(s) 
Innovations Academy 
5454 Ruffin Rd 
San Diego, CA 92123 

636 Hillsborough St, Oakland, 
CA 94606 

Public call in number  
425-436-6381* 

Access code 1637013
*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in
number is provided as a convenience to the public.

Board Attendance 

Others in Attendance 

Agenda 
Topic Minutes 

➢ Call to order / roll call Time / Date  
Board in Attendance: 

1.  
Other Present: 

1. 

CLOSED SESSION 
● The closed session will address:

employment changes for the 25-26 school year
● Director succession discussion

The Brown Act allows for closed sessions to consider 
the appointment, employment, evaluation of 
performance, discipline, or dismissal of a public 
employee. 

Report on Closed Session 

➢ Approval of current agenda Vote to approve current agenda - 
1st motion -  
2nd motion-  
Vote:  

➢ Approval of prior month meeting minutes Vote to approve past minutes - 
1st motion-  
2nd motion-  
Vote:  

➢ Public comments (3 mins per person)

Presentation and Action Item: Cariina 
Presentation (Michael Bolles) and vote on a 

Vote: 

https://www.google.com/search?safe=active&rlz=1C1RXQR_enUS1126US1127&cs=0&sca_esv=601b0517c7361365&q=the+appointment&sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwi08u3WkIuNAxWHQzABHcpJM2oQxccNegQIBhAB&mstk=AUtExfBxd1LQwXz1O2dfEWcXDiWpWA_r_hG-ZZNMvej_l-yWzX0haHiNmcf5pHw1CXQNkR6RzHa5jJ9cBMhhpyNpLgnchkLBgBZiU9OXIxLxcH-PO44_m9sujdSC76OIqHrvoCw&csui=3


Innovations Academy Board Agenda: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 
proposed contract with Cariina, an organizational 
management software specifically designed for 
charter schools. 

Action Item: Policies 
Fiscal Policy review and change: Our auditors brought 
to our attention that there are expenses that are over the 
$15,000 limit. Christine is suggesting that in our fiscal 
policy  we distinguish between capital expenses and 
operating expenses and increase the current limits. This 
item is to discuss and vote on changes. 

Vote: 

Action Item: Reading Screener 
On January 1, 2025, Section 53008 was added to 
California Education Code requiring schools to 
implement the use of a reading screener. Section 53008 
requires LEAs to screen students in kindergarten 
through 2nd grade for reading delays, including 
dyslexia. It also requires that on or before June 30, 
2025, LEAs must adopt, at a public meeting, one or 
more screening instruments from the list approved by 
the State Board appointed panel to assess students for 
risk of reading difficulties. This item is to approve the 
selected screener. 

Vote: 

Action Item: Declaration of Need 
As of 1/1/2020, when credentialing laws for charters 
changed, Education Code §47605(l) was amended to 
provide charter schools the ability to request emergency 
permits or waivers from the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing for individuals in the same manner as 
school districts. These documents include Provisional 
Internship Permits, Short-Term Staff Permits, 
Emergency Cross-cultural, Language and Academic 
Development (CLAD) permits, and Variable Term 
Waivers. These documents allow qualified individuals to 
be legally authorized to serve in their teaching 
assignment while they are working towards completing 
the credential requirements for the appropriate teaching 
credential for the educator’s assignment. IA must 
approve the DON prior to 6/20/25 

Vote: 

Proposed New Board Member Introduction 
Tom Marchand as parent on the board 
Kiran Simma as board member 
Tom Keliinoi as board member 

Members Leaving the Board 
Julia Stoer, Teacher Board Member 

Introductions, interview and discussion 

Action Item: 
Vote on proposed new board members 

https://www.linkedin.com/in/tom-marchand-b748b81/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/tom-keliinoi-sd/


Innovations Academy Board Agenda: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 

Discussion Item: LCAP 
Proposed Draft LCAP for public input and review. The 
draft LCAP with a summary will be reported. 

Discussion Item: Charter Renewal 
This summer we will be submitting our new charter. 
This item is to share out the process, invite preliminary 
discussion and discuss a meeting date for review. 
Informational Item: Marketing Report 
 GrowSchools was selected by the board earlier this year 
to run a marketing campaign. Stephen has met with 
them and will present about the progress of this 
campaign. 
Informational Item: Charter News 
Based on the board request made at the last meeting, 
Josh has provided information in the board packet from 
the annual CSDC conference.  

➢ Next board meeting
o Confirm date of next meeting
o Identify agenda items for next

meeting
Meeting adjourned 

The foregoing minutes were approved by the 
Board of Directors of Innovations Academy 
on _________. 

___________________________________ 
Secretary 



Innovations Academy Board Agenda: May 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm 
Please contact Innovations Academy Board @ Board@InnovationsAcademy.org if you require 
special assistance or a listening device to attend the Board Meeting.  Requests must be made 48 
hours in advance. 

1. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in
teleconference meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are
complied with:

● At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate
in the teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of the State of
California;

● All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;

● If the Board of Directors elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all
teleconference
locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda
of the
meeting;

● All locations where a member of the Board of Directors constituting the quorum
participates in a
meeting via teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public and
shall be listed on
the agenda;

● Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall
be provided
with an opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference
location;
and

● The agenda shall indicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted
via
teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.

● The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public, to provide their names as a
condition of attendance at the meeting; however, those wishing to speak may be
required to identify themselves.

mailto:Board@InnovationsAcademy.org


Innovations Academy Board Minutes: 3/11/25 @ 6:00 pm 

Meeting location(s) 

Innovations Academy 

5454 Ruffin Rd 

San Diego, CA 92123 

636 Hillsborough St, Oakland, 

CA 94606 
Public call in number  425-

436-6381*

Access code 1637013
*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in

number is provided as a convenience to the public.

Board Attendance 

Stephen 

Rosen 

Faraz 

Sharafi 

Julia 

Stoer 

Danielle 

Strachman 

(phone) 

Others in Attendance 

Joshua 

Eng 

Christine 

Kuglen 

Jennifer 

Franklin 

Agenda 

Topic Minutes 

Call to order / roll call Time / Date 

Board in Attendance: 

1. Stephen Rosen, Faraz Sharafi, Julia

Stoer, Danielle Strachman

Other Present: 

1. Jennifer Franklin (IA Reading

Specialist) Christine Kuglen (IA

Director), Josh Eng (Business

Manager)

Approval of current agenda Vote to approve current agenda - 

Motion made to approve the current agenda: 

Faraz 

Seconded: Danielle 

Vote: 

Yes: Faraz, Stephen, Danielle, Julia 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Approval of prior month meeting minutes 

○ December 10, 2024

Vote to approve past minutes - 

Motion made by Danielle to approve minutes 

from December 2024 

Seconded by Faraz 

Vote: 

Yes: Stephen, Faraz, Danielle, Julia 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 



 

 

Public comments (3 mins per person) Stephen opened it up for public comments 

 

no public comments were made 

 

Financial Items- Action 

● 2nd Interim Report Approval 

Josh gave the presentation.  

Approval of 2nd interim is on the agenda. This 

is a compliance requirement. The template that 

we use is one that the district requires for 

compliance. Highlights: 

1) Running budget vs Actuals. The 

running budget is the budget we are 

working on and the actuals are for this 

period.  

2) The projected ending fund balance 

which would be the loss for the year 

from our current fund balance. 

Faraz asked a question about the timing of the 

budget and ADA. Josh responded that as long 

as we stay in the same ADA range, there won’t 

be a big change. 

No other questions. 

Danielle made a motion to approve the 2nd 

interim budget 

Seconded by Faraz 

Vote: 

Yes:Danielle, Stephen, Faraz, Julia 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Josh excused himself to leave town to attend a 

charter school conference. He asked for any 

questions about the CSMC 5 year contract 

coming up. No questions were asked. 

Teacher presentation- Jen Franklin on Literacy 

Campaign 

Jennifer, the reading specialist, gave the 

presentation.  

She shared that Christine initiated a literacy 

campaign in January. We decided to build a 

strong culture of literacy. We realized parents 

were a key piece. We knew we have to read 

and we have to read aloud and that students 

need to be engaged with the text that they are 

reading. A 1% change in engagement can 

provide a 6% improvement in their reading 

skills. 

Our steps: 

1) Accelerated Reader: students read 

independently in their own selection 



and then take a quiz online. This helps 

us by providing some accountability 

and gives them points which support 

their reading goals, which the students 

set themselves. 

2) Parents understood that students should

be reading the same text everyday so

they also read the same text at home.

This happens for 15 minutes minimum.

3) This reading happens on paper, not

online or with audio. It is a “books in

hand” program.

Stephen asked about getting an ample supply 

of books. Jen responded that we have ample 

classroom libraries and this has not yet been an 

issue. 

4) We have now commenced the One

Book, One School program. We have

everyone reading the same book(The

World According to Humphrey). We

had a launch event in which a teacher

acted out the hamster and a scene from

the book. All the students were in the

gym. Jen showed three videos of the

assembly. Then she showed data from a

survey.

Faraz commented on the confusing color 

scheme of the chart. Jen shared that google 

forms created the color scheme. 

Jennifer also shared that it was hard to come 

up with a book that everyone K-8 could enjoy. 

This book has been used with a wide span of 

ages, but our middle schoolers have struggled 

with their perception of the book being a “baby 

book.” We have engaged them to read by 

asking them to help younger students. 

Jen asked for questions. 

No questions were asked. Jennifer was 

thanked. 

Board Governance Items: 

● Renew Stephen’s term as discussed at

last meeting

● Set terms for all members

● Set roles for each board member: our

board requires a Treasurer, Secretary

and Board Chair. Per our bylaws, the

Chair can not be secretary or treasurer

Board reviews terms together 

Action: 

Faraz made a motion to extend Stephen 

Rosen’s term from Jan 2025-Jan2028. 

Julia seconded the motion 

Vote: 

Yes: Faraz, Danielle, Julia 

No: 0 



 

● Board Recruitment- Check in on board 

member community outreach for two 

people each 

 

Abstain: Stephen 

 

Stephen shared that Jennifer Williams emailed 

Stephen about her resignation. Christine and 

Stephen spoke and Christine will reach out to 

another parent who had requested to 

participate, previously went through the 

process before Jennifer was chosen. 

 

Review of the roles: 

Stephen: Chair 

Secretary: Julia 

Treasurer: Faraz 

 

Faraz would like to leave so he can support his 

family. Jennifer just resigned and Julia is 

moving at the end of the school year. Stephen 

has two contacts who are interested who will 

be following the steps to explore the 

possibilities of becoming board members. 

Danielle has a list of people that she will 

contact.  

Danielle brought up the possible shorter term 

for the teacher board member. Julia agreed to 

continue to look for a teacher board member. 

● Conflict of Interest Filing: Please submit 

the form 700- Please submit the form 700- it is 

a new system. It is due April 1st but don’t wait. 
● District Site Visit Follow Up 

○ Inventory Cleanup 

○ Expulsion Notice Template 
○ Prop 28 Waiver 

○ Reimbursement YMC Contract and other 

finance items 
○ Independent Study Policy 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

● Review of LCAP (Local Control 

Accountability Plan) Midyear Report (see 

packet)  

 

 

Item – Director Report 

Discussion:  

Conflict of Interest Form: The board was 

reminded that the due date is April 1st. 

District Site Visit Update: 

Inventory- complete 

Expulsion Notice- completed. It is an action 

item later in the meeting 

Reimbursement of YMC Contract: Christine 

asked for a reminder about what this is. Julia 

said that it was about a renewed contract being 

needed between YMC and Innovations 

Academy. 

Independent Study Policy- Christine believes 

ours is updated. Julia reminded all that we 

need to change the wording to take off 

“district” on the policy. 

 

LCAP review: The board was presented the 

LCAP midyear update. The board had no 

concerns with the LCAP update. 

 



 

● Marketing Update: An update on the activities 

and results of our marketing plan with Grow 

Schools. 

The board reviewed the packet information 

from the marketing team. They would like to 

invite the marketing team to answer questions. 

Stephen also said he would reach out to the 

marketing team. Faraz would like to know 

what terms are being used for the SEO. 

Stephen would like to add to monthly 

newsletters (Tierrasanta and Scripps Ranch 

and Poway) Stephen has details for the 

marketing team that he can share and Christine 

will connect them. 

  

Action items:  

● Title IX Reversion to 2020 policy (see 

packet) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

● IEE Policy Update Approval: 
Independent Education Evaluation Policy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

● Expulsion Notice Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Title IX is a federal policy. With political 

change, changes to the gender identity part of 

Title IX were made. Legal advise was to revert 

back to our Title IX policy from 2020. 

Action: approving new Title IX Policy which 

is our 2020 Title IX policy. 

Danielle made a motion to reapprove our 2020 

Title IX policy as current policy.Seconded by 

Stephen seconded the motion. 

Yes: 4 Stephen, Faraz, Danielle, Julia 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

 

An IEE policy is for parents who do not 

approve of the school’s assessment. Prices 

change with price changes in the market.  

Faraz made a motion to approve the IEE 

Policy. 

Stephen seconded the motion 

Yes: 4 Danielle, Faraz, Stephen, Julia 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

 

Faraz recommended adding links to the notice 

Motion to approve the Expulsion Notice with 

the suggestion of adding links to a digital copy. 

Motion made by Faraz to approve the 

Expulsion Notice with a suggestion to add 

links to help parents get forms. 

Seconded by Danielle 

Yes: 4 Danielle, Julia, Faraz, Stephen 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

 

CSMC Contract Renewal 



 

● CSMC Contract Renewal: A proposed 5 

year contract. CSMC manages our back office 

including accounting, budget submission to 

district, county and state, CALPADS reporting, 

Powerschool management (see contract) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

● School Accountability Report Card 
(SARC) is a yearly report that 

provides information about a school's 

performance. SARCs are required for 

all public schools in California, as 

well as some nonpublic schools.  
 

Christine shared that this price is aligned with 

expectations based on history and her 

awareness of what other schools pay. 

Motion to approve the 5 year contract made by 

Stephen 

Seconded by Danielle 

Yes: 4 Julia, Danielle, Stephen, Faraz 

No: 0 

Abstain: 0 

 

 

Stephen asks about ranking for SARC. 

Christine shared that there is no ranking for 

SARC comparing us to other schools. The 

board discussed using the SARC to get the 

word out about our school and educate parents. 

● Next board meeting  

o Confirm date of next meeting May 13th 6pm 

o Identify agenda items for next 

meeting 

A report from the CCSA conference from 

Josh. 

Marketing update 

prospective board members 

LCAP review: summary of LCAP changes by 

ChatGPT 

end of Julia’s term 

 

Meeting adjourned  Stephen adjourned the meeting at 7:32 pm 

 

The foregoing minutes were approved by the 

Board of Directors of Innovations Academy 

on 3/11/2025. 

 

____________________________________ 

       Secretary 



 

Please contact Innovations Academy Board @ Board@InnovationsAcademy.org if you require 

special assistance or a listening device to attend the Board Meeting.  Requests must be made 48 

hours in advance. 

 

1. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in 

teleconference meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are 

complied with: 

● At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate 

in the teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of the State of 

California; 

● All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;  

● If the Board of Directors elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all 

teleconference  

locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda 

of the  

meeting;  

● All locations where a member of the Board of Directors constituting the quorum 

participates in a  

meeting via teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public and 

shall be listed on  

the agenda;  

● Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall 

be provided  

with an opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference 

location;  

and  

● The agenda shall indicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted 

via  

teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.  

● The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public, to provide their names as a 

condition of attendance at the meeting; however, those wishing to speak may be 

required to identify themselves.  

 

 

mailto:Board@InnovationsAcademy.org


Christine Kuglen <christine@innovationsacademy.org>

Innovations - 2024-25 Interim Audit
Marife Jane-Folnsbee <mfolnsbee@csmci.com> Mon, Apr 7, 202
To: "christine@innovationsacademy.org" <christine@innovationsacademy.org>
Cc: Office Manager <officemanager@innovationsacademy.org>

Hi Christine,

I wanted to confirm if there have been any updates to the FPP on Signature Authorities. Breelyn has a follow-up question regarding whether there is a specific dollar amount that requires appr
the principal/board.

Breelyn sent me a separate email requesting approval/authorization for the expenditure selections – see lists of invoices below. Susan has already sent the signed and approved allocation sh
Breelyn might send another follow-up for expenditures over $15,000 we may need to provide a separate documentation showing board of director approval for selected expenditures.

Innovations FPP

203 Signature Authorities

To properly segregate duties within the Charter School, the Treasurer of the Board and the Charter Executive Director or Designee are the only individuals with signatory authority and are res
for authorizing all financial transactions. Expenses greater than $15,000 will require Board of Director approval.

Thanks,

Marife Jane‑Folnsbee

Account Manager

951-694-3050 ext. 210

951-257-7471

mfolnsbee@csmci.com

HELPING THE EDUCATION MOVEMENT SUCCEED ONE SCHOOL AT A TIME
43460 Ridge Park Dr., Ste. 100, Temecula, CA 92590

www.csmci.com

From: Breelynn Saucedo <bsaucedo@whkcpa.com>
Sent: Monday, April 7, 2025 11:05 AM
To: Marife Jane-Folnsbee <mfolnsbee@csmci.com>
Subject: Re: Innovations - 2024-25 Interim Audit

Hello Marife,

Please provide backup under Suralink #53 of approval/authorization for the following expenditure selections:

1/16/2025 V017375--Renaissance $1,993.00

1/21/2025 V000071--NCS Pearson Inc $181.24

2/13/2025 V015821--Donald Armitage $205.00

8/9/2024 V003798--Amazon Capital Services $1,124.96

1/30/2025 V003249--Free Form Clay, Inc. $927.53

7/2/2024 V016784--KCE Champions LLC $97,586.32

2/6/2025 V016784--KCE Champions LLC $17,017.94

10/8/2024 V000080--San Diego Gas & Electric $21,997.86

12/10/2024 V022623--LegalMatter$16,570.00 

2/11/2025 V013737--Catalina Island Camps $16,972.70

1/9/2025 V022952--ERC Pros LLC $17,264.00

5/10/25, 8:47 AM Innovations Academy Mail - Innovations - 2024-25 Interim Audit

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=ce50c008b2&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1828781749320286844&simpl=msg-f:1828781749320286… 1/10

http://csmci.com/
http://csmci.com/
tel:951-694-3050%20ext.%20210
mailto:mfolnsbee@csmci.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/43460+Ridge+Park+Dr.,+Ste.+100,+Temecula,+CA+92590?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/43460+Ridge+Park+Dr.,+Ste.+100,+Temecula,+CA+92590?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/43460+Ridge+Park+Dr.,+Ste.+100,+Temecula,+CA+92590?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/43460+Ridge+Park+Dr.,+Ste.+100,+Temecula,+CA+92590?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/43460+Ridge+Park+Dr.,+Ste.+100,+Temecula,+CA+92590?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/43460+Ridge+Park+Dr.,+Ste.+100,+Temecula,+CA+92590?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/43460+Ridge+Park+Dr.,+Ste.+100,+Temecula,+CA+92590?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/43460+Ridge+Park+Dr.,+Ste.+100,+Temecula,+CA+92590?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/43460+Ridge+Park+Dr.,+Ste.+100,+Temecula,+CA+92590?entry=gmail&source=g
http://csmci.com/
https://www.facebook.com/csmcbackoffice/
https://www.facebook.com/csmcbackoffice/
https://www.instagram.com/csmcinc
https://www.instagram.com/csmcinc
https://www.twitter.com/csmcschools
https://www.twitter.com/csmcschools
https://www.linkedin.com/company/charter-school-management-corporation-inc.
https://www.linkedin.com/company/charter-school-management-corporation-inc.
mailto:bsaucedo@whkcpa.com
mailto:mfolnsbee@csmci.com


1 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY 

FISCAL AND OPERATING 
POLICIES 

Approved February 28, 2023 



2 

100 INTERNAL CONTROL POLICIES 

101 Introduction 
Internal control policies provide the Charter School with the foundation to properly safeguard its assets, 
implement management’s internal policies, provide compliance with state and federal laws and 
regulations and produce timely and accurate financial information. Additionally, as a publicly supported 
entity, the Charter School has additional responsibilities to ensure the public’s confidence and the 
integrity of the School’s activities. 

102 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

The Charter School will follow all the relevant laws and regulations that govern The Charter School. 
Additionally, any Federal Government laws and regulations that relate to grant funding will be adopted as 
the grant funding is received. The following are specific policies of the Charter School: 

A. Political Contributions

No funds or assets of the Charter School may be contributed to any political party or organization or to 
any individual who either holds public office or is a candidate for public office. The direct or indirect use 
of any funds or other assets of the Charter School for political contributions in any form, whether in cash 
or other property, services, or the use of facilities, is strictly prohibited. The Charter School also cannot be 
involved with any committee or other organization that raises funds for political purposes. 

Following are examples of prohibited activities 
1. Contributions by an employee that are reimbursed through expense accounts or in other ways.
2. Purchase by the organization of tickets for political fundraising events.
3. Contributions in kind, such as lending employees to political parties or using the School assets in

political campaigns.

B. Record Keeping

To provide an accurate and auditable record of all financial transactions, the School’s books, records, and 
accounts are maintained in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to 
Charter Schools. 

Further, the School specifically requires that: 
1. No funds or accounts may be established or maintained for purposes that are not fully and

accurately described within the books and records of the Charter School.
2. Receipts and disbursements must be fully and accurately described in the books and records.
3. No false entries may be made on the books or records nor any false or misleading reports issued.
4. Payments may be made only to the contracting party and only for the actual services rendered or

products delivered. No false or fictitious invoices may be paid.



 3 

 
200 Organizational Conflict of Interest Or Self-Dealing (Related Parties) 
 
The School will not be operated for the benefit of an affiliated or unaffiliated organization or an 
individual in his or her own private capacity or individuals related to the Charter School or members of its 
management, unless the private benefit is considered merely incidental. This private benefit preclusion 
will extend to: 
 

A. Sale or exchange, or leasing, of property between the agency and an affiliated or unaffiliated 
organization or a private or related individual. 

 
B. Lending of money or other extension of credit between an agency and an affiliated or unaffiliated 

organization or a private or related individual. 
 

C. Furnishing of goods, services or facilities between the agency and an affiliated or unaffiliated 
organization or a private or related individual. 

 
D. Payment of compensation, unless authorized by the Board of Directors or its governing body, by 

the School to an affiliated or unaffiliated organization or a private or related individual. 
 

E. Transfer to, use by, or for the benefit of a private or related individual of the income or assets of 
the School. 

 
Thus, the Charter School will be guided by the principle of arms-length standards with all affiliated or 
unaffiliated organizations or with a private or related individual(s). 
 
Related party transactions shall include transactions between a school and members of the board, 
management, contracted management organization, employees, related individuals and affiliated 
companies. Related individuals within the scope of this definition include spouses, parents, children, 
spouses of children, grandchildren, siblings, father in law, mother in law, sister in law and brother in law 
of a board member or school employee. 
 
202 Board Of Directors Authorities 
The Board of Directors shall have the sole authority to approve and will incorporate into its own minutes 
such matters as (i) change of the School’s name, with SDUSD pre- approval (ii) adoption of the annual 
operating and capital budgets, (iii) selection or termination of the school director (iv) salary and salary 
changes of the school director, (v) incurrence of debt, mortgages or other encumbrances and their 
covenants and restrictions, within the terms of the charter (vi) investment policies, (vii) depository and 
investment banks, (viii) purchase or sale of property and (ix) selection of the Charter School’s certified 
public accountants and (xi) other activities associated with the operations of the Charter School. 
 
The Board of Directors will meet at a minimum quarterly to ensure that its fiduciary duty is maintained. 
The Board will review the following: prior meeting minutes, business items, educational items, and 
subcommittee reports. 
 
203 Signature Authorities 
To properly segregate duties within the Charter School, the Treasurer of the Board and the Charter 
Executive Director or Designee are the only individuals with signatory authority and are responsible for 
authorizing all financial transactions. Expenses greater than $15,000 will require Board of Director 
approval. 
  



 4 

 
204 Government Access to Records 
The Business Manager or contracted business back-office services provider will provide access to the 
organization's records to the SDUSD CFO or designee and provide supporting records, as requested, in a 
timely manner. 
 
205 Security of Financial Data 
 
The system's accounting data must be backed up daily by the business back-office services provider to 
ensure the recoverability of financial information in case of hardware failure. The back-up will be stored 
in a fire safe area and properly secured. 
 
All other financial data, petty cash box, unused checks and unclaimed checks will be secured by the 
Business Manager, Executive Director, Designee or the business back-office services provider from 
unauthorized access. 
 
206 Security of School Documents 
 
Originals of the following corporate documents are maintained, and their presence is verified on a 
periodic basis: 
 

A. Charter and all related amendments 
B. Minutes of the Board of Directors and subcommittees 
C. Banking agreements 
D. Leases 
E. Insurance policies 
F. Vendor invoices 
G. Grant and contract agreements 
H. Fixed asset inventory list 

 
207 Use of School Assets 
 
No employee may use any of the School property, equipment, material or supplies for personal use 
without the prior approval of the Business Manager, Executive Director or Designee. 
 
208 Use of School Credit Cards 
 

A. Business credit cards, issued by the School’s bank, will be used only for school- related 
expenditures. All charges must be supported by invoices or travel reports to be eligible for 
payment by the Charter School. 

 
B. Monthly credit card statements are reconciled to invoices and travel reports and are approved by 

the Executive Director/Designee. 
 

C. Business credit cards will be issued to teachers only for school related specific travel events by 
approval of Executive Director. In these cases, the business card will be issued only for the 
specific travel time period needed and the card will have spending limits designated for said 
travel. 

 
  



 5 

 
300 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 
 
301 Basis Of Accounting 
 
The Charter School will maintain their accounting records and related financial reports on the accrual 
basis of accounting. 
 
302 Accounting Policies 
 
The accounting policies and financial reporting adopted are consistent with the special purpose 
governmental unit requirements of the Accounting Standards Board (FASB), including Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 34 – Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis – for State and Local Governments. 
 
303 Basis of Presentation 
 
The accounts of the Charter School are organized on a basis of the School Account Code Structure or 
SACS. The operations of the fund are accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts, which comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenditures. The Charter School 
uses the following fund: 
 
Main Fund - This fund of the Charter School is used to account for all financial resources associated with 
the operation of the school. In addition, all activities relating to Student Activities should be separately 
identified and recorded within this fund. 
 
304 Revenues 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues recognized when earned. 
 
305 Expenditures 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized when services are incurred, or goods are 
received. 
 
306 Incurred Costs 
 
For the purpose of invoicing funding sources for allowable costs under cost reimbursement contracts, the 
term "costs incurred" is defined as follows: 
 
costs related to items or services incurred directly for the contract and received at the time of the request 
for reimbursement and not specifically disallowed by the funding source. 
 
307 Cash Management 
 
The School maintains cash accounts at the following banks: 
Operating – Chase Bank 
Fundraising- My Point Credit Union 
 
308 Grants Receivable Aging Criteria 
Accounts receivable outstanding are aged on a thirty, sixty, ninety, and over-ninety-day basis. 
  



 6 

 
309 Grant/Contract Invoicing 
All invoices are submitted to the funding sources by dates specified in the grant or contract agreement. 
 
The invoicing format is that specified by the funding source. 
 
310 Budgets 

A. The Charter School prepares an annual operating budget of revenues and expenses and a cash 
flow projection. These budgets and projection will be reviewed and approved by the Board of 
Directors at a minimum annually unless modified as necessary. 

 
B. Financial statements displaying budget vs. actual results are prepared by the back office service 

provider and reviewed by the Executive Director and presented to the Board of Directors at each 
board meeting. 

 
311 Insurance And Bonding 
 
The School maintains minimum levels of coverage, as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors, for 
the following policies: 

1. General liability 
2. Business & personal property (including auto/bus) 
3. Computer equipment 
4. Workers' compensation 
5. Personal injury liability 

 
The School requires proof of adequate insurance coverage from all prospective contractors, as deemed 
applicable by the Board of Directors. 
 
312 Record Retention And Disposal 
 
Records are maintained for the following indicated minimum periods: 

1. Books, records, documents and other supporting evidence including paid, cancelled or voided 
checks, accounts payable records, vendors' invoices, payroll sheets and registers of salaries and 
wages, tax withholding statements, employees’ timesheets and other public documents are 
retained for seven years after the original entry date. 

 
All records not supporting government grants or otherwise covered by rules of the Internal Revenue 
Service are retained for three years from the end of the fiscal year in which the records were originally 
prepared. 
 
All financial records are maintained in chronological order, organized by fiscal year. 
 
In connection with the disposal of any records, a memorandum of record disposal is prepared by the 
Business Manager listing the record or the class of records disposed of. The Board of Directors certifies 
this memorandum of records disposal. 
 
  



 7 

 
 
313 Financial Reporting 
 
The back-office services provider maintains supporting records in sufficient detail to prepare the School's 
financial reports, including: 
 

A. Annually: 
1. Financial statements for audit 
2. Annual budget 

 
B. Monthly: 

1. Trial balance 
2. Internally generated budget vs. actual financial statements 
3. Billing invoices to funding sources 
4. Updating the cash flow projection 

 
C. Periodically: 

1. IRS Forms 941 and payroll tax returns and comparable state taxing authority returns 
2. Other reports upon request 

 
314 Audit 
The Board of Directors selects a qualified certified public accounting firm to conduct an audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The Board of Directors approves final audits. 
 
The audit reports will be submitted to the granting agency, (starting 2002) California Department of 
Education, (starting 2003) County Superintendent of Schools, and State Controller's Office by December 
15 of each year. (Education Code 47605(m)) 
 
 
400 POLICIES RELATED TO ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
 
401 ASSETS 
 
402 Bank Accounts 
Bank accounts for the indicated purpose and limitation(s) have been authorized by the Board of Directors 
of the School at the indicated Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)-insured banks : 
 
403 Petty Cash Payments 
Petty cash payments are made from a fund not to exceed $500, and should be for cash advances, local 
expense reimbursement and small-dollar vendor purchases, provided proper documentation is furnished 
with each request. Proper documentation is defined as an actual itemized receipt or invoice. No individual 
payment shall be greater than $250. 
 
The petty cash account is balanced on a monthly basis by the petty cash custodian. The replenishment 
check is made out to “Cash” on an as needed basis.  
 
 
 
  



 8 

 
403 LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
 
404 Accounts Payable 
Only valid accounts payable transactions based on documented vendor invoices, receiving report or other 
approved documentation are recorded as accounts payable. 
 
405 Accounts Payable Payment Policy 
Vendors and suppliers are paid as their payment terms require, taking advantage of any discounts offered. 
If cash flow problems exist, payments are made on a greatest dependency/greatest need basis. 
 
406 Accrued Liabilities 
Salaries, wages earned, and payroll taxes, together with professional fees, rent, and insurance costs 
incurred, but unpaid, are reflected as a liability when entitlement to payment occurs. 
 
407 Liability For Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences arise from employees' absences from employment due to vacation leave. 
When the Charter School expects to pay an employee for such compensated absences, a liability 
for the estimated probable future payments is accrued if all of the following conditions are met: 
1. The employee's right to receive compensation for the future absences is attributable to 

services already performed by the employee. 
2. The employee's right to receive the compensation for the future absences is vested or 

accumulates. 
3. It is probable that the compensation will be paid. 
4. The amount of compensation is reasonably estimable. 

 
Compensated absences not required to be paid upon employee termination are only recorded when paid. 
 
408 Debt 

A. When applicable, short-term debt consists of financing expected to be paid within one year of the 
date of the annual audited financial statements. Long-term debt consists of financing that is not 
expected to be repaid within one year and is recorded in the Enterprise Fund. 

 
B. Loan agreements approved by the Board of Directors should be in writing and should specify all 

applicable terms, including the purpose of the loan, the interest rate, and the repayment schedule. 
 
 
500 REVENUES 
 
501 Revenue Recognition 
The School records revenue on the accrual basis of accounting, consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable to special purpose governmental units. 
 
  



 9 

600 FACILITIES 
 
601 Disposal of Property and Equipment 
 

A. No item of property or equipment shall be removed from the premises without prior approval 
from the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
B. The School has adopted standard disposition procedures for Charter School staff to follow, which 

include an Asset Disposal Form, which identifies the asset, the reason for disposition, and 
signature of the requester. The form also allows for an identification of the asset’s book value, 
condition of the asset, and supervisory approval or denial. 

 
C. When property is retired, the appropriate asset in the fixed asset subsidiary will be adjusted and 

properly reflected in the Enterprise Fund. 
 
 
700 PROCUREMENT POLICIES 
 
701 The School adheres to the following objectives: 

1. Procurements will be completely impartial based strictly on the merits of supplier and contractor 
proposals and applicable related considerations such as delivery, quantity, etc. 

2. Make all purchases in the best interests of the School and its funding sources. 
3. Obtain quality supplies/services needed for delivery at the time and place required. 
4. Buy from responsible sources of supply. 
5. Obtain maximum value for all expenditures. 
6. Deal fairly and impartially with all vendors. 
7. Maintain dependable sources of supply. 
8. Be above suspicion of unethical behavior at all times; avoid any conflict of interest, related 

parties or even the appearance of a conflict of interest in the Charter School supplier 
relationships. 

 
All lease agreements will be evidenced by a lease or sublease agreement approved by the Board of 
Directors and signed by the Executive Director. The agreement will identify all the terms and conditions 
of the lease. 
 
 
800  TRAVEL POLICIES 
 
801  Employee Mileage Reimbursement 

A. All employees are reimbursed at the standard mileage rate per mile as determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service for use of their own vehicle for business related travel. In addition, parking fees 
and tolls paid are reimbursable if supported by invoices. 

 
B. All employees requesting such mileage reimbursement are required to furnish a Travel Report 

containing the destination of each trip, its purpose and the miles driven, parking fees and tolls, 
within one month after the travel date, supported by invoices, if applicable. 

 
C. Employees will be reimbursed for food costs incurred while participating in professional 

development that requires an overnight stay. All such reimbursements will be approved by the 
director in advance. No alcohol costs will be reimbursed by the school. 

  



 10 

 
CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS 
Consultant Utilization 
The utilization of all consultants and contract personnel are sufficiently evidenced by: 
 

A. Details of all agreements (e.g., work requirements, rate of compensation, nature and amount of 
other expenses, if any) with the individuals or organizations providing the services and details of 
actual services performed. 

 
B. Invoices or billings submitted by consultants, including sufficient detail as to the time expended 

and nature of the actual services performed. 
 

C. The use of a management contract for educational and administrative services will clearly 
identify the contractor’s performance requirements, including students’ academic achievement, 
contractor’s compensation and the Charter School’s rights to educational curricula and 
intellectual property developed. 

 
Independent Contractors 
The use of consultants is closely monitored so as not to vary from the rules of the Internal Revenue Code. 
In particular, consultants will: 
 

A. Not be controlled as to what services will be performed and how these services will be 
performed. Consultants will not have set hours of work. 

B. Adhere to a precise contract scope of services, recomputed or at least adjusted annually. This 
consultant agreement will specify the obligation of the consultant to pay his or her own self-
employment taxes, if applicable. 

C. Not receive any fringe benefits as such, although their fee may include provision for fringe 
benefits. 

D. Not be assigned a permanent workstation. 
E. Make their services available or work for a number of firms or persons at the same time. 
F. Will use his/her own stationery or time sheet in billing for services. 
G. Provide proof of insurance and their own equipment/tools. 

 
 
 
PART II 
 
1000 - GENERAL ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES 
 
In this section, procedures are described for the overall accounting system design, General Ledger activity 
and General Ledger closeout for the Charter School. 
 
GENERAL LEDGER ACTIVITY 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that all General Ledger entries are current, accurate and complete. 
 
Major Controls 

A. Timeliness of Entries 
All entries are made soon after the underlying accounting event to ensure the financial records and 
reporting is current. 



 11 

B. Support Documentation 
All entries are supported by adequate documentation that clearly shows the justification and 
authorization for the transaction. 
C. Audit Trail 
A complete audit trail is maintained by the use of reference codes from source documentation through 
the books of original entry and General Ledger, to periodic reporting statements. 

 
Procedures 

1. Financial data on source documentation is verified against original documents (e.g., invoice, 
purchase order, etc.) by the Business Manager before entering into the accounting system. 

2. Each entry in the accounting system is reviewed and approved by the Business Manager. 
3. Provision is made for using recurring General Journal entries for certain transactions, such as 

recording the monthly portion of prepaid insurance. 
4. Non-recurring entries, such as for correcting entries, recording accruals and recording non- cash 

transactions, are prepared as circumstances warrant and on a monthly basis. 
5. All entries in the books of original entry (e.g., cash receipts journal and checkbook) are made 

soon after the accounting event from authorized forms and are prepared and reviewed by 
qualified accounting personnel. 

6. All General Journal entries are supported by General Journal Vouchers that have supporting 
documentation attached and are approved by the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
 
GENERAL LEDGER CLOSE-OUT 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure the accuracy of financial records and reports. 
 
Major Controls 
 

A. Trial Balance 
Monthly, a trial balance is prepared to ensure the accuracy of the General Ledger account balances. 

 
B. Reconciliation of General Ledger Control Accounts with Subsidiary Ledgers 
Reconciliations are prepared on a monthly basis. 

 
Procedures 

1. At the end of each month, a trial balance of all General Ledger accounts is prepared by the back-
office business services provider to the Executive Director. 

2. Reconciliation between the General Ledger control accounts and the subsidiary ledgers are 
completed by the back-office business services provider. 

3. At fiscal year-end and after the annual audit, all income and expense accounts are closed out, and 
the general ledger balances are agreed to the audited financial statements. 

 
 
 
1100 - CASH MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES 
 
In this section, procedures are described for cash receipts, cash disbursements, and petty cash funds and 
prepaid items. 
  



 12 

 
CASH RECEIPTS 
 
Control Objective 
To record cash receipts completely and accurately and to prevent the diversion of cash assets. 
 
Major Controls 
 

A. Cash Flow Projection 
The Charter School annually prepares and updates monthly a cash flow projection for operations and 
capital cash needs to monitor and ensure adequate cash flow. 

 
B. Cash Receipts Policies 
The School has internal control systems in place to monitor cash receipts, and ensure that deposits are 
made in a timely manner. The School also uses electronic fund transfers to accelerate deposits. 

 
C. Internal Accounting Controls 

 
• Opening of mail assigned to an employee with responsibilities independent of access to files or 

documents pertaining to accounts receivable or cash accounts. 
• Listed receipts and credits compared to accounts receivable and bank deposits. 
• General Ledger control accounts reconciled with Accounts Receivable Subsidiary Ledger 

 
Procedures 
 
General 

1. Mail is opened by the Receptionist who sorts the checks and forwards them to the Executive 
Director/Designee or the appropriate recipient. 

2. All checks are restrictively endorsed immediately by the Executive Director/Designee. 
3. The Executive Director/Designee prepares a deposit recap and deposit. 
4. A copy of the deposit recap and bank receipt are scanned to the back-office service provider and 

then filed to provide support for all deposits. 
5. The back-office business services provider prepares journal entries. 
6. The back-office business services provider reviews and signs off on journal entries. 
7. The back-office business services provider inputs journal entries. 
8. The Executive Director/Designee makes deposits on a weekly basis. If deposits are made other 

than weekly, the deposit should be maintained in a secure area with limited access. 
9. Reconciliation of cash receipts to deposit slips and bank statements are performed by the back-

office business services provider on a monthly basis. 
 
CASH DISBURSEMENTS 
 
Control Objective 
To disburse cash for authorized purposes and record cash disbursements completely and accurately. 
 
Major Controls 
 

A. Cash Disbursement Policies 
It is not a policy of Innovations Academy to disburse cash except from the petty cash fund (see Petty 
Cash Funds below). 

  



 13 

CHECK DISBURSEMENTS 
 
Control Objective 
To issue and records checks for authorized purposes, completely and accurately. 
 
Internal Accounting Controls 

1. Pre-numbered checks and special check protective paper. 
2. Match disbursement records against accounts payable/open invoice files. 
3. Bank statements reconciled to cash accounts and any outstanding checks verified by either the 

back office business services provider, if applicable. 
4. Supporting documentation canceled to prevent resubmission for payment. 
5. Detailed comparison of actual vs. budget disbursements on a periodic basis. 
6. Separation of duties to the extent possible for an organization the size of the School. 

 
Procedures 

1. When the transaction is complete and payment is due, a pre-numbered check is prepared by the 
back office business services provider who attaches all supporting documentation: (e.g. vendor 
invoice, purchase order, purchase requisition, etc.) and submits the package to the Executive 
Director/Designee for approval. 

2. All invoices submitted for signature will include approvals for payment, expense account 
charged, check number and date of payment. 

3. The Executive Director/Designee approves checks, after examining the supporting 
documentation. 

4. After having been approved and/or signed, the checks are mailed directly to the payee by 
receptionist. 

5. All supporting documents are canceled (i.e., stamped PAID) by the signatory and filed by back-
office business services provider. 

6. Bank statements are reconciled soon after receipt by the back-offices business services provider 
and reviewed by the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
PETTY CASH FUNDS 
 
Control Objective 
To control the use of petty cash funds for valid transactions 
 
Major Controls 
Internal Accounting Controls 
Reconcile petty cash funds by employees with responsibilities independent of cash receipts, 
disbursements or custody. 
 
Procedures 

1. The Charter School will cash system of $500, which will be maintained and secured by the 
Executive Director or their designee.  

2. The Executive Director/Designee maintains a log of all disbursements made from the petty cash 
fund. No disbursements will be for greater than $250. 

3. When the fund needs to be replenished, a check request is prepared by the Executive 
Director/Designee attaching the log of disbursements and the supporting receipts. 

4. Any differences between the check request to bring the fund up to the petty cash amount and total 
disbursements made are reviewed and a justification is prepared. 

  



 14 

 
5. The petty cash account is balanced on a monthly basis by the petty cash custodian. The 

replenishment check is made out to “cash,” on an as needed basis. 
6. Funds disbursements are entered into the General Ledger by expense category when the fund is 

replenished. 
 
1200 - PAYROLL PROCEDURES 
 
Payroll procedures are organized under six categories: personnel requirements, personnel data, 
timekeeping, preparation of payroll, payroll payment, and payroll withholdings. 
 
 
PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that the School hires only those employees, full or part-time, it absolutely needs and exerts 
tight control over hiring new employees 
 
Major Controls 
 
Payroll Policies 
Procedures 
 
New Employees 

1. Requests for new employees are initiated by the Executive Director and compared with the 
approved annual personnel budget. 

2. New employees complete an Application for Employment. 
3. New employees complete all necessary paperwork for payroll. 
4. Employee is fingerprinted. Fingerprint clearance must be received by the school before an 

employee may start work. 
 
Vacation and Sick Pay 

1. Employees accrue vacation time based on personnel policy of the Charter School. 
2. Employee is required to provide at least two weeks advanced notice to supervisors for a vacation 

request. 
3. Regular part-time employees will earn vacation time on a pro-rated bases based on personnel 

policy of the Charter School. 
4. Employees' earned vacation balances are adjusted monthly to reflect vacation time earned and 

taken and reviewed by the Executive Director. 
5. Sick leave taken is monitored against each employee's available sick time on an electronic 

spreadsheet and reviewed by the Executive Director. 
6. Before vacation time is paid, a Vacation Authorization Request is to be prepared by the 

employee, which is reviewed and approved by the Executive Director. 
7. The back-office business services provider monitors vacation and sick time by maintaining a log 

for each individual. 
8. A General Journal entry is prepared at year-end to record the accrued vacation liability. 
9. Unused vacation time is based on personnel policy of the Charter School. 

 
 
 
  



 15 

PERSONNEL DATA TIMEKEEPING 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that payment for salaries and wages is made in accordance with documented time records. 
 
Major Controls 

A. Timekeeping Policies 
Employees are instructed on the proper charging of time to assure the accuracy of recorded time 
to cost objectives. 

 
B. Time Sheet 

Labor hours are accurately recorded and any corrections to timekeeping records, including the 
appropriate authorizations and approvals, are documented. 

 
C. Internal Accounting Controls 

Reconciliation of hours charged on time sheets to attendance records. 
 
Procedures 
Time Sheet Preparation 

1. Hourly and salary employees prepare time sheets on a bi-weekly basis. 
2. In preparing time sheets, employees: 

A. Enter hours in ink and sign the completed timekeeping record 
B. Make all corrections in ink by crossing out the error and initialing the change. 
C. Submit the completed time sheet to the Executive Director. 

 
Approval and Collection of Time Sheets 

1. Each employee's time sheet is forwarded to the Executive Director/Designee on a bi-weekly 
basis, which ensures all the timesheets are submitted in a timely manner. The Executive 
Director/Designee reviews and approves them. 

2. Payroll hours are submitted to the back-office business services provider for processing. 
 
Reconciliation of Payroll to Time Sheets 
 
Hours shown on time sheets are reconciled to the hours recorded on the Payroll Register by the Executive 
Director or their designee for each time sheet period. 
 
PREPARATION OF PAYROLL 
Control Objective 
To ensure that payment of salaries and wages is accurately calculated. 
 
Major Controls 
Internal Accounting Controls 
Time records are periodically reconciled with payroll records. 
 
Procedures 

1. The total time recorded on time sheets and the number of employees is calculated by Executive 
Director/Designee. 

2. The Executive Director/Designee submits hours to the back-office services provider for 
processing. 

  



 16 

3. Recorded hours from the bi-weekly time sheets are accumulated by the back-office business 
services provider and communicated to the Payroll Service via modem or input into the in-house 
payroll software. 

4. The payroll documents received from the in-house payroll software (e.g., calculations, payrolls 
and payroll summaries) are compared with time sheets, pay rates, payroll deductions, 
compensated absences etc. by the back-office business services provider. 

5. The back-office business services provider verifies gross pay and payroll deductions. 
6. The total hours and number of employees are compared with the totals in the Payroll Register by 

the back-office business services provider. 
7. The Payroll Register is reviewed and approved by the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
PAYROLL PAYMENT 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure payment for salaries and wages by check, direct deposit, cash or other means is made only to 
employees entitled to receive payment. 
 
PAYROLL WITHHOLDINGS 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that payment withholdings are correctly reflected and paid to the appropriate third parties. 
Major Controls 
 
Reconciliation of Payment and Payroll Withholdings 
Payroll withholdings are recorded in the appropriate General Ledger control accounts and reconciled with 
payments made to third parties. 
 
Internal Accounting Controls 
The in-house payroll software calculates payroll withholdings, which are reviewed and verified by the 
back-office business services provider. 
 
Procedures 

1. The in-house payroll software calculates payroll withholdings for each employee. These are 
summarized by pay period and recorded in General Ledger. 

2. Payments for payroll withholdings are reconciled with the amounts recorded in the General 
Ledger control accounts by the back-office business services provider. 

3. The back-office business services provider reviews the accuracy and timeliness of payments 
made to third parties for payroll withholdings. 

4. Original withholding and benefit election forms, maintained in the employee file, are prepared by 
employee and reviewed and approved on a periodic basis by the back-office business services 
provider. 

 
PAYROLL ADVANCES 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that payroll advances are properly monitored, recorded and paid back in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
  



 17 

Procedures 
1. All payroll advances must be approved by the Executive Director in advance. 
2. A payroll advance will not exceed the amount of one pay period. 
3. Before receiving an advance, the employee will agree to a repayment schedule in which funds are 

deducted automatically from each subsequent paycheck until full repayment is made. 
 
1300 ASSET TRACKING AND DEPRECIATION 
 
Procedures 
The School capitalizes all fixed assets when acquired and records the historical cost of these items in the 
Enterprise Fund. The Charter School will use the straight-line method of depreciation over the assets 
useful life as determined as follow 
 

Computers 3 years 
Office Equipment 5 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Office Furniture 7 years 
Leasehold Improvements Life of lease or 5 years, whichever is 

greater 
Building Improvements 20 years 
Building  30 years 

 
Capitalized Threshold - Property acquired with an estimated useful life of greater than one fiscal year and 
with a value greater than $5,000 shall be capitalized and depreciated according to useful lives assigned to 
each category of capital assets (above) that are within generally accepted accounting principles.  
 
1400 EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 
Control Objective 
To ensure the School pays for only authorized business expenses. 
 
Major Controls 

A. Travel Policies 
The School has adopted policies on travel reimbursement within this document. 

B.  Employee Expense Reimbursement Documentation 
Employees are required to receive approval before incurring expenses that require reimbursement. 
Employees are required to obtain and furnish documentation for all individual expenses that require 
reimbursement. 

C. Internal Accounting Controls 
• Justification for travel approved by Executive Director/Designee 
• Documentation for incurred employee expenses. 
• Documentation for company credit card purchase. 

 
Expense Advance or Reimbursement 
Expense Reimbursement: 

1. Soon after traveling, but not exceeding 30 days, an employee who seeks reimbursement for 
authorized expenses completes a Travel Report detailing the expenses incurred, attaching 
originals of supporting documentation. 

2. All credit card purchases are supported by invoices in order to be reimbursed. 
  



 18 

3. The employee's Travel Report and credit card purchases invoices are reviewed and approved by 
the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
1500 - MANAGEMENT REPORTING PROCEDURES 
In this section, procedures are covered for supporting the annual budget, financial reporting and tax 
compliance. 
 
ANNUAL BUDGET 
 
Control Objective 
To effectively support the preparation of the annual budget and its periodic review. 
 
Major Controls 
Budget Process 
The Executive Director works with the back-office business services provider and prepares the annual 
operating and capital budgets and cash flow projection, with input from the school’s community. The 
budgets and projection are submitted to the Board of Directors for approval. 
 
Internal Accounting Controls 
Accuracy and completeness of the budget and projections 
 
Procedures 

1. In preparation of the annual operating and capital budget and cash flow projection, the back-
office business services provider prepares preliminary budgets and projection for review by the 
Executive Director in consultation with the school staff. 

2. To support budgets and projection estimates, the back-office business services provider prepares 
current year-to-date financial data with projections of year-end totals. 

3. The back-office business services provider and the Executive Director review the budgets and 
projection submitted for completeness and reasonableness. 

4. The Board of Directors approves and adopts the final budgets and projection. 
5. The adopted budgets totals are entered in the General Ledger by the back-office business services 

provider for the new fiscal year, in order to prepare budget to actual reports. 
 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of financial reporting to support decision making. 
 
Major Controls 

A. Schedule 
Monthly managerial reports are prepared based on a schedule. 
B. Review and Approval 
Financial reports are reviewed for accuracy and completeness. 
C. Audit 
The annual financial statements of the School are audited by a certified public accounting firm. 

 
Procedures 

1. The back-office business services provider prepares monthly budget vs. actual financial reports 
and cash flow projection for the Board of Directors meetings. 

  



 19 

 
2. The Charter School submits to an audit of its financial statements by a qualified certified public 

accounting firm, in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards 
3. The School shall automatically submit all financial reports required under Education Code 

Section 47604.33 and 47605(m). 
PAYROLL TAX COMPLIANCE 
 
Control Objective 
To accurately prepare and file required tax documents on a timely basis. 
 
Procedures 

1. The School maintains a schedule of required filing due dates for: 
A. IRS Form W-2 - Wage and Tax Statement. 
B. IRS Form W-3 - Transmittal of Income and Tax Statements. 
C. IRS Form 940 - Employer's Federal Unemployment (FUTA) Tax Return. 
D. IRS Form 941 - Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return for Federal Income Tax Withheld 

from Wages and FICA Taxes. 
E. IRS Form 1099 MISC (also 1099-DIV, 1099-INT, 1099-OID) - U.S. Annual 
F. Information Return for Recipients of Miscellaneous Income. 
G. Quarterly and annual state(s) unemployment tax return(s). 

 
2. Before submission, all payroll tax documents, and the supporting schedules are reviewed and 

approved by the back office business services provider for accuracy and completeness. 
 
 



 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INNOVATIONS ACADEMY 
 

FISCAL AND OPERATING 
POLICIES 

 
 
Approved May 13, 2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

 
100 INTERNAL CONTROL POLICIES 
 
101 Introduction 
Internal control policies provide the Charter School with the foundation to properly safeguard its assets, 
implement management’s internal policies, provide compliance with state and federal laws and 
regulations and produce timely and accurate financial information. Additionally, as a publicly supported 
entity, the Charter School has additional responsibilities to ensure the public’s confidence and the 
integrity of the School’s activities. 
 
 
102 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 
The Charter School will follow all the relevant laws and regulations that govern The Charter School. 
Additionally, any Federal Government laws and regulations that relate to grant funding will be adopted as 
the grant funding is received. The following are specific policies of the Charter School: 
 

A. Political Contributions 
 
No funds or assets of the Charter School may be contributed to any political party or organization or to 
any individual who either holds public office or is a candidate for public office. The direct or indirect use 
of any funds or other assets of the Charter School for political contributions in any form, whether in cash 
or other property, services, or the use of facilities, is strictly prohibited. The Charter School also cannot be 
involved with any committee or other organization that raises funds for political purposes. 
 
Following are examples of prohibited activities 

1. Contributions by an employee that are reimbursed through expense accounts or in other ways. 
2. Purchase by the organization of tickets for political fundraising events. 
3. Contributions in kind, such as lending employees to political parties or using the School assets in 

political campaigns. 
 

B. Record Keeping 
 
To provide an accurate and auditable record of all financial transactions, the School’s books, records, and 
accounts are maintained in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to 
Charter Schools. 
 
Further, the School specifically requires that: 

1. No funds or accounts may be established or maintained for purposes that are not fully and 
accurately described within the books and records of the Charter School. 

2. Receipts and disbursements must be fully and accurately described in the books and records. 
3. No false entries may be made on the books or records nor any false or misleading reports issued. 
4. Payments may be made only to the contracting party and only for the actual services rendered or 

products delivered. No false or fictitious invoices may be paid. 
 
 
 
 
  



 3 

 
200 Organizational Conflict of Interest Or Self-Dealing (Related Parties) 
 
The School will not be operated for the benefit of an affiliated or unaffiliated organization or an 
individual in his or her own private capacity or individuals related to the Charter School or members of its 
management, unless the private benefit is considered merely incidental. This private benefit preclusion 
will extend to: 
 

A. Sale or exchange, or leasing, of property between the agency and an affiliated or unaffiliated 
organization or a private or related individual. 

 
B. Lending of money or other extension of credit between an agency and an affiliated or unaffiliated 

organization or a private or related individual. 
 

C. Furnishing of goods, services or facilities between the agency and an affiliated or unaffiliated 
organization or a private or related individual. 

 
D. Payment of compensation, unless authorized by the Board of Directors or its governing body, by 

the School to an affiliated or unaffiliated organization or a private or related individual. 
 

E. Transfer to, use by, or for the benefit of a private or related individual of the income or assets of 
the School. 

 
Thus, the Charter School will be guided by the principle of arms-length standards with all affiliated or 
unaffiliated organizations or with a private or related individual(s). 
 
Related party transactions shall include transactions between a school and members of the board, 
management, contracted management organization, employees, related individuals and affiliated 
companies. Related individuals within the scope of this definition include spouses, parents, children, 
spouses of children, grandchildren, siblings, father-in-law, mother-in-law, sister-in-law and brother-in-law 
of a board member or school employee. 
 
202 Board Of Directors Authorities 
The Board of Directors shall have the sole authority to approve and will incorporate into its own minutes 
such matters as (i) change of the School’s name, with SDUSD pre- approval (ii) adoption of the annual 
operating and capital budgets, (iii) selection or termination of the school director (iv) salary and salary 
changes of the school director, (v) incurrence of debt, mortgages or other encumbrances and their 
covenants and restrictions, within the terms of the charter (vi) investment policies, (vii) depository and 
investment banks, (viii) purchase or sale of property and (ix) selection of the Charter School’s certified 
public accountants and (xi) other activities associated with the operations of the Charter School. 
 
The Board of Directors will meet at a minimum quarterly to ensure that its fiduciary duty is maintained. 
The Board will review the following: prior meeting minutes, business items, educational items, and 
subcommittee reports. 
 
203 Signature Authorities 
To properly segregate duties within the Charter School, the Treasurer of the Board and the Charter 
Executive Director or Designee are the only individuals with signatory authority and are responsible for 
authorizing all financial transactions. Capital expenses greater than $40,000 and operational expenses 
greater than $100,000 will require Board of Director approval. 
  



 4 

 
204 Government Access to Records 
The Business Manager or contracted business back-office services provider will provide access to the 
organization's records to the SDUSD CFO or designee and provide supporting records, as requested, in a 
timely manner. 
 
205 Security of Financial Data 
 
The system's accounting data must be backed up daily by the business back-office services provider to 
ensure the recoverability of financial information in case of hardware failure. The back-up will be stored 
in a fire safe area and properly secured. 
 
All other financial data, petty cash box, unused checks and unclaimed checks will be secured by the 
Business Manager, Executive Director, Designee or the business back-office services provider from 
unauthorized access. 
 
206 Security of School Documents 
 
Originals of the following corporate documents are maintained, and their presence is verified on a 
periodic basis: 
 

A. Charter and all related amendments 
B. Minutes of the Board of Directors and subcommittees 
C. Banking agreements 
D. Leases 
E. Insurance policies 
F. Vendor invoices 
G. Grant and contract agreements 
H. Fixed asset inventory list 

 
207 Use of School Assets 
 
No employee may use any of the School property, equipment, material or supplies for personal use 
without the prior approval of the Business Manager, Executive Director or Designee. 
 
208 Use of School Credit Cards 
 

A. Business credit cards, issued by the School’s bank, will be used only for school- related 
expenditures. All charges must be supported by invoices or travel reports to be eligible for 
payment by the Charter School. 

 
B. Monthly credit card statements are reconciled to invoices and travel reports and are approved by 

the Executive Director/Designee. 
 

C. Business credit cards will be issued to teachers only for school related specific travel events by 
approval of Executive Director. In these cases, the business card will be issued only for the 
specific travel time period needed and the card will have spending limits designated for said 
travel. 

 
  



 5 

 
300 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 
 
301 Basis Of Accounting 
 
The Charter School will maintain their accounting records and related financial reports on the accrual 
basis of accounting. 
 
302 Accounting Policies 
 
The accounting policies and financial reporting adopted are consistent with the special purpose 
governmental unit requirements of the Accounting Standards Board (FASB), including Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 34 – Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis – for State and Local Governments. 
 
303 Basis of Presentation 
 
The accounts of the Charter School are organized on a basis of the School Account Code Structure or 
SACS. The operations of the fund are accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts, which comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenditures. The Charter School 
uses the following fund: 
 
Main Fund - This fund of the Charter School is used to account for all financial resources associated with 
the operation of the school. In addition, all activities relating to Student Activities should be separately 
identified and recorded within this fund. 
 
304 Revenues 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues recognized when earned. 
 
305 Expenditures 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized when services are incurred, or goods are 
received. 
 
306 Incurred Costs 
 
For the purpose of invoicing funding sources for allowable costs under cost reimbursement contracts, the 
term "costs incurred" is defined as follows: 
 
costs related to items or services incurred directly for the contract and received at the time of the request 
for reimbursement and not specifically disallowed by the funding source. 
 
307 Cash Management 
 
The School maintains cash accounts at the following banks: 
Operating – Chase Bank 
Fundraising- My Point Credit Union 
 
308 Grants Receivable Aging Criteria 
Accounts receivable outstanding are aged on a thirty, sixty, ninety, and over-ninety-day basis. 
  



 6 

 
309 Grant/Contract Invoicing 
All invoices are submitted to the funding sources by dates specified in the grant or contract agreement. 
 
The invoicing format is that specified by the funding source. 
 
310 Budgets 

A. The Charter School prepares an annual operating budget of revenues and expenses and a cash 
flow projection. These budgets and projection will be reviewed and approved by the Board of 
Directors at a minimum annually unless modified as necessary. 

 
B. Financial statements displaying budget vs. actual results are prepared by the back office service 

provider and reviewed by the Executive Director and presented to the Board of Directors at each 
board meeting. 

 
311 Insurance And Bonding 
 
The School maintains minimum levels of coverage, as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors, for 
the following policies: 

1. General liability 
2. Business & personal property (including auto/bus) 
3. Computer equipment 
4. Workers' compensation 
5. Personal injury liability 

 
The School requires proof of adequate insurance coverage from all prospective contractors, as deemed 
applicable by the Board of Directors. 
 
312 Record Retention And Disposal 
 
Records are maintained for the following indicated minimum periods: 

1. Books, records, documents and other supporting evidence including paid, cancelled or voided 
checks, accounts payable records, vendors' invoices, payroll sheets and registers of salaries and 
wages, tax withholding statements, employees’ timesheets and other public documents are 
retained for seven years after the original entry date. 

 
All records not supporting government grants or otherwise covered by rules of the Internal Revenue 
Service are retained for three years from the end of the fiscal year in which the records were originally 
prepared. 
 
All financial records are maintained in chronological order, organized by fiscal year. 
 
In connection with the disposal of any records, a memorandum of record disposal is prepared by the 
Business Manager listing the record or the class of records disposed of. The Board of Directors certifies 
this memorandum of records disposal. 
 
  



 7 

 
 
313 Financial Reporting 
 
The back-office services provider maintains supporting records in sufficient detail to prepare the School's 
financial reports, including: 
 

A. Annually: 
1. Financial statements for audit 
2. Annual budget 

 
B. Monthly: 

1. Trial balance 
2. Internally generated budget vs. actual financial statements 
3. Billing invoices to funding sources 
4. Updating the cash flow projection 

 
C. Periodically: 

1. IRS Forms 941 and payroll tax returns and comparable state taxing authority returns 
2. Other reports upon request 

 
314 Audit 
The Board of Directors selects a qualified certified public accounting firm to conduct an audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The Board of Directors approves final audits. 
 
The audit reports will be submitted to the granting agency, (starting 2002) California Department of 
Education, (starting 2003) County Superintendent of Schools, and State Controller's Office by December 
15 of each year. (Education Code 47605(m)) 
 
 
400 POLICIES RELATED TO ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
 
401 ASSETS 
 
402 Bank Accounts 
Bank accounts for the indicated purpose and limitation(s) have been authorized by the Board of Directors 
of the School at the indicated Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)-insured banks : 
 
403 Petty Cash Payments 
Petty cash payments are made from a fund not to exceed $500, and should be for cash advances, local 
expense reimbursement and small-dollar vendor purchases, provided proper documentation is furnished 
with each request. Proper documentation is defined as an actual itemized receipt or invoice. No individual 
payment shall be greater than $250. 
 
The petty cash account is balanced on a monthly basis by the petty cash custodian. The replenishment 
check is made out to “Cash” on an as needed basis.  
 
 
 
  



 8 

 
403 LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
 
404 Accounts Payable 
Only valid accounts payable transactions based on documented vendor invoices, receiving report or other 
approved documentation are recorded as accounts payable. 
 
405 Accounts Payable Payment Policy 
Vendors and suppliers are paid as their payment terms require, taking advantage of any discounts offered. 
If cash flow problems exist, payments are made on a greatest dependency/greatest need basis. 
 
406 Accrued Liabilities 
Salaries, wages earned, and payroll taxes, together with professional fees, rent, and insurance costs 
incurred, but unpaid, are reflected as a liability when entitlement to payment occurs. 
 
407 Liability For Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences arise from employees' absences from employment due to vacation leave. 
When the Charter School expects to pay an employee for such compensated absences, a liability 
for the estimated probable future payments is accrued if all of the following conditions are met: 
1. The employee's right to receive compensation for the future absences is attributable to 

services already performed by the employee. 
2. The employee's right to receive the compensation for the future absences is vested or 

accumulates. 
3. It is probable that the compensation will be paid. 
4. The amount of compensation is reasonably estimable. 

 
Compensated absences not required to be paid upon employee termination are only recorded when paid. 
 
408 Debt 

A. When applicable, short-term debt consists of financing expected to be paid within one year of the 
date of the annual audited financial statements. Long-term debt consists of financing that is not 
expected to be repaid within one year and is recorded in the Enterprise Fund. 

 
B. Loan agreements approved by the Board of Directors should be in writing and should specify all 

applicable terms, including the purpose of the loan, the interest rate, and the repayment schedule. 
 
 
500 REVENUES 
 
501 Revenue Recognition 
The School records revenue on the accrual basis of accounting, consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable to special purpose governmental units. 
 
  



 9 

600 FACILITIES 
 
601 Disposal of Property and Equipment 
 

A. No item of property or equipment shall be removed from the premises without prior approval 
from the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
B. The School has adopted standard disposition procedures for Charter School staff to follow, which 

include an Asset Disposal Form, which identifies the asset, the reason for disposition, and 
signature of the requester. The form also allows for an identification of the asset’s book value, 
condition of the asset, and supervisory approval or denial. 

 
C. When property is retired, the appropriate asset in the fixed asset subsidiary will be adjusted and 

properly reflected in the Enterprise Fund. 
 
 
700 PROCUREMENT POLICIES 
 
701 The School adheres to the following objectives: 

1. Procurements will be completely impartial based strictly on the merits of supplier and contractor 
proposals and applicable related considerations such as delivery, quantity, etc. 

2. Make all purchases in the best interests of the School and its funding sources. 
3. Obtain quality supplies/services needed for delivery at the time and place required. 
4. Buy from responsible sources of supply. 
5. Obtain maximum value for all expenditures. 
6. Deal fairly and impartially with all vendors. 
7. Maintain dependable sources of supply. 
8. Be above suspicion of unethical behavior at all times; avoid any conflict of interest, related 

parties or even the appearance of a conflict of interest in the Charter School supplier 
relationships. 

 
All lease agreements will be evidenced by a lease or sublease agreement approved by the Board of 
Directors and signed by the Executive Director. The agreement will identify all the terms and conditions 
of the lease. 
 
 
800  TRAVEL POLICIES 
 
801  Employee Mileage Reimbursement 

A. All employees are reimbursed at the standard mileage rate per mile as determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service for use of their own vehicle for business related travel. In addition, parking fees 
and tolls paid are reimbursable if supported by invoices. 

 
B. All employees requesting such mileage reimbursement are required to furnish a Travel Report 

containing the destination of each trip, its purpose and the miles driven, parking fees and tolls, 
within one month after the travel date, supported by invoices, if applicable. 

 
C. Employees will be reimbursed for food costs incurred while participating in professional 

development that requires an overnight stay. All such reimbursements will be approved by the 
director in advance. No alcohol costs will be reimbursed by the school. 

  



 10 

 
CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS 
Consultant Utilization 
The utilization of all consultants and contract personnel are sufficiently evidenced by: 
 

A. Details of all agreements (e.g., work requirements, rate of compensation, nature and amount of 
other expenses, if any) with the individuals or organizations providing the services and details of 
actual services performed. 

 
B. Invoices or billings submitted by consultants, including sufficient detail as to the time expended 

and nature of the actual services performed. 
 

C. The use of a management contract for educational and administrative services will clearly 
identify the contractor’s performance requirements, including students’ academic achievement, 
contractor’s compensation and the Charter School’s rights to educational curricula and 
intellectual property developed. 

 
Independent Contractors 
The use of consultants is closely monitored so as not to vary from the rules of the Internal Revenue Code. 
In particular, consultants will: 
 

A. Not be controlled as to what services will be performed and how these services will be 
performed. Consultants will not have set hours of work. 

B. Adhere to a precise contract scope of services, recomputed or at least adjusted annually. This 
consultant agreement will specify the obligation of the consultant to pay his or her own self-
employment taxes, if applicable. 

C. Not receive any fringe benefits as such, although their fee may include provision for fringe 
benefits. 

D. Not be assigned a permanent workstation. 
E. Make their services available or work for a number of firms or persons at the same time. 
F. Will use his/her own stationery or time sheet in billing for services. 
G. Provide proof of insurance and their own equipment/tools. 

 
 
 
PART II 
 
1000 - GENERAL ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES 
 
In this section, procedures are described for the overall accounting system design, General Ledger activity 
and General Ledger closeout for the Charter School. 
 
GENERAL LEDGER ACTIVITY 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that all General Ledger entries are current, accurate and complete. 
 
Major Controls 

A. Timeliness of Entries 
All entries are made soon after the underlying accounting event to ensure the financial records and 
reporting is current. 



 11 

B. Support Documentation 
All entries are supported by adequate documentation that clearly shows the justification and 
authorization for the transaction. 
C. Audit Trail 
A complete audit trail is maintained by the use of reference codes from source documentation through 
the books of original entry and General Ledger, to periodic reporting statements. 

 
Procedures 

1. Financial data on source documentation is verified against original documents (e.g., invoice, 
purchase order, etc.) by the Business Manager before entering into the accounting system. 

2. Each entry in the accounting system is reviewed and approved by the Business Manager. 
3. Provision is made for using recurring General Journal entries for certain transactions, such as 

recording the monthly portion of prepaid insurance. 
4. Non-recurring entries, such as for correcting entries, recording accruals and recording non- cash 

transactions, are prepared as circumstances warrant and on a monthly basis. 
5. All entries in the books of original entry (e.g., cash receipts journal and checkbook) are made 

soon after the accounting event from authorized forms and are prepared and reviewed by 
qualified accounting personnel. 

6. All General Journal entries are supported by General Journal Vouchers that have supporting 
documentation attached and are approved by the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
 
GENERAL LEDGER CLOSE-OUT 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure the accuracy of financial records and reports. 
 
Major Controls 
 

A. Trial Balance 
Monthly, a trial balance is prepared to ensure the accuracy of the General Ledger account balances. 

 
B. Reconciliation of General Ledger Control Accounts with Subsidiary Ledgers 
Reconciliations are prepared on a monthly basis. 

 
Procedures 

1. At the end of each month, a trial balance of all General Ledger accounts is prepared by the back-
office business services provider to the Executive Director. 

2. Reconciliation between the General Ledger control accounts and the subsidiary ledgers are 
completed by the back-office business services provider. 

3. At fiscal year-end and after the annual audit, all income and expense accounts are closed out, and 
the general ledger balances are agreed to the audited financial statements. 

 
 
 
1100 - CASH MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES 
 
In this section, procedures are described for cash receipts, cash disbursements, and petty cash funds and 
prepaid items. 
  



 12 

 
CASH RECEIPTS 
 
Control Objective 
To record cash receipts completely and accurately and to prevent the diversion of cash assets. 
 
Major Controls 
 

A. Cash Flow Projection 
The Charter School annually prepares and updates monthly a cash flow projection for operations and 
capital cash needs to monitor and ensure adequate cash flow. 

 
B. Cash Receipts Policies 
The School has internal control systems in place to monitor cash receipts, and ensure that deposits are 
made in a timely manner. The School also uses electronic fund transfers to accelerate deposits. 

 
C. Internal Accounting Controls 

 
• Opening of mail assigned to an employee with responsibilities independent of access to files or 

documents pertaining to accounts receivable or cash accounts. 
• Listed receipts and credits compared to accounts receivable and bank deposits. 
• General Ledger control accounts reconciled with Accounts Receivable Subsidiary Ledger 

 
Procedures 
 
General 

1. Mail is opened by the Receptionist who sorts the checks and forwards them to the Executive 
Director/Designee or the appropriate recipient. 

2. All checks are restrictively endorsed immediately by the Executive Director/Designee. 
3. The Executive Director/Designee prepares a deposit recap and deposit. 
4. A copy of the deposit recap and bank receipt are scanned to the back-office service provider and 

then filed to provide support for all deposits. 
5. The back-office business services provider prepares journal entries. 
6. The back-office business services provider reviews and signs off on journal entries. 
7. The back-office business services provider inputs journal entries. 
8. The Executive Director/Designee makes deposits on a weekly basis. If deposits are made other 

than weekly, the deposit should be maintained in a secure area with limited access. 
9. Reconciliation of cash receipts to deposit slips and bank statements are performed by the back-

office business services provider on a monthly basis. 
 
CASH DISBURSEMENTS 
 
Control Objective 
To disburse cash for authorized purposes and record cash disbursements completely and accurately. 
 
Major Controls 
 

A. Cash Disbursement Policies 
It is not a policy of Innovations Academy to disburse cash except from the petty cash fund (see Petty 
Cash Funds below). 

  



 13 

CHECK DISBURSEMENTS 
 
Control Objective 
To issue and records checks for authorized purposes, completely and accurately. 
 
Internal Accounting Controls 

1. Pre-numbered checks and special check protective paper. 
2. Match disbursement records against accounts payable/open invoice files. 
3. Bank statements reconciled to cash accounts and any outstanding checks verified by either the 

back office business services provider, if applicable. 
4. Supporting documentation canceled to prevent resubmission for payment. 
5. Detailed comparison of actual vs. budget disbursements on a periodic basis. 
6. Separation of duties to the extent possible for an organization the size of the School. 

 
Procedures 

1. When the transaction is complete and payment is due, a pre-numbered check is prepared by the 
back office business services provider who attaches all supporting documentation: (e.g. vendor 
invoice, purchase order, purchase requisition, etc.) and submits the package to the Executive 
Director/Designee for approval. 

2. All invoices submitted for signature will include approvals for payment, expense account 
charged, check number and date of payment. 

3. The Executive Director/Designee approves checks, after examining the supporting 
documentation. 

4. After having been approved and/or signed, the checks are mailed directly to the payee by 
receptionist. 

5. All supporting documents are canceled (i.e., stamped PAID) by the signatory and filed by back-
office business services provider. 

6. Bank statements are reconciled soon after receipt by the back-offices business services provider 
and reviewed by the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
PETTY CASH FUNDS 
 
Control Objective 
To control the use of petty cash funds for valid transactions 
 
Major Controls 
Internal Accounting Controls 
Reconcile petty cash funds by employees with responsibilities independent of cash receipts, 
disbursements or custody. 
 
Procedures 

1. The Charter School will cash system of $500, which will be maintained and secured by the 
Executive Director or their designee.  

2. The Executive Director/Designee maintains a log of all disbursements made from the petty cash 
fund. No disbursements will be for greater than $250. 

3. When the fund needs to be replenished, a check request is prepared by the Executive 
Director/Designee attaching the log of disbursements and the supporting receipts. 

4. Any differences between the check request to bring the fund up to the petty cash amount and total 
disbursements made are reviewed and a justification is prepared. 

  



 14 

 
5. The petty cash account is balanced on a monthly basis by the petty cash custodian. The 

replenishment check is made out to “cash,” on an as needed basis. 
6. Funds disbursements are entered into the General Ledger by expense category when the fund is 

replenished. 
 
1200 - PAYROLL PROCEDURES 
 
Payroll procedures are organized under six categories: personnel requirements, personnel data, 
timekeeping, preparation of payroll, payroll payment, and payroll withholdings. 
 
 
PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that the School hires only those employees, full or part-time, it absolutely needs and exerts 
tight control over hiring new employees 
 
Major Controls 
 
Payroll Policies 
Procedures 
 
New Employees 

1. Requests for new employees are initiated by the Executive Director and compared with the 
approved annual personnel budget. 

2. New employees complete an Application for Employment. 
3. New employees complete all necessary paperwork for payroll. 
4. Employee is fingerprinted. Fingerprint clearance must be received by the school before an 

employee may start work. 
 
Vacation and Sick Pay 

1. Employees accrue vacation time based on personnel policy of the Charter School. 
2. Employee is required to provide at least two weeks advanced notice to supervisors for a vacation 

request. 
3. Regular part-time employees will earn vacation time on a pro-rated bases based on personnel 

policy of the Charter School. 
4. Employees' earned vacation balances are adjusted monthly to reflect vacation time earned and 

taken and reviewed by the Executive Director. 
5. Sick leave taken is monitored against each employee's available sick time on an electronic 

spreadsheet and reviewed by the Executive Director. 
6. Before vacation time is paid, a Vacation Authorization Request is to be prepared by the 

employee, which is reviewed and approved by the Executive Director. 
7. The back-office business services provider monitors vacation and sick time by maintaining a log 

for each individual. 
8. A General Journal entry is prepared at year-end to record the accrued vacation liability. 
9. Unused vacation time is based on personnel policy of the Charter School. 

 
 
 
  



 15 

PERSONNEL DATA TIMEKEEPING 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that payment for salaries and wages is made in accordance with documented time records. 
 
Major Controls 

A. Timekeeping Policies 
Employees are instructed on the proper charging of time to assure the accuracy of recorded time 
to cost objectives. 

 
B. Time Sheet 

Labor hours are accurately recorded and any corrections to timekeeping records, including the 
appropriate authorizations and approvals, are documented. 

 
C. Internal Accounting Controls 

Reconciliation of hours charged on time sheets to attendance records. 
 
Procedures 
Time Sheet Preparation 

1. Hourly and salary employees prepare time sheets on a bi-weekly basis. 
2. In preparing time sheets, employees: 

A. Enter hours in ink and sign the completed timekeeping record 
B. Make all corrections in ink by crossing out the error and initialing the change. 
C. Submit the completed time sheet to the Executive Director. 

 
Approval and Collection of Time Sheets 

1. Each employee's time sheet is forwarded to the Executive Director/Designee on a bi-weekly 
basis, which ensures all the timesheets are submitted in a timely manner. The Executive 
Director/Designee reviews and approves them. 

2. Payroll hours are submitted to the back-office business services provider for processing. 
 
Reconciliation of Payroll to Time Sheets 
 
Hours shown on time sheets are reconciled to the hours recorded on the Payroll Register by the Executive 
Director or their designee for each time sheet period. 
 
PREPARATION OF PAYROLL 
Control Objective 
To ensure that payment of salaries and wages is accurately calculated. 
 
Major Controls 
Internal Accounting Controls 
Time records are periodically reconciled with payroll records. 
 
Procedures 

1. The total time recorded on time sheets and the number of employees is calculated by Executive 
Director/Designee. 

2. The Executive Director/Designee submits hours to the back-office services provider for 
processing. 

  



 16 

3. Recorded hours from the bi-weekly time sheets are accumulated by the back-office business 
services provider and communicated to the Payroll Service via modem or input into the in-house 
payroll software. 

4. The payroll documents received from the in-house payroll software (e.g., calculations, payrolls 
and payroll summaries) are compared with time sheets, pay rates, payroll deductions, 
compensated absences etc. by the back-office business services provider. 

5. The back-office business services provider verifies gross pay and payroll deductions. 
6. The total hours and number of employees are compared with the totals in the Payroll Register by 

the back-office business services provider. 
7. The Payroll Register is reviewed and approved by the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
PAYROLL PAYMENT 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure payment for salaries and wages by check, direct deposit, cash or other means is made only to 
employees entitled to receive payment. 
 
PAYROLL WITHHOLDINGS 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that payment withholdings are correctly reflected and paid to the appropriate third parties. 
Major Controls 
 
Reconciliation of Payment and Payroll Withholdings 
Payroll withholdings are recorded in the appropriate General Ledger control accounts and reconciled with 
payments made to third parties. 
 
Internal Accounting Controls 
The in-house payroll software calculates payroll withholdings, which are reviewed and verified by the 
back-office business services provider. 
 
Procedures 

1. The in-house payroll software calculates payroll withholdings for each employee. These are 
summarized by pay period and recorded in General Ledger. 

2. Payments for payroll withholdings are reconciled with the amounts recorded in the General 
Ledger control accounts by the back-office business services provider. 

3. The back-office business services provider reviews the accuracy and timeliness of payments 
made to third parties for payroll withholdings. 

4. Original withholding and benefit election forms, maintained in the employee file, are prepared by 
employee and reviewed and approved on a periodic basis by the back-office business services 
provider. 

 
PAYROLL ADVANCES 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure that payroll advances are properly monitored, recorded and paid back in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
  



 17 

Procedures 
1. All payroll advances must be approved by the Executive Director in advance. 
2. A payroll advance will not exceed the amount of one pay period. 
3. Before receiving an advance, the employee will agree to a repayment schedule in which funds are 

deducted automatically from each subsequent paycheck until full repayment is made. 
 
1300 ASSET TRACKING AND DEPRECIATION 
 
Procedures 
The School capitalizes all fixed assets when acquired and records the historical cost of these items in the 
Enterprise Fund. The Charter School will use the straight-line method of depreciation over the assets 
useful life as determined as follow 
 

Computers 3 years 
Office Equipment 5 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Office Furniture 7 years 
Leasehold Improvements Life of lease or 5 years, whichever is 

greater 
Building Improvements 20 years 
Building  30 years 

 
Capitalized Threshold - Property acquired with an estimated useful life of greater than one fiscal year and 
with a value greater than $5,000 shall be capitalized and depreciated according to useful lives assigned to 
each category of capital assets (above) that are within generally accepted accounting principles.  
 
1400 EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 
Control Objective 
To ensure the School pays for only authorized business expenses. 
 
Major Controls 

A. Travel Policies 
The School has adopted policies on travel reimbursement within this document. 

B.  Employee Expense Reimbursement Documentation 
Employees are required to receive approval before incurring expenses that require reimbursement. 
Employees are required to obtain and furnish documentation for all individual expenses that require 
reimbursement. 

C. Internal Accounting Controls 
• Justification for travel approved by Executive Director/Designee 
• Documentation for incurred employee expenses. 
• Documentation for company credit card purchase. 

 
Expense Advance or Reimbursement 
Expense Reimbursement: 

1. Soon after traveling, but not exceeding 30 days, an employee who seeks reimbursement for 
authorized expenses completes a Travel Report detailing the expenses incurred, attaching 
originals of supporting documentation. 

2. All credit card purchases are supported by invoices in order to be reimbursed. 
  



 18 

3. The employee's Travel Report and credit card purchases invoices are reviewed and approved by 
the Executive Director/Designee. 

 
1500 - MANAGEMENT REPORTING PROCEDURES 
In this section, procedures are covered for supporting the annual budget, financial reporting and tax 
compliance. 
 
ANNUAL BUDGET 
 
Control Objective 
To effectively support the preparation of the annual budget and its periodic review. 
 
Major Controls 
Budget Process 
The Executive Director works with the back-office business services provider and prepares the annual 
operating and capital budgets and cash flow projection, with input from the school’s community. The 
budgets and projection are submitted to the Board of Directors for approval. 
 
Internal Accounting Controls 
Accuracy and completeness of the budget and projections 
 
Procedures 

1. In preparation of the annual operating and capital budget and cash flow projection, the back-
office business services provider prepares preliminary budgets and projection for review by the 
Executive Director in consultation with the school staff. 

2. To support budgets and projection estimates, the back-office business services provider prepares 
current year-to-date financial data with projections of year-end totals. 

3. The back-office business services provider and the Executive Director review the budgets and 
projection submitted for completeness and reasonableness. 

4. The Board of Directors approves and adopts the final budgets and projection. 
5. The adopted budgets totals are entered in the General Ledger by the back-office business services 

provider for the new fiscal year, in order to prepare budget to actual reports. 
 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
Control Objective 
To ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of financial reporting to support decision making. 
 
Major Controls 

A. Schedule 
Monthly managerial reports are prepared based on a schedule. 
B. Review and Approval 
Financial reports are reviewed for accuracy and completeness. 
C. Audit 
The annual financial statements of the School are audited by a certified public accounting firm. 

 
Procedures 

1. The back-office business services provider prepares monthly budget vs. actual financial reports 
and cash flow projection for the Board of Directors meetings. 

  



 19 

 
2. The Charter School submits to an audit of its financial statements by a qualified certified public 

accounting firm, in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards 
3. The School shall automatically submit all financial reports required under Education Code 

Section 47604.33 and 47605(m). 
PAYROLL TAX COMPLIANCE 
 
Control Objective 
To accurately prepare and file required tax documents on a timely basis. 
 
Procedures 

1. The School maintains a schedule of required filing due dates for: 
A. IRS Form W-2 - Wage and Tax Statement. 
B. IRS Form W-3 - Transmittal of Income and Tax Statements. 
C. IRS Form 940 - Employer's Federal Unemployment (FUTA) Tax Return. 
D. IRS Form 941 - Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return for Federal Income Tax Withheld 

from Wages and FICA Taxes. 
E. IRS Form 1099 MISC (also 1099-DIV, 1099-INT, 1099-OID) - U.S. Annual 
F. Information Return for Recipients of Miscellaneous Income. 
G. Quarterly and annual state(s) unemployment tax return(s). 

 
2. Before submission, all payroll tax documents, and the supporting schedules are reviewed and 

approved by the back office business services provider for accuracy and completeness. 
 
 



Innovations Academy Board 

Adoption and Implementation of Multitudes Reading Screener 

Purpose 

In compliance with California Education Code Section 53008, this policy establishes the 

selection and utilization of a Reading Screener to identify students at risk of reading difficulties. 

The policy ensures adherence to state requirements and promotes early intervention to support 

student literacy. 

Policy Statement 

Innovations Academy is committed to identifying students at risk of reading difficulties at the 

earliest opportunity. In alignment with California Education Code Section 53008, a committee of 

school staff has reviewed screeners from the approved list by the Reading Difficulties Risk 

Screener Selection Panel (RDRSSP) and has selected to adopt and implement the Multitudes 

Reading Screener.  

Policy  

Professional Development: 

Professional Development shall be provided for teachers on the administration and interpretation 

of the Multitudes Reading Screener. 

1. Administration Protocol: 

The screener shall be administered to students in kindergarten through grade 2, as 

mandated by state law. 

Parents or guardians of students eligible for screening will be provided with information 

about the screening, including the date or dates of the screening and instructions for how 

they can opt out of the screening on behalf of their child, no later than 15 calendar days 

before the administration of the screener. 

 If a student enrolls for the first time in kindergarten or grades 1 or 2 after the screening 

instrument or instruments have been administered to all students in the given grade in that 

school year, the student  shall be assessed within 45 calendar days of enrollment, unless 

the student’s parent or guardian opts out of the screening in writing, or unless the parent 

or guardian or former school provides documentation that the student has had a similar 

screening in their prior school for their current grade and the parent or guardian was 

made aware of the results. 

The Multitudes Reading Screener shall not be considered an evaluation or diagnostic tool 

to establish eligibility for special education and related services pursuant to the federal 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.), or an 

evaluation to determine eligibility for a plan pursuant to Section 504 of the federal 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sec. 794). Additionally,  the reading screener  shall 



not be used to delay the child find process required under the federal Individuals with 

Disabilities Education Act. Additionally, the reading screener may be used to recommend 

that a student receive further screener and evaluation to establish eligibility for special 

education and related services or to determine eligibility for a plan pursuant to Section 

504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

2. Data Collection and Analysis: 

Innovations Academy shall collect and analyze screener data to identify students at risk 

of reading difficulties. The screener shall not be considered an evaluation or diagnostic 

tool to establish eligibility for special education and related services pursuant to the 

federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.), or an 

evaluation to determine eligibility for a plan pursuant to Section 504 of the federal 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sec. 794). However, the screener administered 

shall not be used to delay the child find process required under the federal Individuals 

with Disabilities Education Act. Additionally, the screener may be used to recommend 

that a student receive further assessment and evaluation to establish eligibility for special 

education and related services, or to determine eligibility for a plan pursuant to Section 

504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

Results from the screener administered pursuant to this section shall be made available to 

the student’s parent or guardian no more than 45 calendar days from the date the 

assessment was administered. These results shall include information about how to 

interpret the results, as well as the next steps should any need to be taken. 

3. Intervention Strategies: 

Based on screener results, we will implement targeted interventions to support students 

identified as at risk. 

Monitoring and Reporting 

1. Progress Monitoring: 

We will regularly monitor the progress of students receiving interventions to assess the 

effectiveness of strategies implemented. 

Compliance 

We will ensure that all practices related to the selection, implementation, and use of the 

Multitudes Reading Screener comply with California Education Code Section 53008 and any 

other applicable state and federal regulations. 

Review and Revision 

This policy shall be reviewed and revised as necessary to ensure continued compliance with state 

requirements and to incorporate best practices in early literacy intervention. 

Adoption Date: [Insert Date] 

 



CL-500  7/2023 Page 1 of 4 

State of California 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
Certification Division 
1900 Capitol Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95811-4213 

Email: credentials@ctc.ca.gov 
Website: www.ctc.ca.gov 

DECLARATION OF NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS 

  Original Declaration of Need for year: _____________  

  Revised Declaration of Need for year: _____________  

FOR SERVICE IN A SCHOOL DISTRICT OR DISTRICT/COUNTY AUTHORIZED CHARTER SCHOOL 

Name of District or Charter: District CDS Code: 

Name of County: County CDS Code: 

By submitting this annual declaration, the district is certifying the following: 

• A diligent search, as defined below, to recruit a fully prepared teacher for the assignment(s) was made

• If a suitable fully prepared teacher is not available to the school district, the district will make a reasonable effort
to recruit based on the priority stated below

The governing board/body of the school district or charter school specified above adopted a declaration at a regularly 
scheduled public meeting held on ____/____/____ certifying that there is an insufficient number of certificated persons 
who meet the district's specified employment criteria for the position(s) listed on the attached form.  The attached form 
was part of the agenda, and the declaration did NOT appear as part of a consent calendar.   

 Enclose a copy of the board agenda item
With my signature below, I verify that the item was acted upon favorably by the board.  The declaration shall remain in
force until June 30, _________.

Submitted by (Superintendent, Board Secretary, or Designee): 

 ___________________________________   ___________________________________   ____________________________________  
 Name Signature  Title 

 ___________________________________  ____________________________________  ____________________________________  
Fax Number   Telephone Number  Date 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Mailing Address 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
EMail Address 

FOR SERVICE IN A COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, STATE AGENCY OR NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AGENCY

Name of County _______________________________________________________  County CDS Code __________________  

Name of State Agency ________________________________________________________________________________________  

Name of NPS/NPA ______________________________________________________  County of Location __________________ 

2025-2026

Innovations Academy 68338-0118083

San Diego 37

6 25 2024

2025

Christine Kuglen Director

858-271-1418 858-271-1414 06/25/2024

5454 Ruffin Road San Diego, CA 92123

christine@innovationsacademy.org

Christine Kuglen
Inserted Text
3



CL-500 6/2021 Page 2 of 4 

The Superintendent of the County Office of Education or the Director of the State Agency or the Director of the NPS/NPA 
specified above adopted a declaration on ____/____/____, at least 72 hours following his or her public announcement 
that such a declaration would be made, certifying that there is an insufficient number of certificated persons who meet 
the county's, agency's or school's specified employment criteria for the position(s) listed on the attached form. 

The declaration shall remain in force until June 30, _________. 

 Enclose a copy of the public announcement
Submitted by Superintendent, Director, or Designee:

 ___________________________________   ___________________________________   ____________________________________  
Name Signature Title 

 ___________________________________   ___________________________________   ____________________________________  
 Fax Number    Telephone Number   Date 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Mailing Address 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
EMail Address 

 This declaration must be on file with the Commission on Teacher Credentialing before any emergency permits will be
issued for service with the employing agency

AREAS OF ANTICIPATED NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS 
Based on the previous year's actual needs and projections of enrollment, please indicate the number of emergency 
permits the employing agency estimates it will need in each of the identified areas during the valid period of this 
Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators.  This declaration shall be valid only for the type(s) and subjects(s) 
identified below.   

This declaration must be revised by the employing agency when the total number of emergency permits applied for 
exceeds the estimate by ten percent.  Board approval is required for a revision. 

Type of Emergency Permit 

CLAD/English Learner Authorization (applicant already 
holds teaching credential) 

Bilingual Authorization (applicant already holds teaching 
credential) 

List target language(s) for bilingual authorization: 

__________________________________________ 

Resource Specialist 

Teacher Librarian Services 

LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS 
Limited Assignment Permits may only be issued to applicants holding a valid California teaching credential based on a 
baccalaureate degree and a professional preparation program including student teaching. 

Emergency Transitional Kindergarten (ETK)

Estimated Number Needed 

 __________________________ 

 __________________________ 

 _________________________ 

 __________________________ 

_________________________

10

0

5
0

0



CL-500  7/2021 Page 3 of 4 

Based on the previous year’s actual needs and projections of enrollment, please indicate the number of Limited 
Assignment Permits the employing agency estimates it will need in the following areas. Additionally, for the Single 
Subject Limited Assignment Permits estimated, please include the authorization(s) which will be requested: 

TYPE OF LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMIT ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDED 

Multiple Subject 

Single Subject 

Special Education 

TOTAL 

Authorizations for Single Subject Limited Assignment Permits 

SUBJECT ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDED SUBJECT ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDED 

Agriculture 

Music Art 

Physical Education Business 

Science: Biological 
Sciences 

Dance 

Science: Chemistry English 

Science: Geoscience Foundational-Level 
Math

Science: Physics Foundational-Level 
Science

Social Science 
Health

Theater 

Mathematics 

World Languages
(specify)

Home Economics

Industrial & Technology 
Education 

3
3

3
9

0

1

0

0

2
2
2

0

0
0

2
0

0

2
0

0

0

0

0

0



CL-500  6/2021 Page 4 of 4 

EFFORTS TO RECRUIT CERTIFIED PERSONNEL 
The employing agency declares that it has implemented in policy and practices a process for conducting a diligent search 
that includes, but is not limited to, distributing job announcements, contacting college and university placement centers, 
advertising in local newspapers, exploring incentives included in the Teaching as a Priority Block Grant (refer to 
www.cde.ca.gov for details), participating in state and regional recruitment centers and participating in job fairs in 
California. 

If a suitable fully prepared teacher is not available to the school district, the district made reasonable efforts to recruit an 
individual for the assignment, in the following order: 

• A candidate who qualifies and agrees to participate in an approved internship program in the region of the school
district

• An individual who is scheduled to complete initial preparation requirements within six months

EFFORTS TO CERTIFY, ASSIGN, AND DEVELOP FULLY QUALIFIED PERSONNEL 

Has your agency established a District Intern program?  Yes   No 

If no, explain. ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Does your agency participate in a Commission-approved 
college or university internship program? 

 Yes   No 

If yes, how many interns do you expect to have this year? ________________________________________ 

If yes, list each college or university with which you participate in an internship program. 

______________________________________________________________________________________  

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

If no, explain why you do not participate in an internship program. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

We do not have the capacity as a small charter school

5

High Tech High Credentialing Program



 

Kiran Simma 
 

Sr. Software 
Development in Test 
Engineer 

 

Kiran Simma 
San Diego 

858.717.5180 
ksimma1@gmail.com 

ㅡ 

Summary 

 

A Senior Quality Assurance Engineer with over 14 years of 
experience in software testing and quality in the media 
streaming,OTT platform and medical device testing. Proven track 
record in developing and implementing effective test scripts, 
strategies and methodologies to ensure the delivery of 
high-quality software products. Strong experience in Agile 
development concepts, test automation, and test management 
tools. Extensive experience in testing mobile applications on a 
wide range of iOS and Android devices. Skilled in leading QA 
teams, mentoring junior testers, and collaborating with 
cross-functional teams to ensure that quality standards are met.  

 

Skills OTT, Kibana, SQL, Splunk, New Relic, Java Script, GO, Dynamic 
AD, Video On Demand, Live Streaming, KPI, Java Script, 
Node.js, python, cypress. 

ㅡ 

Experience 

 

FOX MEDIA/ Sr. SDET( Software Development Engineer In 
Test) 
April 2023 - Current 
Responsible for the development of backend services for Live 
and Video on Demand (VOD) for Fox streaming channels 

Developed a tool for a team in Python to parse the Adbeacons 
and Ad request Parameters of an DAI AD’s. 

Train multiple teams to use the tool that I developed. 
Operating in a fast-paced environment where backend services 
for live broadcasts and on-demand content are constantly being 
configured. 

Collaborating with various development teams to deliver 
successful live streams and on-demand content while 
coordinating production deployments across various teams. 

Writing and executing scripts in cypress, python on a regular 
basis to integrate into the CI/CD pipeline for running the 
automation regression tests.  

Using debugging tools like web inspect, charles proxy and 



chrome developer tools to understand the console and network 
logs for each request and response. 
DIRECTV/ Sr. Specialist Software Engineer 
August 2021 - January 2023 (1 year 6 months) 

Experience with monitoring KPIs and product analytics such as 
conviva, New Relic, Raptor, Splunk, Kibana (Elastic search)  

Extensive experience in testing DAI(Dynamic Ad insertions) for 
LIVE Channels, Video on Demand Assets for DirectvNow.  

Developed automation scripts for targeting the ads for Live 
channels using node.js in Appium framework. 

End to End testing of the app using multiple tools. 
Worked through the deployment cycles for Live channel 
launches. 

Debugging video manifest playlists using Charles proxy.  
Collaborating with third-party AD providers to ensure 100% ad 
playback. 

Involved in the troubleshooting and debugging of Sev 1 
production incidents. 

Train the interns who were hired during summers to execute the 
manual and automation regression tests. 

AT&T  / Software Specialist Test Engineer 

June 2016 - August 2021 (5 years 3 months) 

Worked on prestigious projects like Uverse, DirectvNow, 
WatchTv. 

Developed, tested, and executed automation scripts using 
GOLANG  

Experience with frontend content validation which involves 
client-side streaming platforms like TVOS, Android, iOS, Roku, 
Osprey, and Web browsers(safari, chrome, and firefox)  

Debugging and analyzing the logs for the various platforms.  

Microservices for User Management System connecting multiple 
third-party billing systems. 

Used Rest API for CRUD documents in Couchbase bucket.  

Monitored Live Sports like NFL Super Bowl along with operations 
teams to performance issues.  

Worked extensively on Video-on-demand, Asset management 
from different content providers.  

Experience with cloud-based technologies, like AWS and Azure, 
and testing practices on the same.  

Managed and worked with offshore teams to ensure the team’s 
success. 



 

Quickplay  
Software Quality Assurance Engineer (Lead)  
Jan 2012- June 2016( 4 years 6 months) 

Strong analytical and testing skills: ability to evaluate and test 
software, systems, and processes to identify any defects, bugs or 
errors.  

Strong attention to detail: thoroughly reviewed and tested the 
products and systems to ensure they meet the required quality 
standards.  

Agile methodologies: very familiar with Agile development 
methodologies and qualified to work effectively in an Agile 
environment. 

Strong problem-solving abilities: identified and troubleshoot 
issues that arose during the testing process.  

Test management tools: well versed with test management tools, 
such as JIRA, Zephyr, or TestRail, to track and manage defects, 
bugs, and issues.  

Knowledge of software development life cycle (SDLC): good 
understanding of the software development life cycle, including 
the testing phase, to ensure that quality standards are met 
throughout the development process. 

Created and maintained automated test scripts to ensure efficient 
testing and reduce manual testing efforts.  

Analyzed and troubleshoot complex technical issues and defects.  
Validation of the Client media player on various platforms.  
Worked closely with development and management teams to 
prioritize the defects and new features.  

Involved in new channel deployments and monitoring the metrics. 
 

 

 

 

Hospira 
/Quality Assurance Analyst  
May 2011 - December 2011 (8 months) 

 

Experience in running infusions on various pumps (Symbiq, Plum 
A, Plum A +3, & LifeCare PCA), Testing the functionality of the 
Infusion pumps. 

Creating drug libraries on DLE, finalizing and downloading the 
drug library to pump.  

Perform requirements testing of embedded medical device 
software and firmware and also perform manual testing 



procedures for web applications. 

Tested wireless and wired connectivity of infusers. Run queries, 
and retrieve and review logs from SQL databases.  

Adhere to FDA guidelines involving documentation practices and 
Standard Operating n Procedures.  

Responsible for running automated test scripts in the Worksoft 
CERTIFY FRAMEWORK.  

Used RHAPSODY HL7 interface for creating drugs.  
Used tools like DOORS (requirement management tool), 
DEVTRACK( BUG tracking tools.  

ㅡ 

Education 

 

Bachelor's  Degree ( Computer Science) 

  

 



Innovations Academy, LCAP Summary of Comparison of 2024 Final LCAP  and 2025 
Proposed LCAP 

1. Budget and Financials 

• 2025 Plan includes updated budget projections: 

o Total revenue: $7,095,182 

o LCFF funds: $5,075,222 (with $371,064 from high-needs students) 

o Planned LCAP expenditures: $6,721,022 

o Targeted spending on high-needs students: $372,000 

• The 2024 Plan lacks these specific financial breakdowns and includes placeholder 
"Not Applicable" entries in expenditure analyses, suggesting some sections were 
either incomplete or not finalized. 

 

2. Student Performance Data 

• 2025 Plan includes updated CAASPP data: 

o Math performance dropped significantly across all subgroups from the prior 
year. 

o ELA scores declined slightly. 

o There’s a newly detailed science performance section with comparisons to 
district and state. 

o English Language Learners (ELPAC): Major progress from 8.3% to 84.6% 
showing level advancement. 

• 2024 Plan reported steady year-over-year gains (especially in ELA) without 
showing the 2024-25 decline captured in the 2025 Plan. 

 

3. Chronic Absenteeism 

• 2025 Plan reports a chronic absenteeism rate of 13.0% (up from 11.7% in 2022-23). 

• The 2024 Plan shows concern over a sharp increase between 2021-22 and 2022-23 
but does not yet report the 2023-24 data. 

 

4. Goal Implementation and Analysis 



Innovations Academy, LCAP Summary of Comparison of 2024 Final LCAP  and 2025 
Proposed LCAP 

• The 2025 Plan provides in-depth analyses of goals, implementation fidelity, and 
outcomes—including teacher collaboration, intervention tracking, and software use 
for monitoring. 

• 2024 Plan includes placeholders like “Not Applicable” under analysis sections, 
indicating either a planning stage or absence of finalized data at the time of writing. 

 

5. New or Enhanced Initiatives (2025) 

• Added emphasis on: 

o Software tools for managing student interventions. 

o Using high-performing teachers to support lower-performing classrooms. 

o More detailed tracking and refinement of social-emotional learning 
outcomes. 

• The 2024 Plan refers generally to planned strategies and goals but lacks specifics on 
tools, implementation outcomes, or adjustments. 

 

6. Educational Partner Engagement 

• Both years document similar partner engagement, but the 2025 Plan includes 
specific dates for meetings, survey results, and feedback implementation (e.g., 
student feedback on advisory periods, parent feedback on report cards). 

• The 2024 Plan includes input themes but with fewer specifics. 

 

7. Goals and Metrics 

• The goals themselves are consistent between years, but: 

o 2025 Plan offers current-year data, reflections, and proposed changes. 

o 2024 Plan largely sets up the structure and targets, often with “Not 
Applicable” in sections requiring outcome data. 

 



Innovations Academy LCAP Comparison: 2024 vs. 2025 
Category 2024 LCAP 2025 LCAP 
Document Status Planning-focused with 

many "Not Applicable" 
placeholders in analysis 
sections. 

Full implementation report 
with outcomes, analysis, 
and updates. 

Total Revenue Not specified in full. $7,095,182 total revenue. 
 - LCFF: $5,075,222 
 - Other state: $1,283,064 
 - Local: $200,000 
 - Federal: $165,832 

High-Needs Student 
Funding 

Not specified in dollar 
amount. 

$371,064 received; 
$372,000 budgeted for 
targeted actions. 

CAASPP Performance Shows upward trend 
(2020–2023) in Math & 
ELA; no 2024-25 data 
reported. 

Drop in 2024 scores, 
especially in Math: 
 - Math: from 57.82% to 
45.05% 
 - ELA: from 69.28% to 
61.09% 

Science & ELPAC Data Not included. New detailed sections: 
 - Science: 52.38% 
meet/exceed 
 - ELPAC growth: from 8.3% 
to 84.6% 

Chronic Absenteeism Last reported rate: 11.7% 
(2022–23) 

2023–24 rate: 13.0%, with 
district/state comparisons 

Goal Analysis Most sections marked "Not 
Applicable" for 
implementation and 
effectiveness. 

Fully completed analyses 
including budget variances, 
instructional reflections, 
and proposed refinements. 

Software Use for 
Intervention 

Not mentioned. Plans to acquire new 
software for managing 
interventions and support 
coordination. 

Teacher Support Strategy General professional 
development referenced. 

New focus on using high-
performing teachers as peer 
mentors for struggling 
classrooms. 

Parent & Student Feedback General themes 
summarized. 

Specific input used to refine 
report cards, field trip 
systems, and advisory 
structure. 

Behavior and SEL Metrics Baseline SEL survey data 
from Sept. 2023. 

Year-over-year SEL metrics 
showing declines in some 
areas (e.g., self-awareness -



15%), and targets set for 
recovery. 

Middle School Restructure Not mentioned. New plan to assign two 
subject areas per teacher to 
deepen rigor and attract 
candidates. 

Incident Tracking Not discussed. New system/software for 
behavioral incident tracking 
and collaboration follow-up. 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 1 of 79 

 

 
  

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Innovations Academy 
CDS Code: 37683380118083 
School Year: 2025-26 
LEA contact information: 
Christine Kuglen 
Director 
christine@innovationsacademy.org 
858-271-1414 
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs 
and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enrollment of high 
needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 

Budget Overview for the 2025-26 School Year 

 
This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Innovations Academy expects to receive in the coming year 

from all sources. 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 2 of 79 

The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Innovations Academy is 
$7,095,182, of which $5,075,222 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $1,283,064 is other state funds, 
$200,000 is local funds, and $165,832 is federal funds.  Of the $5,075,222 in LCFF Funds, $371,064 is 
generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income 
students). 
  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 3 of 79 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
 
The charts in the Budget Overview for Parents are automatically generated based on your updates in the input form of 
the standalone template in DTS. There is no need to insert images. 

 
Please contact DTS if you would like support with overlapping labels. Thank you! 

 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school districts 
must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 
 

 
This chart provides a quick summary of how much Innovations Academy plans to spend for 2025-26. It shows 

how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: Innovations Academy plans to spend $6,721,022 for the 
2025-26 school year. Of that amount, $ is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $ is not included in the LCAP. 
The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 
 
 
 

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2025-26 
School Year 

 
In 2025-26, Innovations Academy is projecting it will receive $371,064 based on the enrollment of foster youth, 
English learner, and low-income students. Innovations Academy must describe how it intends to increase or 
improve services for high needs students in the LCAP.  Innovations Academy plans to spend $372,000 towards 
meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP. 
 
 
 
  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 4 of 79 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2024-25 

 
This chart compares what Innovations Academy budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and services that 

contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Innovations Academy estimates 
it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students in 

the current year. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2024-25, Innovations Academy's LCAP budgeted 
$371,064 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Innovations Academy 
actually spent $ for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2024-25. 
 
 
The difference between the budgeted and actual expenditures of $ had the following impact on Innovations 
Academy’s ability to increase or improve services for high needs students: 
 
        
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 5 of 79 

 
 

Local Control and Accountability Plan 
 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Innovations Academy            Christine Kuglen           

Director 
christine@innovationsacademy.org           
858-271-1414 

 

Plan Summary [2025-26] 
 
General Information 
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. LEAs may also provide 
information about their strategic plan, vision, etc. 
 

Innovations Academy is a K-8 public charter school whose charter was written to establish a school in which hands on, experiential, 
interactive high quality learning was accessible to all learners within an environment that respects the interconnected academic and social 
emotional needs of all learners. Innovations Academy opened our doors in September 2008 and was relocated four times in our first five 
years. We remained stable for 9 years in Scripps Ranch and finally moved into our forever home in August of 2020, in the midst of the 
pandemic. Our new facility, in Kearny Mesa, was built according to our needs and goals. During the 24-25 school year the students of 
Innovations Academy were a diverse population drawing from over 50 different zip codes throughout San Diego County. The student 
population is comprised of approximately 24% special education students, 35% FRL, and many working class families of all backgrounds that 
are facing increasing economic hardship due to the high cost of living in San Diego. Many rely heavily on the support of extended family even 
when they don't qualify as low income. 
 
Following a constructivist philosophy, our community is comprised of families that see value in both interactive learning and a strong social 
emotional curriculum. The diversity of personalities, abilities, religions, family cultures and practices, world views and ethnicities creates an 
environment in which we experience a rich mix of viewpoints daily. As open minded constructivist educators, we believe that every student 
brings background, context, skills and knowledge to their education and the learning environment. Additionally, our job is to help students 
construct their learning by providing experiences that provoke thought and invite action for learning. We believe that each person's journey is 
unique to them and is practically immeasurable. Our goal is to facilitate learning along that journey. Post pandemic and due to increasing 
inappropriate use of technology by children, we have added emphasis in helping students build focus and motivation while also developing 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#PlanSummary
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#generalinformation


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 6 of 79 

skills of self-regulation and resilience. Our social emotional program, which has been an integral part of our program since 2008 has allowed 
us to continue to address the rise of mental health conditions in students. 
 
As a single school charter, we have integrated our SPSA into our LCAP.  By doing this we are better able to align the programs and services 
funded by both state and federal funds into one cohesive program that serves the needs of all our students and student groups. 
 
The testing and data culture that has been created over the past 25 years has been destructive to both schools and children and it persists. It 
comes with an underlying belief system that gathering data through standardized testing will somehow make working with children less 
complicated or automate the learning process for all. Education across our country has been tasked with doing everything for everyone. Not 
only are we expected to provide a solid academic education, we are expected to feed, establish value systems, worry about how parents are 
parenting, provide before and after school care and according to our own CDE be vigilant for them from "cradle to career," something that in 
the past was the role of parents and extended family. We don't think that is the answer and we provide parent education to empower parents 
to be parents and not to rely on an education system for what should be family responsibilities and honor. Schools have always struggled 
with addressing the needs of children who are coming from diverse families, parenting skill levels, socio-economic situations etc. and the 
bureaucracy has not yet realized that schools can't fix all of that, especially in a one to three year span. Children are not data points, they are 
individuals, each with unique variables (such as unique timelines, readiness and life factors) contributing to their learning, their decisions and 
their educational experiences. The skills of collaboration and teamwork, creativity and imagination, deep critical thinking and problem solving 
are firmly rooted in our program, embedded with content learning. How we teach is profoundly different than the typical public school and is 
nearly impossible to measure. 
 
How we interact is also different. Our behavior management is community centered and designed to promote doing the right thing when no 
one is looking. Our social emotional program is based on Adlerian theory and is the antithesis of what you would find in a traditional school 
environment, which is typically designed from a behaviorist based philosophy. The lack of extrinsic motivators is based on solid research 
about its destructive tendencies. How we assess whether or not our school has achieved its goals is crucial to determining the overall 
effectiveness of our program components and structure. Frequent and varied assessments, both summative and formative, provide insight to 
teachers when planning instruction and serve as relevant data for use by school leadership when making decisions leading to program 
evaluation and improvement. Regular assessment and reporting of student outcomes also allows parents, students and teachers the 
information needed to guide and decide the paths to take on the educational journey. 
 
Innovations Academy utilizes both traditional assessments, teacher-designed assessments and observation of students to continually review 
current levels and progress. Traditional assessments such as NWEA MAP assessment, writing rubrics, published curriculum and online 
resources are utilized alongside student inquiry-based learning and project work and peer evaluation. We are very aware that no single 
assessment, especially standardized, statewide or nationwide assessments can define the skills, knowledge or academic level of a student 
and that there are many very different ways that a demonstration of learning can and should look. Most important is that a student knows 
their strengths and challenges and builds fortitude for their own long educational journey. 
 
Innovations Academy students are required to earn the same content, standards and skills as all other students but how we do it is 
wonderful. At Innovations Academy we are dedicated to inquiry, deep project work, experiences and hands-on exploration. Our students 
wonder, build, discuss, debate, perform, create, interact, research, defend, cut, color, draw, paint, challenge, diagnose, interview, speak, 
determine and explore in collaboration with each other and the real world. We have stayed true to these values through recessions, a 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 7 of 79 

pandemic, four location changes and the overexposure to technology of our students. We provide the resources, guidance and expertise as 
adults who are further along in the journey. 
 
Innovations Academy is dedicated to our mission of supporting students to powerfully create their lives through self-expression, 
compassionate connection and purposeful learning. 
 
         

 
 
Reflections: Annual Performance 
 

A reflection on annual performance based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
 

Innovations Academy's 2024 California School Dashboard reflects achievements and successes across various categories. In 2023 we were 
given status as a California Distinguished school  for our elementary program. The California Dashboard, which is based on CAASPP scores 
alone, reflects several data points: 
English Language Arts 
-- IA student test scores are higher for English Language Arts than Mathematics. 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for ELA on the CAASPP statewide testing (61.09%) is higher than the local 
district (SDUSD)scores (54.22%) 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for ELA on the CAASPP statewide testing (61.09%) is higher than the state 
scores (47.04%) 
 
Math 
--IA Math scores dropped. We need to attend to this point and determine interventions to shift this. 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for Math on the CAASPP statewide testing (45.05%) is higher than the local 
district (SDUSD)scores (43.89%) 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for Math on the CAASPP statewide testing (45.05%) is higher than the state 
scores (35.54%) 
 
Science 
--Only .95% (less than 1%) of IA students failed to meet standard in Science on the CAASPP statewide tests given to 5th and 8th graders 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for Science on the CAASPP statewide testing (52.38%) is higher than the 
local district (SDUSD) scores (37.78%) 
--The percentage of IA students who meet or exceed standards for Science on the CAASPP statewide testing (52.38%) is higher than the 
state scores (30.7%) 
 
English Language Learners and the ELPAC 
-- The percentage of English Language Learner students who progressed at least one level went from 8.3% to 84.6%. Two years ago 100% 
of students fell into a category of staying on the same level. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#Reflections
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#Reflections


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 8 of 79 

Chronic Absenteeism has been an issue for Innovations Academy since the pandemic. We are not unique to this post pandemic trend and 
we will be continuing to set goals to make improvement in this area. The continuing increase in our chronic absenteeism is concerning. 
Though our percentage is lower than our authorizing district and the state we intend to remain vigilant for improvement. 
Chronic Absenteeism 
Year               Innovations    District   State 
 
2023-2024 13.0%          21.4%    18.9% 
 
         

 

Reflections: Technical Assistance 
 

As applicable, a summary of the work underway as part of technical assistance. 
 

Innovations Academy is not required to participate in technical assistance.         
 
Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
 

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
 

Schools Identified 
 

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 
 

Innovations Academy is not designated as a school receiving Comprehensive Support and Improvement         
 

Support for Identified Schools 
 

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 
 

N/A         
 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
 

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 
 

N/A         
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#Reflections
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#CSI
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#SchoolsIdentified
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#SupportforIdentifiedSchools
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MonitoringandEvaluatingEffectiveness


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 9 of 79 

Engaging Educational Partners 
 

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners in the development of the LCAP. 
 
School districts and county offices of education must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, 
local bargaining units, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP. 
 
Charter schools must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in the 
development of the LCAP. 
 
An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the 
development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school. 
 

Educational Partner(s) Process for Engagement 
          

Teachers/staff           Meetings: 
January 5th, 9:05am, 10:15am, 11:25am 
January 5th, 1:00pm 
January 7th, 2:15 
 
 

Administrators         Meeting: 
December 17th, 1:00pm 
May 6th, 1:00pm 
 

Parents, Families and Communities Members         Parent Advisory Committee: 
Meeting November 14th, 2:00 pm 
Meeting January 16th, 2:00 pm 
Survey March 14th 
 
LCAP Board Presentation with input: 
May 13, 2025 
 
English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) 
January 24th 
 

Students, Staff and Parents         Surveys: 
 
September 2024 
School Climate Survey 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#EEP


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 10 of 79 

Educational Partner(s) Process for Engagement 
          

 
May 2025 
School Climate Survey 
Parent LCAP Input Survey 
Staff LCAP Input Survey 
 

 
A description of how the adopted LCAP was influenced by the feedback provided by educational partners. 
 

The input of educational partners was used to revise and/or refocus actions, to make updates, and to help us decide how to break up a goal 
into more understandable parts.  
 
Teachers/staff: 

• Input from teachers included requests for a large variety of trainings including project training and how to use data from our data 
management software. 

• Areas of improvement mentioned by teachers includes parent education about how to communicate effectively with teachers and 
organization of the large and varied amount of resources on campus. 

In the 24-25 school year, teachers expressed a need to understand accountability without punishment, a desire for teacher planning time to 
be evenly distributed, to work on new ways to implement advisory time in middle school, to figure out the sound system volume adjustments 
in class and a renewed desire to decrease absences in their classes. 
 
Parents/Community: 

• Input from parents reflected an overall satisfaction with the school, the environment, and the academic successes. 
• Areas of improvement that were mentioned most often centered around: 
• attendance improvement, and the need for a notification system 
• rigor and consistency in the 6-8 program 
• engaging with parents to educate them about our program 
• a desire to know more about what is going on in the classrooms, both academically and relating to SEL, so families can engage and 

help their children to support their success 
• suggestions were made about explaining the reasons for standardized testing 
• Social emotional resilience 
• looking at alternatives such as student teachers or interns to increase staff 
• Parents are adjusting to a new report card this year and have asked for more effective communication about these changes. 

In the 24-25 school year, Parents expressed a need to understand our new report card system, to have a platform that would help them view 
their child's progress, to have phones consistently answered during the school day, to understand how fundraisers and field trip payments 
support each other, to have a payment system for field trips that is more user friendly. 
 
Students: 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 11 of 79 

• The majority of students requested more activities, outside time, and PE time in the coming year. 
• Students like the field trips, explorations and electives. There were also comments about liking the environment and believing that 

the staff cares about the students. 
In the 24-25 school year, students expressed appreciation for the field trips, explorations and electives. They also worked effectively in 
Middle School Cafe time. Students in middle school expressed confusion about advisory.  
 
 

 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 12 of 79 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
1 Use academic assessment data to improve instruction for all students and provide targeted 

intervention for struggling students. 
 
         

Focus Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

We were in the green and blue section on the dashboard due to academic test scores for the 22-23 school year. Due to these dashboard 
improvements from previous years, we feel it is important to have a goal that continues our focus on maintaining or slightly increasing our 
scores. We will continue to refine and implement actions that we had created previously because those actions were successful in helping 
our students achieve the metrics that we had set out to achieve. We hope to adjust the action items so that we challenge and push our 
students even more specifically based on assessments so we can better target the areas of need. 
The following areas were successful and we hope to implement with slight adjustments: 

• The cohesive assessment plan has been instrumental to the increase in student performance. We hope to adjust our in house 
assessments in order to be consistent with the type of assessments throughout the school year rather than just at the start and the 
end of the school year. We used feedback from teachers in order to address the most important of student needs so we can be 
consistent in assessing progress across our school campus. 

• We want to continue to utilize IABs and previous year's CAASPP scores to analyze progress and isolate gaps. This will lead to a 
comprehensive plan of next steps for teachers. When we're not looking at these forms of assessment, we'll have teachers utilize in-
house assessments that address the areas seen on CAASPP tests to target specific learning goals. 

• Holding one collaborative meeting a month to analyze assessments was successful in gauging where student needs are. We will 
continue to use this time to track student progress and brainstorm supports to best meet the needs of students based on these 
particular assessments. 

• Our current intervention plan has been successful but we will work on adjusting this process so that teachers utilize more whole 
class and small group interventions to best support their students. We will incorporate a more structured protocol for identifying and 
tracking student needs in one central location so that there is transparency in needs across all support providers. 

 
Our school recognizes the importance of providing targeted support to students who require support and challenge in all population groups. 
Our staff emphasized the significance of equipping our team with the knowledge and transparency in what's going on in each classroom and 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 13 of 79 

offering ample opportunities for staff to collaborate and brainstorm supports and challenges for students based on assessment data.  
 

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               1.1 % of grade 3-8 students 
meeting/ exceeding 
standards on the Math 
SBAC        

2022-2023 School Year 
Schoolwide: 57.82% 
Hispanic: 47.54% 
SED: 78.95% 
SWD: 59.70% 
White: 60.00% 
 
 

2023-2024 School 
Year 
Schoolwide: 
45.05% 
Hispanic: 40.57% 
SED: 32.97% 
SWD: 39.48% 
White: 48.51% 
 

 Schoolwide: 62% 
Hispanic: 52% 
SED: 80% 
SWD: 62% 
White: 65% 
 

Schoolwide: 
16.95% 
Hispanic: 11.43% 
SED: 47.03% 
SWD: 22.52% 
White: 16.49% 
 

1.2 % of grade 2-8 students 
meeting/exceeding 
grade level norms on 
NWEA MAP 
Mathematics 
assessment        

2023-2024 School Year 
Schoolwide: 60.4% 
Hispanic: 54.0% 
Other: 65.7% 
 
 

MAP test in 
progress. WIll 
update in June 

 Schoolwide: 65.0% 
Hispanic: 57.0% 
Other: 67.0% 
 

TBD in June 2025 

1.3 % of grade 3-8 students 
meeting/ exceeding 
standards on the ELA 
SBAC        

2022-2023 School Year 
Schoolwide: 69.28% 
Hispanic: 63.34% 
SED: 68.42% 
SWD: 68.18% 
White: 74.00% 
 
 

2023-2024 School 
year 
Schoolwide: 
61.09% 
Hispanic: 65.22% 
SED: 51.64% 
SWD: 50% 
White: 64.18% 
 

 Schoolwide: 72.0% 
Hispanic: 66.0% 
SED: 71.0% 
SWD: 71.0% 
White: 77.0% 
 

Schoolwide: 
10.91% 
Hispanic:.78 % 
SED: 19.36% 
SWD: 21% 
White: 12.82% 
 

1.4 % of grade 2-8 students 
meeting/exceeding 
grade level norms on 
NWEA MAP Reading 
assessment        

2023-2024 School Year 
Schoolwide: 74% 
Hispanic: 71% 
Other: 75% 
 
 

MAP test in 
progress. Will 
update in June 

 Schoolwide: 77.0% 
Hispanic: 75.0% 
Other: 78.0% 
 

TBD in June 2025 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 14 of 79 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Our assessment plan was carried out in full. At times it feels like an overkill in assessment, which may need to be modified in time. Our 
scores on the assessments slipped from 23-24 to 24-25 year especially in math. We will be exploring this drop in the 25-26 school year.         

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

We spent more on these goals than initially planned. We provided a significant amount of additional staff to support struggling students. We 
also spent more time than anticipated reviewing data as our scores had unpredictably dropped, especially in math. As our number of special 
education assessments increased, this created an increased demand for services as well.         

 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

We do not have the assessment data yet from the state to determine if the 24-25 plan was effective in improving test scores. Our scores 
dropped from the 22-23 year to the 23-24 year. We feel that we need to more closely monitor the instructional interventions for teachers and 
the learning interventions for students. We also need to better leverage our high scoring teachers to support the classrooms whose overall 
scores are lower. For the 24-25 year, we experienced a more calm assessment period as all teachers are working on a coordinated 
schedule. The assessment data was shared with teachers throughout the year. This guaranteed an awareness on the part of teachers about 
their students and an ability to make a plan. We also had ample staff in classrooms providing support to students.         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

We have decided to acquire a software that helps with the management of interventions and the flow of work involved with those 
interventions. This will impact both instructional practice intervention support for teachers and academic intervention support for students. 
This will also help decrease interruptions due to changes in positions of support staff throughout the year. We would also like to target 
intervention for teachers using other teachers with stronger instructional strategies.         

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             1.1 Streamlined 

Assessment Plan        
2023-24 We will continue to implement our current assessment plan which 
specifies implementation of the following assessments; NWEA Map, 

$9,000.00 No      
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 15 of 79 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             CAASPP, IABs, Dibels, Spelling Inventory, Writing Assessment, Math 

Facts Fluency and our SEL survey. We will continue to assess students at 
the beginning and end of year following this plan. Teachers will be required 
to give 2 IABs per month (one for math and one for ELA) beginning in 
January to prepare students for the CAASPP - a total of 6 IABs will be 
given. We will also create benchmark mini-assessments for teachers to 
utilize in their classrooms once a month so we can monitor progress more 
closely. This plan will also include structured testing times and designate 
students to test with specified staff members. The costs associate with this 
might include NWEA, Spellography curriculum, OTUS for processing the 
SEL data, and potentially paying a staff member to develop new writing 
assessments, score assessments or manage data. 
 
 
 
 

1.2 Support for Academic 
Instruction        

2024-25 We will analyze our CAASPP and MAP data by the end of 
September for any trends. We will use our other in-house assessment data 
to find patterns and areas of need. Based on the areas of identified need, 
we will tailor professional development  in staff meetings and collaboration 
meetings to give all teachers the tools to best support their students in 
addressing these deficits. We will also seek professional development for 
teachers whose practices excel student growth to help facilitate mentorship 
within the school. The costs associated with this actions might involve 
curriculum resources, stipends, outside trainers, software for assessment 
analysis and NWEA. We will provide professional development to continue 
to unify our staff around our mission. 
 
 
 
 

$17,000.00 No      
X 
 

1.3 Data Analysis, 
Reflection and 
Tracking        

2024-25 We will hold one collaborative meeting each month (August to 
March) that will be specifically designated for analyzation of student work, 
assessments, formative assessments and classroom observation data. 
Data gathered will be used to create a plan for improvement. Teachers will 
track this progress and create action items for students in a shared 
document that will be updated weekly. Teachers will have access to 
support staff, resources, trainings and other support providers in order to 

$81,000.00 Yes     
X 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 16 of 79 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             address the concerns highlighted on their tracking document. The EL and 

Title 1 coordinator will be involved and specifically tracking services and 
progress for students in these communities. Each quarter, students who 
have not made progress will be given an individual plan through the SST 
process. The associated costs for this might include staff support for 
tracking and monitoring, SST coordinator costs, support staff costs, 
developing or purchasing resources to support specific student needs. 
 
 

1.4 Intervention Plans        2024-25 We will create opportunities during August professional 
development and once a month for teachers to review and learn 
intervention strategies and techniques that should be used with students 
who are not achieving at grade level. These strategies and techniques will 
be tracked in the weekly data tracker to show actions and steps taken 
towards supporting students. Students who do not meet academic goals or 
show some improvement will be recommended to start the SST process. 
The associated costs that this action item might occur will be paying the 
SST coordinator, developing and collecting resources for intervention, and 
paying outside support providers to offer professional development for 
teachers. 
 
 

$111,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 17 of 79 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
2 All students will be engaged in academically challenging, inquiry-based learning within classrooms 

effectively managed by highly qualified teachers using intentionally designed behavioral 
interventions and supports. 
 
         

Broad Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

The foundational philosophy of our school is that hands-on, interactive, inquiry is the most developmentally appropriate way for students to 
learn. We also know that teachers are at the core of student outcomes, school progress and climate. We pride ourselves on offering ample 
opportunities of support for teachers in their teaching practice in the areas of student engagement, classroom management, inquiry based 
learning and dealing with difficult behaviors by seeking solutions for developing happy and healthy students. We apply research based 
practices to interventions and thrive and grow as a community by providing opportunities for teacher, TA and other support staff  input. By 
creating  and aligning structures that are consistent across all grade levels, our students and teachers will benefit in every way.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               2.1 Percentage of teachers 
that are appropriately 
credentialed for the 
students they are 
assigned to teach.        

100% of classroom 
teachers hold a multiple 
subject teaching 
credential. 
75% of enrichment 
teachers hold a specific 
area credential 
 
 

100% of classroom 
teachers hold a 
multiple subject 
teaching credential 
or 2 single subject 
teaching 
credentials. 
85% of enrichment 
teachers hold a 

 100% of classroom 
and enrichment 
teachers hold a 
credential in their 
area of 
assignment. 

0% We are 
currently 
maintaining our 
fully credentialed 
teacher status. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 18 of 79 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               specific area 
credential. 
 

2.2 Percentage of Students 
with Disabilities who are 
in the general education 
program at least 80% of 
the instructional day.        

100% of students with 
disabilities are in the 
general education 
program over 80% if the 
instructional day 

100% of students 
with disabilities are 
in the general 
education program 
over 80% of the 
instructional day. 

 100% of students 
with disabilities are 
in the general 
education program 
over 85% if the 
instructional day 

0% We are 
currently 
maintaining our 
goal of learning 
through inclusion 
such that our 
students with 
disabilities are 
learning in the 
classroom over 
80% of the time. 

2.3 Suspension rate        0.2% schoolwide 
suspension rate 

0.2% schoolwide 
suspension rate 

 0% schoolwide 
suspension rate 

0.2% difference. 

2.4 Expulsion rate        0% schoolwide 
expulsion rate 

0% schoolwide 
expulsion rate 

 0% schoolwide 
expulsion rate 

0% We have never 
expelled a student. 

2.5 Percentage of students 
who feel connected/part 
of their school        

According to the 
September 2023 in 
house Social Emotional 
Survey: 
62% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 
social awareness 
category 
57% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 
responsible decision 
making category 
50% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 
self awareness 
category 
51% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 

According to the 
September 2024 in 
house SEL Survey 
57% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the social 
awareness 
category 
56% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the 
responsible 
decision making 
category 
35% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the self 

 Based on SEL 
survey: 
70% of students 
score 80% or 
higher in the social 
awareness 
category 
65% of students 
score 80% or 
higher in the 
responsible 
decision making 
category 
60% of students 
score 80% or 
higher in the self 
awareness 
category 

Social 
Awareness=-5% 
from baseline 
Decision Making= 
-1% from baseline 
Self Awareness= -
15% from baseline 
Relationship 
Skills= 6% from 
baseline 
Self Management= 
-8% from baseline 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 19 of 79 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               relationship skills 
category 
57% of students scored 
80% or higher in the 
self management 
category. 
 

awareness 
category 
45% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the 
relationship skills 
category 
49% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the self 
management 
category. 
 

60% of students 
score 80% or 
higher in the 
relationship skills 
category 
65% of students 
scored 80% or 
higher in the self 
management 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Overall, this goal was very successful in it's implementation. We were able to carry out our action items with general success and have been 
able to get the staff involved in analyzing our success and processes that surround each action item. We were able to gather a lot more data 
this year on student behaviors using our incident tracking software program. It helped with creating more transparency throughout the school 
on what is happening and where it's happening. This has allowed our administration, special education team, and general education team to 
connect and stay on the same page. We also have a document where teachers are entering the different supports and concerns that they're 
seeing both academically and behaviorally in a shared tracking tool so that we can go back and see what actions have been done in order to 
support students who are flagged as needing more support. Although this was immensely more successful than our previous year, the 
consistency with which teachers were entering this information into the software greatly decreased at the end of the year. 
We made strides with becoming more consistent in our grading policies across grade bands. All teachers have successfully implemented 
one-point rubrics that have helped their grading be more objective, allowing for more clarity for parents and students. We also have been 
consistently putting student work into portfolios where the grades can be tied directly back to student work. Although it was a difficult process 
to learn, our staff has grown more comfortable over the school year with the new system and we have experienced success in cross grade 
communication and an understanding about how grading can be more objective. We had some difficulties in figuring out how to adapt this 
method to some of our enrichment classes, but have been working with staff to develop strategies that work for their particular course that 
also meets the goal of the grading system. Parents were confused by the new report card system. We are addressing that confusion by 
providing explanations in our weekly communications and making portfolio work more clear. We also found that more work needed to be 
included to ensure that the points were not unfairly weighted for any given assignment. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 20 of 79 

Our middle school redesign has also gone incredibly well. Our teachers in our middle school took on the task of the redesign and were very 
successful in creating a system that works within our setting, while also meeting the needs of the staff and students. We were able to utilize 
cafe time to create independent students who can complete and track their own work, our teachers had less planning to do and could focus 
on two subject areas with more depth, and our students feel much more united than any other year before. This was measured by student 
complaints in middle school about students in other grade levels. A noted decrease was experienced. There have been some challenges 
along the way with this restructuring, but we were able to work through these as a team in order to adjust and shift everything to best meet 
the objectives of quality instruction for students. 
         

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

On three out of the four goals we spent less than expected. We have still not found the best way to track incidences as we would like. We did 
not spend the anticipated funds on this though we did spend a lot of time on it and our tracking improved. Our report card efforts exhausted a 
lot of energy but not necessarily funds. The only category in which our spending far exceeded our anticipated expenditure was the middle 
school redesign. This was in part due to the amount of furniture and materials we purchased to create the cafe environment. The outcome 
was successful and we are celebrating success with our cafe.         

 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Action 2.1 was effective  .We were able to gather incident data that helped us see patterns. We will continue to track this data but our plan is 
to acquire a software program that will help us capture more data and create consistent interventions for students who continue to be repeat 
offenders. The new system will be integrated with other data which will consolidate information for us. 2.2 The report card launch first 
semester informed us about the weak areas of our system but was welcomed by teachers as a system that will work for them 2.3 Our middle 
school redesign was effective. The elements of seminars, enrichment aligned with projects, cafe as well as the sharing of students between 
teachers consistently were all successful. The advisory was functional but we would like to create a specific list of topics prior to the start of 
the school year. 2.4 We have realized that changes in staff are inevitable when we work with a young staff whose journey is still unfolding for 
them. We would like to see more of our staff noticing areas in which they would like to improve, taking ownership for improving their practice, 
speaking up about their needs and taking the support to make changes to their practice. We will continue to seek ways to do that.         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

For action 2.1, we will acquire a new software system that allows us to create a flow chart for interventions that helps us collect data about 
which interventions are working and track repeat offenders more effectively. 2.2. We launched our new report card system connected to 
portfolio work. We will continue to refine the grading system, the report card look and the communication with parents so they can better 
understand report card information.  2.3 We will refine the middle school redesign to make advisory topics more effective and to incorporate 
enrichment into science and social studies with more consistency and flow. 2.4 We realize that there will be more changes in teaching staff 
when we hire young teachers. We will continue to seek ways to gather data on performance and explore with teachers how to notice their 
needs and empower them to seek ongoing support and training provided to them. We will find ways to promote their own self reflection on 
the needs they have to improve instruction.         



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 21 of 79 

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             2.1 Incident Tracking 

Program        
2024-25 We will either create, purchase or utilize an already existing 
software so that staff can track behavioral incidents that occur in their 
classrooms and on the playground. We will insure that procedures for 
doing so are documented and that there is accountability for accurate and 
consistent documentation. We will provide a short period of time during 
each collaboration meeting for staff to update and communicate about any 
possible concerns. The associated costs that could accompany this action 
are paying a staff member to monitor tracking and follow up with 
teachers/staff, the potential cost of software and trainings to support staff in 
utilizing techniques and strategies for interventions. 
 
 

$19,000.00 No      
X 
 

2.2 Monitoring Student 
Work        

2024-25 This action is to align student work with report cards and to create 
a consistent school structure for portfolio assessment. We will create a 
protocol for collecting work each week (one core subject per week). Work 
will then be placed in a portfolio. Portfolio work will be used to develop 
grades on report cards, to demonstrate student growth and to track 
improvement in core subject areas throughout the year. Basic 
requirements for portfolios will be established.   With the establishment of 
this protocol, we plan to redesign our report cards into a point system that 
will identify clear designation of mastery or not. The cost associated with 
this action item might include a software system to store grades/report card 
data, a digital platform to store portfolio work, and physical supplies to 
store portfolio work. 
 
 

$25,000.00 No      
XX 

 

2.3 Middle School 
Redesign        

2024-25 We will restructure our middle school in order to allow for more 
inquiry based learning and project based learning to take place as well as 
increase motivation and to grow academic rigor. This restructuring will 
allow for teachers to become responsible for two subject areas rather than 
all subject areas. By using this format, we hope to attract more middle 
school candidates that can  execute our projects and make them a reality. 

$15,000.00 No      
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 22 of 79 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             This restructure will also create more independent learners who are critical 

thinkers. The associated cost with this goal might include staff salaries, 
standards-based projects, field study opportunities, guest speaker fees, 
and materials needed to execute the projects. 
 
 

2.4 Professional 
Development        

2024-25 Educators deserve to be supported in a variety of ways and 
deserve to continually grow, learn, develop their practice, set goals and 
receive training. All students deserve teachers who are well trained and 
equipped to manage the complex dynamics of classroom learning. Training 
and professional development will be provided to  equip our staff and 
teachers with proactive techniques and methods rather than reactive 
interventions. We will utilize collaboration time and staff meetings to 
provide mentoring and share best practices. We will seek and provide 
professional development as needs arise. The associated costs for this 
action might include, stipends, curriculum, specialists/trainers, and 
conferences. 
 
 

$42,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 23 of 79 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
3 Provide high-quality, standards-aligned materials, resources and a facility to students and teachers 

to support their intellectual, physical, emotional and social well-being.         
Maintenance of Progress 
Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

We know that in order to provide an environment where students are immersed in rich inquiry-based instruction, we must provide them with 
high-quality materials and a safe space for them to learn. Maintenance of our facility is necessary in order for  our students to be safe and 
prepared to learn each day and for the overall well-being of our students and teachers. We also believe that teachers deserve to have 
autonomy, freedom and choice in order to create academic challenging learning that is hands on, interactive and developmentally 
appropriate. We know that providing teachers with a choice of high-quality resources that meet this inquiry based goal, we will have students 
that are met with rigorous and challenging learning opportunities. Teacher retention has become an issue since the pandemic.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               3.1 Students and teachers 
with access to 
standards-based 
instructional materials. 
Number of core subject 
areas with  CCSS, 
NGSS, ELD, Social 
Science standards-
aligned curricula 
        

100% of students and 
teachers have access 
to instructional 
materials that support 
high academic 
instruction 
5/5 subject areas 
curricula aligns with 
CCSS, NGSS, ELD, 
and Social Science 
standards 
 

100% of students 
and teachers have 
access to 
instructional 
materials that 
support high 
academic 
instruction 
5/5 subject areas 
curricula aligns 
with CCSS, NGSS, 

 100% of students 
and teachers have 
access to quality 
standards aligned 
resources in all 
subject areas. 

0% difference. We 
pride ourselves in 
having quality 
resources for our 
teachers and 
students. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 24 of 79 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               ELD, and Social 
Science standards 
 

3.2 All students will access 
field trips that are 
meaningfully connected 
to learning, guest 
experts and quality 
enrichment classes        

Average number of field 
trips and guest 
speakers per grade 
level are 12 in the 2023-
2024 school year 

Each class 
achieved the goal 
of 6 field trips and 
1 expert per 
project. 100% of 
students accessed 
enrichment 
classes weekly. 

 Minimum number 
of field trips tied to 
academics are 6 
per year per class 
and 1 expert per 
project. 100% of 
students access 2 
enrichment 
classes weekly. 

0%, we decreased 
the expectation for 
field trips due to 
rising costs. We 
used the funds to 
maintain our 
enrichment 
program. 

3.3 Percentage of facilities 
that are in “good repair”        

100% of facilities are in 
good repair 

100% of facilities 
are in good repair 

 100% if facilities 
are in good repair. 

0% We expend a 
lot of funds 
keeping our facility 
in quality condition. 

3.4 Social Emotional 
Support and Curriculum        

Accumulated activities 
for SEL lessons 

We added Fly Five 
as a resource for 
our SEL activities. 
A teacher website 
was created for 
easy access to 
resources. 

 An organized 
library of activities 
with a set timeline 
for implementation 
throughout the 
year. 

50% We have 
resources and now 
we need full 
organization. 

3.5 Teacher Retention Rate        78% of credentialed 
staff are staying at IA 
following the 2023-24 
school year. 

75% of 
credentialed staff 
are staying at IA 
following the 2024-
2025 school year. 

 85% of 
credentialed staff 
stay for the 
following year. 

-2% from baseline. 

 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

During the past year, our goal centered on enhancing the quality and intentionality of our instructional resources, curriculum, and student 
experiences. Overall, implementation was successful, with several key developments and areas of growth. Our original plan focused on 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 25 of 79 

expanding access to a wide variety of standards-based instructional materials and resources. This objective was met; however, as 
implementation progressed, we recognized a need for greater intentionality in how these resources were selected and used. As a result, we 
shifted mid-year to focus not just on availability, but on alignment and relevance—ensuring that the tools we invest in are truly impactful for 
both teachers and students. 
A key adjustment was the introduction of teacher feedback loops to assess curriculum usage and effectiveness. We did not initially plan for 
this data collection, but it became essential in guiding our decisions. 
One notable success was the integration of field experiences into the curriculum. Teachers made strong efforts to embed field trips and guest 
speakers into their projects, resulting in meaningful, hands-on learning opportunities for students. On average, each grade level engaged in 
approximately 12 such experiences. These real-world connections significantly enhanced student engagement and understanding. 
Additionally, we began fine-tuning our social-emotional learning (SEL) supports and curriculum. While this work is still in progress, we made 
valuable strides in expanding available resources and building teacher capacity in this area. 
Despite these successes, there were challenges. One key issue was inconsistency across grade levels in the number and quality of field trip 
and guest speaker experiences. To address this, we identified a need for dedicated planning time during monthly collaboration meetings. 
This will help streamline logistics and ensure more equitable access to these opportunities across the school. Staff retention also presented a 
challenge, with a 75% retention rate. While many of the departures were due to personal circumstances such as relocation, career changes, 
or parenting responsibilities, this turnover highlighted the importance of continued support for our educators and the need to maintain a 
strong pipeline of well-qualified teaching staff. 
         

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

The biggest difference in expected expenditures and actuals was in facility costs. It may have been that I added too many zeros when writing 
the last LCAP, but that will be looked into. Otherwise, we completed the goals with the required amount of money and it was different than 
what was expected.         

 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Action 3.1 has been highly effective in supporting progress toward our goal. We have equipped teachers across all grade levels with a wide 
range of high-quality, standards-based instructional resources. This has significantly facilitated instructional planning and delivery. We plan to 
expand the implementation of Beast Academy into 5th grade next year, building on its success in earlier grades. In middle school, the 6th–
8th grade team will begin using Desmos in addition to their IM curriculum, which offers high-quality digital manipulatives. We recognize the 
importance of teacher support and will explore professional development opportunities to ensure successful implementation and well as 
continue to help teachers take ownership of their needs as expressed in goal 2.. 
Additionally, we’ve provided ongoing structures—such as small group discussions, staff meetings, and one-on-one coaching with the 
director—for teachers to assess and reflect on the effectiveness of their project-based learning. We are also in the process of reviewing ST 
Math to determine how it can be better utilized in grade levels not using Beast Academy, aiming for consistent math support school-wide. 
Action 3.2 has been moderately effective. While grade levels averaged approximately 12 field trips and guest speakers—meeting our 
numerical baseline—the distribution of these experiences was inconsistent. Some grade levels offered significantly more opportunities than 
others. To improve in this area, we plan to provide additional support for teachers in the planning and execution of high-quality field 
experiences, including dedicated time for logistics and scheduling during collaboration meetings. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 26 of 79 

Action 3.4 showed mixed effectiveness. At the start of the year, teachers implemented our social-emotional learning (SEL) plan with 
enthusiasm and fidelity, particularly using our school-specific “First Six Weeks” curriculum and the Fly Five program in grades 3–5. However, 
consistency in SEL implementation declined over time. While we laid a strong foundation, we need to develop a more comprehensive, 
yearlong scope and sequence for SEL lessons and activities. We also need to make sure that teachers are implementing class council 
meetings that help students learn negotiation and take ownership of their own behavior. This will ensure sustained implementation and 
alignment across classrooms. 
Action 3.3 and 3.5 has been effective. We maintained our facilities in good repair, contributing to a positive learning environment. 
Additionally, our ability to offer competitive salaries and benefits has helped us attract and retain high-quality teachers, despite broader 
challenges in staffing across the education sector.  The costs in San Diego for living are increasingly difficult for us but we also stress the 
ability we have to provide benefits such as freedom in teaching practice,. strong administrative support when confronting difficult situations, 
medical benefits and a very low to no cost and ample planning time during the school day compared to other schools. 
         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

Based on our effectiveness and ineffectiveness in regards to our action items, metrics and target outcomes, there are a few changes that 
need to be put in place that have been mentioned above. First, for goal 3.1 we need to build in checks throughout the year so that staff can 
truly evaluate the effectiveness of certain curriculum items. This would require some coaching and observations from administration 
throughout the year to ensure that teachers and staff are implementing high quality, standards based teaching and utilizing the resources that 
will work to improve instruction. For goal 3.2 we need to look at our field trip planning and embed more structured time, with experts present, 
to allow for teachers to look into field trip and guest speaker opportunities. This can be done during our set up time at the start of the school 
year. Additionally, using collaboration meetings, director weekly meetings and staff meetings periodically to focus on field trips and guest 
speakers could help ensure that this is being addressed consistently. Lastly, for goal 3.4, there is a need to strengthen the scope and 
sequence for our SEL curriculum to ensure that teachers are putting the lessons, ideas and activities into place with fidelity, holding class 
meetings regularly about relevant topics and helping students take ownership which will be observed by having cleaner classrooms, hallways 
and playground, by having the lunch discard area respected, by decreased destruction of items on campus and by having students take 
ownership of their resolutions in our problem solving/conflict resolution meetings.         

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             3.1 High Quality 

Curriculum 
Resources        

2024-25 Teachers will have access to at least 2 high quality, standards 
based resources for each subject area from which to create their own 
curriculum and projects for class. These will continue to build and develop 
our project library that will incorporate rigorous standards based resources 

$30,500.00 No      
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 27 of 79 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             and activities so that there are ultimately four projects per grade level as 

options for future teachers.  We will continue to extend our implementation 
of the Beast Academy curriculum to our K-5 classrooms over the next few 
years. We expect that by the year 2027, all classrooms (K-5) will be using 
the Beast Academy curriculum, and online support software. Beast 
Academy staff will train, collaborate and offer feedback to teachers as they 
apply this program to their every day classrooms. The associated costs for 
this action might include paying staff to participate in extra trainings,  the 
possible purchase of curriculum and resources and any materials needed 
for Beast Academy. 
 
 

3.2 Students will access 
field trips, guest 
experts and quality 
enrichment classes        

2024-25 Interactive inquiry and projects involve extending learning outside 
the classroom. All students will have access to field trips that support their 
learning. Experts in various fields of study will be included in all projects. 
Our students will access enrichment classes each week. The costs to 
implement this action might include fees associated with experts,  costs for 
bus maintenance and use, costs of entrance to venues, materials and 
supplies for enrichment classes and salaries of enrichment teachers. 
 
 

$62,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.3 Facility Costs        2024-25 Cost of facility maintenance: Utilities, HVAC services, filter 
changes,  landscaping, trash and recycling, building lease, oversight fee, 
cleaning, maintenance and repair, as well as upgrades. 
 
 

$3,097,000.00 No      
X 
 

3.4 Social and Emotional 
Curriculum        

2024-25 Innovations Academy began implementation of our own internally 
developed SEL program in 2008. It is time to reorganize resources and 
streamline our SEL program. We will select activities that meet specific 
SEL objectives and create a timeline for the school year. The associated 
cost for this action might include staff time, resources and curriculum. 
 
 

$15,000.00 No      
X 
 

3.5 Teacher Salaries and 
Benefits        

2024-25 We will continue to use our funds to offer competitive salaries in 
order to attract and retain qualified teachers. We will look at our benefit 
options each year to make sure they are competitive and address teachers' 

$2,500,000.00 No      
X 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 28 of 79 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             needs. The associated costs with this will include teacher salaries and 

costs associated with benefits. 
 
 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 29 of 79 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
4 Provide ongoing analysis, accountability and intervention support for chronically absent and tardy 

students and their families. 
 
         

Broad Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Student success is entirely dependent on their attendance at school. Without being at school, they disconnect from the flow of learning, lose 
valuable opportunities to participate in learning, engage in social interactions and develop important skills needed to become a successful 
student. Our previous efforts have not been enough to combat the steady increase in student absenteeism which is happening across San 
Diego County, the state of California and the nation. . Although our numbers remain lower than San Diego Unified, we recognize the 
significant decline in attendance since before the pandemic.  We hope to inspire students to be present at school, educate parents and staff 
members about the importance of attendance and address absenteeism promptly, firmly and supportively.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               4.1 Percentage of parents 
who open ParentSquare 
communications 
regarding absences.        

100% of parents are 
contactable via 
ParentSquareO 
 
 

99.5% of parents 
were contactable. 

 100% of parents 
are contactable. 

+99.5% because 
we are now 
tracking this 
information. 

4.2 Percentage of students 
attending 96% of school 
days        

84.8% of students 
attended 96% or more 
of school days in 2023-
24 

Our P-2 ADA for 
24-25 had 
increased from 
94.6% in the 

 95% of students 
attend 96% of 
school days. 

+.5% Our 
attendance P-2 
rate increased 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 30 of 79 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               previous year to 
95.1% for 24-25 

4.3 Percentage of students 
who are chronically 
absent (defined as 
missing 10%        

11.7% of students were 
considered chronically 
absent during the 2022-
2023 school year - will 
update final 
percentages of the 
2023-24 school year 
once the year has 
ended. 
2023-24 = 13%) 
 

13% of students 
were considered 
chronically absent 
in the 23-24 school 
year. We will 
update this 
number for 24-25 
at the close of the 
year. 

 5% of students 
considered 
chronically absent 

-1.3%. This was an 
increase in chronic 
absenteeism. 

4.4 Number of students 
attending make up time 
per week        

new action and metric, 
no baseline 
chronic absenteeism at 
13% at the end of 23-24 
school year. 
 

On average 15% 
of students (68) 
were assigned to 
do Monday make 
up work. 

 Data will show a 
decrease in 
students assigned 
to make up work 
overtime as 
absenteeism as 
chronic 
absenteeism goes 
from 11%- 5% 

-3%. Chronic 
absenteeism is a 
growing issue from 
22-23 school year 
to 23-24 school 
year. 

4.5 Percentage of staff 
attending 96% of school 
days        

63% of staff attended 
96% or more school 
days in 2023-24 

87.5% of teaches 
attended 96% or 
more of school 
days. 

 75% of staff attend 
96% or more 
school days 

an improvement of 
24% in teacher 
absence metric. 

 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

We were not successful in this goal. Our chronic absenteeism rose for the 23-24 school year. We communicated with every family that had 
not called in on the second day of absence. Deeper, more exploratory communication with parents was difficult to implement. We need to 
reinforce our efforts to communicate often with parents about absences in a way that helps them see the impact of the absence on their child 
and the class community and build commitment to school in our parent community.         

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 31 of 79 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

This goal focuses on attendance. We expended a larger amount on staff absences than anticipated but it was an error to calculate an 
expense on substitutes at only $1000. We will have a larger expenditure for the coming school year with the adoption of a new software.         

 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

4.1 The action may still possibly work but we did not implement with fidelity to a depth that would have made a difference. Parents are using 
sickness as a reason even when it is obvious (such as an absence the same day every week) that this is not the reason. We will increase our 
commitment to this action such that we will attempt accountability. 4.2 We did not follow up as often as would be helpful to determine if this 
communication would make a difference. It is hard to hold meetings that parents will attend. 4.3 We did provide Monday make up time for 
students who had been absent the previous week, but parents decreased their use of short term independent study when going on trips, 
which may have countered the benefit by increasing our chronic absenteeism rate. We don't have dashboard info to know the exact data shift 
yet. 4.4 We received information from our families that the Feb vacation time was valued and used for vacations. We received positive 
feedback, as well, from staff. 4.5 Staff absences early in the year seemed to improve but due to the state changes in mandatory absence 
days as PTO, we saw an uptick in absences in the spring among staff. We continue to stress the fact that staff has built in time off throughout 
the year, unlike other professions.         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

4.1 We are acquiring a software platform that will improve the flow of communication for staff and parents. We hope this helps us manage 
absences in a way that allows us to differentiate between legitimate illness and chronic absences.  4.2 We will attempt to find ways that hold 
accountability for students and parents. We would like parents to take more ownership of their attendance choices and ask for help when 
needed. 4.3 We will continue with Monday make up and give students academic support to complete unfinished work. 4.4 We will continue to 
celebrate teachers and also provide a week during "off peak travel" for families to take those vacations they seek.         

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             4.1 Whole School 

Absence 
Communication        

2024-25 We will be sharing absence data weekly with families so they can 
stay informed about the trends we are seeing in regards to absences. This 
will include weekly communication through Parent Square as well as using 
a sign visible in the drop off and pick up line to share percentages of 
students attending school each day. Teachers will share information about 
absence percentages in their weekly communication to families. The 

$5,125.00 No      
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 32 of 79 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             associated costs with this might include ParentSquare, and any costs 

associated with the upkeep of the sign board. 
 
 

4.2 Absence Follow Up        2024-25 We will create a communication and follow up protocol for any 
student that is absent each week, as well as students who fall within the 
threshold of being chronically absent at any point in the year. Each week, 
we will call families of absent students who neglect to notify the school. 
Once a student crosses the threshold of chronic absenteeism, the director 
will call to emphasize the importance of attendance. Once that phone call 
has been made, we will monitor their attendance. We will hold quarterly 
mandatory meetings for all families of chronically absent students to 
attend. The associated cost with this action item might include staff 
salaries who are helping with communication and meetings as well as 
possible software for monitoring attendance. 
 
 

$8,000.00 No      
X 
 

4.3 Absent Student 
Support        

2024-25 We will closely monitor student absences weekly and provide 
mandatory make up work and a time during the school day when the work 
will be completed. We will select specific times for make up work such as 
Monday electives, end of the day and other flexible schedule times for 
students with recent absences. The associated costs with this action item 
might include educational software such as ST Math, Reading Eggs, 
Reflex Math, etc. 
 
 

$5,000.00 No      
X 
 

4.4 Teacher/ Staff 
Attendance        

2024-25 We will alter our calendar adding one extra vacation week and 
days in front of winter break to allot for staff travel as requested by 
teachers. Our goal is for teachers to focus their days off on regularly 
scheduled breaks. Additionally we will shorten August professional 
development to lengthen summer break based on teacher input. We will 
also include more opportunities through out the year to appreciate staff 
with coffee, treats, and activities. We will be using one staff meeting a 
month to create team building activities for staff to participate in. The 
associated costs with this action item might include food, drinks, supplies 
and other materials. 
 
 

$1,000.00 No      
X 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 33 of 79 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 34 of 79 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
5 Provide multiple engagement opportunities for parents through effective communication tools, 

parent participation opportunities and parent education. 
 
         

Maintenance of Progress 
Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

We believe that parents are the primary educators of their children. We strongly believe in providing parents and families the opportunity to 
participate in the school side of that education. We have an open door campus policy, encourage chaperoning field trips, working with 
classes as expert speakers, helping with school wide or classroom events and fundraising. We also understand that parents have full lives 
outside of our school communities and that their primary life responsibility is to care for their children. Our goal is to incorporate parent 
education and information sharing during school events that have the highest historical parental/caregiver attendance. We have low 
parental/caregiver engagement at stand alone meetings focused on one topic so we will combine events with information that is valuable and 
important to our community stakeholders.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               5.1 Weekly director 
communications and 
weekly teacher 
communications  with 
parent education, 
financial information and 
school event information        

In the 2023-24 school 
year 42 director 
messages were sent. 
50% contained parent 
education, 100% 
contained school 
information and 0% 
contained financial 
information 

In the 24-25 school 
year, 44 messages 
will go out. 75% 
contained parent 
education, 100% 
contained school 
information and 
1co message 
contained financial 
information. 

 One message per 
week of school, 
75% contain 
education, 100% 
contain school 
information and 3 
messages contain 
financial updates 

+2 messages sent 
to parents, +25% 
increase in parent 
education, 
maintained school 
information, +1 
message with 
financial 
information 
messages. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 35 of 79 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               5.2 Number of school 
trainings for parents on 
academic and social 
emotional initiatives        

A parent education 
seminar was included 
as part of our Parent 
Advisory meeting in 
which 10 different 
options were offered to 
parents for sessions 
pertaining to IA 
philosophy and 
curriculum and open to 
100% of IA families. 
Babysitting was free. 
2 sets of 10 sessions 
each were offered free 
of charge for parents to 
participate in the 
S.P.A.C.E. program 
during the 23-24 school 
year. One Positive 
Discipline seminar was 
offered. 
 

Two parent 
advisory meetings 
were held that 
were tagged onto 
the Parent 
Connection 
Meetings. One 
invite for Parent 
Advisory was sent 
with 16 responses. 
Those 16 people 
gave meaningful 
responses to 
questions about 
school needs. 
Positive Discipline 
class (11/19/24) 
aligned with our 
school practices 
was offered one 
time during the 
school year. 
 

 An annual 
combined parent 
advisory, LCAP 
and parent 
education seminar 
will be held. One 
parent education 
opportunity will be 
offered regarding 
parenting. 

We did not hold a 
large parent 
advisory but opted 
to hold advisory 
via survey method. 
We offered a 
parent education 
class but it was 
cancelled due to 
low enrollment. 

5.3 Parent Connection 
meetings        

5 Parent Connections 
meetings are scheduled 
for this school year 
remotely. 5 meetings 
are scheduled this year 
in person. They take 
place every other 
month. 

Seven Parent 
Connection 
meetings were 
held this year. 
100% had remote 
options. Parents 
had a minimum of 
10 opportunities to 
volunteer. 

 A minimum of five 
Parent Connection 
meetings will be 
held yearly. 
Parents will be 
given at least three 
opportunities to 
volunteer. 

+2 meetings of the 
Parent 
Connection. +20 
minimum of 
opportunities to 
volunteer. 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 36 of 79 

Goal Analysis [2024-25] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

The actions were fully implemented. We did not have challenges doing so. Our Parent Connection leader was strong. We offered everything 
we set out to offer. We have a large amount of volunteers between field trip drivers, chaperones, parents who support performing arts 
productions, volunteers for school events, classroom volunteers and parents who participate in fundraisers.         

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

We were able to spend less on this goal than anticipated, principally due to not holding an all parent advisory meeting.         
 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

We are effective at meeting this goal. We would like parents to feel educated about the philosophy of the school, which may be an area we 
take on more.         

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

No changes to this goal or the actions are needed.         
 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             5.1 Parent 

Communication        
2024-25 The director's weekly messages through our school platform 
(ParentSquare) will be organized in a predictable and consistent format. 
Messages will include quarterly updates on LCAP including spending and 
additionally provide information on fundraising events. This communication 
will also highlight any important school wide events and upcoming 
deadlines pertinent to families plus provide parent education on how to 
support their child at home. Teachers will also share a weekly 
communication update similarly with a predictable format and timing that 
includes information on deadlines, family events, classroom subject matter 

 No      
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 37 of 79 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             being covered and recommendations for how families can support their 

student. The associated costs with this action will include the 
ParentSquare fee for subscribing as all family communication takes place 
through parent square. 
 
 

5.2 Parent Engagement 
through Education        

2024-25 Two Exhibition Nights will be held which will coincide with student 
portfolio work reviews, one at the end of first semester and the other just 
before spring break. Parent education in the form of how to review portfolio 
work will be provided. Parents will have access to student portfolios 
throughout the year.  We will also utilize Open House as a time for parents 
to both view classrooms and participate in educational opportunities. For 
additional parent education, we will offer S.P.A.C.E. training for parents of 
anxious children and 2 Positive Discipline classes. The associated costs 
for this might include salaries for staff to help with babysitting, leading 
topics, as well as purchasing food and drinks for the events. 
 
 

$20,000.00 No      
X 
 

5.3 Parent Connection        2024-25 IA staff will work closely with the Parent Connection (our parent 
organization) throughout the year to consistently increase parent 
participation. We will work with the Parent Connection to create a school 
calendar with events that serve our family population. Meeting times and 
agenda will be shared with all families ahead of time while also including 
other ways for families to get involved other than going to a meeting. 
 
 

 No      
X 
 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 38 of 79 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2025-26] 
 
Total Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants Projected Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration Grant 
$$275,095 $0 
 
Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year 
Projected Percentage to Increase 
or Improve Services for the 
Coming School Year 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage LCFF Carryover — Dollar 
Total Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year 

6.377% 0.000% $0.00 6.377% 
 
The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table. 
 
Required Descriptions 
 

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions 
For each action being provided to an entire LEA or school, provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated 
student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s) and why it is being 
provided on an LEA or schoolwide basis, and (3) the metric(s) used to measure the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the 
unduplicated student group(s). 
 
Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

1.3 Action: 
Data Analysis, Reflection and Tracking 
 
Need: 
There is an identified need for improvement on 
math assessment scores in both MAP and 
CAASPP assessments. 
 
Scope: 

In order to identify the students most needing 
intervention, the entire population will be assessed 
and have work collected. Ultimately it will be 
beneficial to all students to have had their data 
analyzed, but the actions will ultimately target 
those most in need. Additionally, our Title 1 and 
EL coordinator will be specifically supporting 
teachers to identify needs in that community. 
Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant will be 
used to improve test scores by funding 
intervention tools, analysis tools and to provide 

improved scores on MAP 
and CAASPP 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions1


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 39 of 79 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

XSchoolwide        
 

teachers with intervention for non or slow 
progressing students with a focus on 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students who 
had a more serious decline in test scores. 
 

1.4 Action: 
Intervention Plans 
 
Need: 
Intervention plans are a solid way to track 
progress and provide unique support to 
students with unique situations. The monthly 
tracking of students will provide staff with an 
ongoing focus. 
 
Scope: 
XSchoolwide        
 

Interventions are provided on a schoolwide basis 
because it is the only way to identify specific 
students based on data. Otherwise it would be a 
subjective review and a student could be missed. 
For math interventions, a study of the CAASPP 
scores shows that the most significant populations 
with declining scores were socioeconomically 
disadvantaged, English language learners and 
Hispanic students. We will therefore look more 
closely at these populations while creating 
intervention plans and continue to involve the ELL 
coordinator and Title 1 coordinator to look at non 
just ELA progress but math progress. 
 

improved scores on MAP 
and CAASPP 

2.4 Action: 
Professional Development 
 
Need: 
Unduplicated pupils have a higher need for 
highly qualified teachers. 
 
Scope: 
XSchoolwide        
 

This is provided as a schoolwide/LEA wide action 
because truly all students benefit when teachers 
are provided professional development, even 
when the training is specific towards the needs of 
unduplicated students. 
Using designated LREBG funds, our teachers will 
be provided professional development to notice 
and own their areas of challenge as teachers and 
then be provided support and monitoring to 
improve in those areas. We will focus on all areas 
where ELA and math are being learned, including 
project development and implementation. 
 

The continued inclusion of 
students with disabilities in 
the classroom and 
increased engagement, 
connectedness and 
decreased suspension 
rates. 

3.2 Action: 
Students will access field trips, guest experts 
and quality enrichment classes 

Parents are provided the amount it costs for a field 
trip and they contribute voluntarily. Unduplicated 
students more often do not have the funds to pay 

100% of students will have 
access to field trips with no 
barriers. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 40 of 79 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

 
Need: 
financially costly, field trips would outprice a 
financially challenged family if not provided by 
the school. 
 
Scope: 
XSchoolwide        
 

for field trips and so the school provides them 
these learning opportunities. The trips are offered 
and provided to all students, so it is still addressed 
schoolwide. 
LREBG funds will be used to help pay for learning 
experiences outside the classroom, especially for 
our TItle1/SED students. 
 

 
Limited Actions 
For each action being solely provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s), provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) 
of the unduplicated student group(s) being served, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s), and (3) how the 
effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s) will be measured. 
 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) are Designed to Address 

Need(s) 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    
 
For any limited action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage, as applicable. 
 

Providing additional academic support (Goal 1 Action 3) will support our low-income students who traditionally cannot afford after school 
enrichment programs. When enrolling students in extended day or year tutoring that may be offered, first priority for enrollment will be given 
to foster youth, EL students and financially challenged families. This explicit and individualized academic support will help our low-income 
and English learner students make progress on their assessments as stated in Goal 1. Encouraging all students to participate in field trips 
and ensuring low income families understand that there is no mandatory cost for participation will benefit those students academically and by 
increasing engagement. Providing a bus supports access to field trips for all students equally. 
We will utilize LRBEG funding for goals 1.3, 1.4, 2.4, 3.2, with a focus on academic scores for our lowest scoring students who have been 
identified to be our socioeconomically disadvantaged students, and our ELL students, especially in the area of math where we will focus our 
efforts on assessment analysis, intervention strategies and preparation of teachers to provoke progress for them. 
         

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions2


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 41 of 79 

Additional Concentration Grant Funding 
A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 
 

We will be adding training for our instructional assistants in managing behaviors in a non behaviorist environment and using supportive 
questioning techniques to provoke independence and deeper thinking for students.  In our outreach for new teachers, we seek experienced 
teachers and apply funds to hiring these more expensive teachers. Additionally, we are maintaining our education specialist caseload and 
targeting each one to a reasonable grade level span. We are providing professional development for a lead education specialist to support 
the team.         

 
Staff-to-student ratios by 
type of school and 
concentration of 
unduplicated students 

Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or 
less 

Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55 
percent 

Staff-to-student ratio of 
classified staff providing 
direct services to students 

1:40                  

Staff-to-student ratio of 
certificated staff providing 
direct services to students 

1:17                  

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#AddCGF


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 42 of 79 

2025-26 Total Expenditures Table 
 

LCAP Year 
1. Projected LCFF Base 

Grant 
(Input Dollar Amount) 

2. Projected LCFF 
Supplemental and/or 
Concentration Grants 
(Input  Dollar Amount) 

3. Projected Percentage 
to Increase or Improve 

Services for the Coming 
School Year 

(2 divided by 1) 

LCFF Carryover —  
Percentage 

(Input Percentage from 
Prior Year) 

Total Percentage to 
Increase or Improve 

Services for the Coming 
School Year 

(3 + Carryover %) 
Totals          $4,313,726 $275,095 6.377% 0.000% 6.377% 

 

Totals LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds Total Personnel Total Non-personnel 

Totals          $5,997,625.00         $2,000.00 $0.00 $63,000.00 $6,062,625.00 $2,827,750.00 $3,234,875.00 

 
                 

Goal # Action # Action Title Student Group(s) Contributing 
to Increased 
or Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student 
Group(s) 

Location Time Span Total 
Personnel 

Total Non-
personnel 

LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Planned 
Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 
1 1.1 Streamlined Assessment 

Plan        
All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $1,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 
  

$1,000.00 $9,000.0
0 

0 

1 1.2 Support for Academic 
Instruction        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX
X 
 

 $5,000.00 $12,000.00 $10,000.00 $2,000.00 
 

$5,000.00 $17,000.
00 

0 

1 1.3 Data Analysis, Reflection 
and Tracking        

English LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $47,000.00 $34,000.00 $75,000.00 
  

$6,000.00 $81,000.
00 

1% 

1 1.4 Intervention Plans        English LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $105,000.0
0 

$6,000.00 $105,000.00 
  

$6,000.00 $111,000
.00 

5% 

2 2.1 Incident Tracking 
Program        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $14,000.00 $5,000.00 $19,000.00 
   

$19,000.
00 

 

2 2.2 Monitoring Student Work        All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX
X 
 

 $20,000.00 $5,000.00 $25,000.00 
   

$25,000.
00 

5% 

2 2.3 Middle School Redesign        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $7,000.00 $8,000.00 $10,000.00 
  

$5,000.00 $15,000.
00 

 

2 2.4 Professional 
Development        

English LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $25,000.00 $17,000.00 $41,000.00 
  

$1,000.00 $42,000.
00 

10% 

3 3.1 High Quality Curriculum 
Resources        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $30,500.00 $28,000.00 
  

$2,500.00 $30,500.
00 

 

3 3.2 Students will access field 
trips, guest experts and 
quality enrichment 
classes        

Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $8,000.00 $54,000.00 $58,000.00 
  

$4,000.00 $62,000.
00 

10% 

3 3.3 Facility Costs        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $67,000.00 $3,030,000.00 $3,067,000.00 
  

$30,000.00 $3,097,0
00.00 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 43 of 79 

                 
Goal # Action # Action Title Student Group(s) Contributing 

to Increased 
or Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student 
Group(s) 

Location Time Span Total 
Personnel 

Total Non-
personnel 

LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Planned 
Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 
3 3.4 Social and Emotional 

Curriculum        
All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $15,000.00 
   

$15,000.
00 

 

3 3.5 Teacher Salaries and 
Benefits        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $2,500,000
.00 

$0.00 $2,500,000.00 
   

$2,500,0
00.00 

 

4 4.1 Whole School Absence 
Communication        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $3,750.00 $1,375.00 $5,125.00 
   

$5,125.0
0 

 

4 4.2 Absence Follow Up        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $5,000.00 $3,000.00 $8,000.00 
   

$8,000.0
0 

0 

4 4.3 Absent Student Support        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 
   

$5,000.0
0 

 

4 4.4 Teacher/ Staff 
Attendance        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 
  

$500.00 $1,000.0
0 

 

5 5.1 Parent Communication        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

   
     

 

5 5.2 Parent Engagement 
through Education        

All    X 
English LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

No      
X 
 

 English 
LearnersX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX
X 
 

 $15,000.00 $5,000.00 $18,000.00 
  

$2,000.00 $20,000.
00 

0 

5 5.3 Parent Connection        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

   
     

 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 44 of 79 

2025-26 Contributing Actions Table 
 

1. Projected 
LCFF Base 

Grant 

2. Projected 
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

3. Projected 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(2 divided by 

1) 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 
(Percentage 
from Prior 

Year) 

Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 

(3 + Carryover 
%) 

4. Total 
Planned 

Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

5. Total 
Planned 

Percentage of 
Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Planned 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(4 divided by 

1, plus 5) 

Totals by 
Type 

Total LCFF 
Funds 

                  
$4,313,726 $275,095 6.377% 0.000% 6.377% $279,000.00 31.000% 37.468 % Total:         $279,000.00 

        LEA-wide 
Total:         $0.00 

        Limited Total:         $0.00 
        Schoolwide 

Total:         $279,000.00 
 

         

Goal Action # Action Title 
Contributing to 

Increased or 
Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) Location 

Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

1 1.2 Support for Academic 
Instruction 

 
  

XAll Schools         $10,000.00 0 

1 1.3 Data Analysis, Reflection 
and Tracking 

XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $75,000.00 1% 

1 1.4 Intervention Plans XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $105,000.00 5% 

2 2.2 Monitoring Student Work  
  

XAll Schools         $25,000.00 5% 
2 2.4 Professional Development XYes     

 
XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        

XLow Income         
XAll Schools         $41,000.00 10% 

3 3.2 Students will access field 
trips, guest experts and 
quality enrichment classes 

XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XLow Income         XAll Schools         $58,000.00 10% 

5 5.2 Parent Engagement through 
Education 

 
 

XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $18,000.00 0 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 45 of 79 

2024-25 Annual Update Table 
 

Totals 
Last Year's 

Total Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Total Estimated  
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Totals          $6,062,625.00 $3,363,957.85 

 
      Last Year's 

Goal # 
Last Year's Action 

# 
Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 

or Improved Services? 
Last Year's Planned 

Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
1 1.1 Streamlined Assessment Plan        No      

X 
 

$9,000.00 26,666.00 

1 1.2 Support for Academic Instruction        No      
X 
 

$17,000.00 82,114.00 

1 1.3 Data Analysis, Reflection and 
Tracking        

Yes     
X 
 

$81,000.00 80,508.00 

1 1.4 Intervention Plans        Yes     
X 
 

$111,000.00 1,882.00 

2 2.1 Incident Tracking Program        No      
X 
 

$19,000.00 11,581.00 

2 2.2 Monitoring Student Work        No      
XX 

 

$25,000.00 1,332.00 

2 2.3 Middle School Redesign        No      
X 
 

$15,000.00 54,928.00 

2 2.4 Professional Development        Yes     
X 
 

$42,000.00 33,770.00 

3 3.1 High Quality Curriculum Resources        No      
X 
 

$30,500.00 17,259.00 

3 3.2 Students will access field trips, 
guest experts and quality 
enrichment classes        

Yes     
X 
 

$62,000.00 64,950.00 

3 3.3 Facility Costs        No      $3,097,000.00 247,008.00 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 46 of 79 

      Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
X 
 

3 3.4 Social and Emotional Curriculum        No      
X 
 

$15,000.00 $6014.85 

3 3.5 Teacher Salaries and Benefits        No      
X 
 

$2,500,000.00 2,700,000.00 

4 4.1 Whole School Absence 
Communication        

No      
X 
 

$5,125.00 229.00 

4 4.2 Absence Follow Up        No      
X 
 

$8,000.00 $5,000.00 

4 4.3 Absent Student Support        No      
X 
 

$5,000.00 $2000.00 

4 4.4 Teacher/ Staff Attendance        No      
X 
 

$1,000.00 $18,622.00 

5 5.1 Parent Communication        No      
X 
 

 8504.00 

5 5.2 Parent Engagement through 
Education        

No      
X 
 

$20,000.00 1590.00 

5 5.3 Parent Connection        No      
X 
 

0 0 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 47 of 79 

2024-25 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
 

6. Estimated  
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

(Input Dollar 
Amount) 

4. Total Planned 
Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

7. Total Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(LCFF Funds) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions 

(Subtract 7 from 
4) 

5. Total Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

8. Total Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services 

(Subtract 5 from 
8) 

371,064.         $279,000.00         $179,228.00         $99,772.00         28.000%         28.000%         0.000%         
 

        
Last 

Year's 
Goal # 

Last 
Year's 

Action # 
Prior Action/Service Title 

Contributing to 
Increased or 

Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(Input LCFF Funds) 

Planned Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 

Estimated Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved Services 
(Input Percentage) 

1 1.3 Data Analysis, Reflection and 
Tracking 

XYes     
 

$75,000.00  5% 5% 

1 1.4 Intervention Plans XYes     
 

$105,000.00 80,508.00 10% 10% 

2 2.4 Professional Development XYes     
 

$41,000.00 33770.00 3% 3% 

3 3.2 Students will access field trips, 
guest experts and quality 
enrichment classes 

XYes     
 

$58,000.00 64,950.00 10% 10% 

 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 48 of 79 

2024-25 LCFF Carryover Table 
 

9. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 
Base Grant 
(Input Dollar 

Amount) 

6. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

LCFF Carryover 
—  Percentage 

(Percentage 
from Prior Year) 

10. Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for the 
Current School 

Year 
(6 divided by 9 + 

Carryover %) 

7. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Expenditures 

for Contributing 
Actions  

(LCFF Funds) 

8. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

11. Estimated 
Actual 

Percentage of 
Increased or 

Improved 
Services 

(7 divided by 9, 
plus 8) 

12. LCFF 
Carryover — 

Dollar Amount 
(Subtract 11 
from 10 and 

multiply by 9) 

13. LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 

(12 divided by 9) 

5,075,222. 371,064. 0 7.311% $179,228.00 28.000% 31.531% $0.00 0.000% 
 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 49 of 79 

Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions 
Plan Summary 

Engaging Educational Partners 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, please 
contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office, 
by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at LCFF@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual 
planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities). 
LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education. 

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions: 

• Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning, 
particularly to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the California School Dashboard 
(California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and 
learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and 
community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 

• Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made through 
meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's programs 
and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to be 
included in the LCAP. 

• Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because the nature of some LCAP template sections 
require LEAs to show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and 
low-income students in proportion to the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC sections 
52064[b][1] and [2]). 

▪ NOTE: As specified in EC Section 62064(b)(1), the LCAP must provide a description of the annual goals, for all pupils and each 
subgroup of pupils identified pursuant to EC Section 52052, to be achieved for each of the state priorities. Beginning in 2023–24, EC 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 50 of 79 

Section 52052 identifies long-term English learners as a separate and distinct pupil subgroup with a numerical significance at 15 
students. 

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]). 

o Ensuring that all increases attributable to supplemental and concentration grant calculations, including concentration grant add-on funding 
and/or LCFF carryover, are reflected in the LCAP (EC sections 52064[b][6], [8], and [11]). 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which must: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning, particularly to address and reduce 
disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), (b) through 
meaningful engagement with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections 
included within the LCAP template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a 
tool for engaging educational partners. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of the 
school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted 
and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2024–25, 2025–26, and 2026–27 school years reflects statutory changes made through Senate Bill 114 
(Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review), Chapter 48, Statutes of 2023 and Senate Bill 153, Chapter 38, Statues of 2024. 

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through 
grade twelve (TK–12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved 
opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended 
to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse educational partners and the broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions: 

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the Dashboard, how is the LEA using its budgetary resources 
to respond to TK–12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by meeting its obligation to increase 
or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions which, based on research, experience, and input gathered from educational 
partners, the LEA believes will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK–12 students. 

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP document. Additionally, the beginning of each template section includes information 
emphasizing the purpose that section serves. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 51 of 79 

Plan Summary 
Purpose 
A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to present a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included throughout each subsequent section of the 
LCAP. 

Requirements and Instructions 
General Information  
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. LEAs may also provide 
information about their strategic plan, vision, etc. 
Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK–12, as applicable to the LEA. 

• For example, information about an LEA in terms of geography, enrollment, employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community 
challenges, and other such information the LEA may wish to include can enable a reader to more fully understand the LEA’s LCAP. 

• LEAs may also provide information about their strategic plan, vision, etc. 

• As part of this response, identify all schools within the LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funding.  

Reflections: Annual Performance  
A reflection on annual performance based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
Reflect on the LEA’s annual performance on the Dashboard and local data. This may include both successes and challenges identified by the 
LEA during the development process.  

LEAs are encouraged to highlight how they are addressing the identified needs of student groups, and/or schools within the LCAP as part of 
this response. 

As part of this response, the LEA must identify the following, which will remain unchanged during the three-year LCAP cycle: 

• Any school within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 Dashboard;  

• Any student group within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 Dashboard; 
and/or  

• Any student group within a school within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 
Dashboard. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 52 of 79 

EC Section 52064.4 requires that an LEA that has unexpended Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant (LREBG) funds must include one or 
more actions funded with LREBG funds within the 2025-26, 2026-27 and 2027-28 LCAPs, as applicable to the LEA. To implement the 
requirements of EC Section 52064.4, all LEAs must do the following: 

• For the 2025–26, 2026–27, and 2027–28 LCAP years, identify whether or not the LEA has unexpended LREBG funds for the applicable 
LCAP year.  

o If the LEA has unexpended LREBG funds the LEA must provide the following: 

▪ The goal and action number for each action that will be funded, either in whole or in part, with LREBG funds; and  

▪ An explanation of the rationale for selecting each action funded with LREBG funds. This explanation must include:  

• An explanation of how the action is aligned with the allowable uses of funds identified in EC Section 32526(c)(2); 
and 

• An explanation of how the action is expected to address the area(s) of need of students and schools identified in the 
needs assessment required by EC Section 32526(d). 

o For information related to the allowable uses of funds and the required needs assessment, please see the 
Program Information tab on the LREBG Program Information web page. 

• Actions may be grouped together for purposes of these explanations.  

• The LEA may provide these explanations as part of the action description rather than as part of the Reflections: 
Annual Performance. 

o If the LEA does not have unexpended LREBG funds, the LEA is not required to conduct the needs assessment required by EC 
Section 32526(d), to provide the information identified above or to include actions funded with LREBG funds within the 2025-26, 
2026-27 and 2027-28 LCAPs. 

Reflections: Technical Assistance  
As applicable, a summary of the work underway as part of technical assistance. 
Annually identify the reason(s) the LEA is eligible for or has requested technical assistance consistent with EC sections 47607.3, 52071, 
52071.5, 52072, or 52072.5, and provide a summary of the work underway as part of receiving technical assistance. The most common form of 
this technical assistance is frequently referred to as Differentiated Assistance, however this also includes LEAs that have requested technical 
assistance from their COE. 

• If the LEA is not eligible for or receiving technical assistance, the LEA may respond to this prompt as “Not Applicable.” 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/ca/lrebgpgminfo.asp


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 53 of 79 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every Student Succeeds Act must 
respond to the following prompts: 

Schools Identified  
A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 

• Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

Support for Identified Schools  
A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 

• Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-
based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 

• Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

Engaging Educational Partners 
Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the 
student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, particularly to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes 
between student groups indicated by the Dashboard, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally identified priorities 
(EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process. 

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The 
goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public to understand how the LEA 
engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this 
section. 

Requirements 
Requirements 
School districts and COEs: EC Section 52060(g) and EC Section 52066(g) specify the educational partners that must be consulted when 
developing the LCAP:  

• Teachers,  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52060.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52066.


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 54 of 79 

• Principals,  
• Administrators,  
• Other school personnel,  
• Local bargaining units of the LEA,  
• Parents, and  
• Students 
A school district or COE receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier 
funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.  

Before adopting the LCAP, school districts and COEs must share it with the applicable committees, as identified below under Requirements and 
Instructions. The superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts 
and COEs must also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP.  

Charter schools: EC Section 47606.5(d) requires that the following educational partners be consulted with when developing the LCAP:  

• Teachers,  
• Principals,  
• Administrators,  
• Other school personnel,  
• Parents, and  
• Students  
A charter school receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at the school generating Equity Multiplier funds 
in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for the school. 

The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite 
councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-level goals. 
Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group 
composition, can be found under Resources on the CDE's LCAP webpage. 

Before the governing board/body of an LEA considers the adoption of the LCAP, the LEA must meet the following legal requirements: 

• For school districts, see Education Code Section 52062; 

o Note: Charter schools using the LCAP as the School Plan for Student Achievement must meet the requirements of EC Section 
52062(a). 

• For COEs, see Education Code Section 52068; and  

• For charter schools, see Education Code Section 47606.5. 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=47606.5.&lawCode=EDC
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52062.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52068.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=47606.5.&lawCode=EDC


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 55 of 79 

• NOTE: As a reminder, the superintendent of a school district or COE must respond, in writing, to comments received by the applicable 
committees identified in the Education Code sections listed above. This includes the parent advisory committee and may include the 
English learner parent advisory committee and, as of July 1, 2024, the student advisory committee, as applicable. 

Instructions 
Respond to the prompts as follows: 

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners in the development of the LCAP. 
School districts and county offices of education must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, 
local bargaining units, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP. 
Charter schools must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in the 
development of the LCAP. 
An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the 
development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.  
Complete the table as follows: 

Educational Partners 

Identify the applicable educational partner(s) or group(s) that were engaged in the development of the LCAP. 

Process for Engagement 

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve the identified educational partner(s) in the development of the LCAP. At a 
minimum, the LEA must describe how it met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners, as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  

• A sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other 
engagement strategies with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to 
engaging its educational partners.  

• An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also include a summary of how it consulted with educational partners at schools 
generating Equity Multiplier funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each 
applicable school.  

A description of how the adopted LCAP was influenced by the feedback provided by educational partners. 

Describe any goals, metrics, actions, or budgeted expenditures in the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in response to the 
educational partner feedback. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 56 of 79 

• A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the 
engagement process influenced the development of the LCAP. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized requests of 
educational partners within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP.  

• An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must include a description of how the consultation with educational partners at schools 
generating Equity Multiplier funds influenced the development of the adopted LCAP.  

• For the purposes of this prompt, this may also include, but is not necessarily limited to: 
• Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
• Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
• Determination of the target outcome on one or more metrics 
• Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
• Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
• Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  
• Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 
• Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated students 
• Analysis of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
• Analysis of material differences in expenditures 
• Analysis of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
• Analysis of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal must be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted 
by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their student 
groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
must consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that are 
included in the Dashboard, in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. As previously stated, strategic planning that 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 57 of 79 

is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices 
they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all 
students, and to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the Dashboard. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

• Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure 
improvement. A Focus Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 

o All Equity Multiplier goals must be developed as focus goals. For additional information, see Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs 
Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding below. 

• Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of 
metrics. 

• Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and 
allows an LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

Requirement to Address the LCFF State Priorities 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics articulated in EC sections 52060(d) and 52066(d), as 
applicable to the LEA. The LCFF State Priorities Summary provides a summary of EC sections 52060(d) and 52066(d) to aid in the 
development of the LCAP.  

Respond to the following prompts, as applicable: 

Focus Goal(s) 
Description  

The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound.  

• An LEA develops a Focus Goal to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach.  

• The Focus Goal can explicitly reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to 
which the LEA expects to achieve the goal. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Focus Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lcffprioritiessummary.docx


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 58 of 79 

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal.  

• An explanation must be based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data.  

• LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant consultation with educational partners.  

• LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus goal. 

Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding 
Description 

LEAs receiving Equity Multiplier funding must include one or more focus goals for each school generating Equity Multiplier funding. In addition 
to addressing the focus goal requirements described above, LEAs must adhere to the following requirements. 

Focus goals for Equity Multiplier schoolsites must address the following: 

(A) All student groups that have the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the Dashboard, and 

(B) Any underlying issues in the credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school’s educators, if applicable. 

• Focus Goals for each and every Equity Multiplier schoolsite must identify specific metrics for each identified student group, as applicable. 

• An LEA may create a single goal for multiple Equity Multiplier schoolsites if those schoolsites have the same student group(s) performing 
at the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the Dashboard or, experience similar issues in the credentialing, 
subject matter preparation, and retention of the school’s educators.  

o When creating a single goal for multiple Equity Multiplier schoolsites, the goal must identify the student groups and the 
performance levels on the Dashboard that the Focus Goal is addressing; or, 

o The common issues the schoolsites are experiencing in credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school’s 
educators, if applicable. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as an Equity Multiplier Focus Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 59 of 79 

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal.  

• An explanation must be based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data.  

• LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant consultation with educational partners.  

• LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus goal. 

• In addition to this information, the LEA must also identify: 

o The school or schools to which the goal applies 

LEAs are encouraged to approach an Equity Multiplier goal from a wholistic standpoint, considering how the goal might maximize student 
outcomes through the use of LCFF and other funding in addition to Equity Multiplier funds. 

• Equity Multiplier funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, funding provided to Equity Multiplier schoolsites for purposes of the 
LCFF, the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P), the Literacy Coaches and Reading Specialists (LCRS) Grant 
Program, and/or the California Community Schools Partnership Program (CCSPP).  

• This means that Equity Multiplier funds must not be used to replace funding that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise 
receive to implement LEA-wide actions identified in the LCAP or that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to 
implement provisions of the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the CCSPP. 

Note: EC Section 42238.024(b)(1) requires that Equity Multiplier funds be used for the provision of evidence-based services and supports for 
students. Evidence-based services and supports are based on objective evidence that has informed the design of the service or support and/or 
guides the modification of those services and supports. Evidence-based supports and strategies are most commonly based on educational 
research and/or metrics of LEA, school, and/or student performance. 

 

Broad Goal 
Description  

Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal.  

• The description of a broad goal will be clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal.  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42238.024.


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 60 of 79 

• The goal description organizes the actions and expected outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner.  

• A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a 
focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for measuring progress toward the goal. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Broad Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal 
Description  

Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals in the LCAP.  

• Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP.  

• The state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has 
determined to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the 
LCAP. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Maintenance of Progress Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 

Measuring and Reporting Results: 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 61 of 79 

For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes.  

• LEAs must identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that address and reduce disparities 
in outcomes between student groups.  

• The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year, as applicable to the type of LEA.  

• To the extent a state priority does not specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance 
standards), the LEA must identify a metric to use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based 
on or reported through the relevant local indicator self-reflection tools within the Dashboard. 

• Required metrics for LEA-wide actions: For each action identified as 1) contributing towards the requirement to increase or improve 
services for foster youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and low-income students and 2) being provided on an 
LEA-wide basis, the LEA must identify one or more metrics to monitor the effectiveness of the action and its budgeted expenditures.   

o These required metrics may be identified within the action description or the first prompt in the increased or improved services 
section, however the description must clearly identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the effectiveness of the action and the 
action(s) that the metric(s) apply to. 

• Required metrics for Equity Multiplier goals: For each Equity Multiplier goal, the LEA must identify: 

o The specific metrics for each identified student group at each specific schoolsite, as applicable, to measure the progress toward the 
goal, and/or 

o The specific metrics used to measure progress in meeting the goal related to credentialing, subject matter preparation, or educator 
retention at each specific schoolsite.  

• Required metrics for actions supported by LREBG funds: To implement the requirements of EC Section 52064.4, LEAs with 
unexpended LREBG funds must include at least one metric to monitor the impact of each action funded with LREBG funds included in the 
goal.  

o The metrics being used to monitor the impact of each action funded with LREBG funds are not required to be new metrics; they 
may be metrics that are already being used to measure progress towards goals and actions included in the LCAP. 

Complete the table as follows: 

Metric # 

• Enter the metric number.  
Metric  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 62 of 79 

• Identify the standard of measure being used to determine progress towards the goal and/or to measure the effectiveness of one or more 
actions associated with the goal.  

Baseline  

• Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2024–25.  

o Use the most recent data associated with the metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-
year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2023 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available data (e.g., high school graduation rate). 

o Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal 
Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS.  

o Indicate the school year to which the baseline data applies. 

o The baseline data must remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP.  

▪ This requirement is not intended to prevent LEAs from revising the baseline data if it is necessary to do so. For example, if 
an LEA identifies that its data collection practices for a particular metric are leading to inaccurate data and revises its 
practice to obtain accurate data, it would also be appropriate for the LEA to revise the baseline data to align with the more 
accurate data process and report its results using the accurate data.  

▪ If an LEA chooses to revise its baseline data, then, at a minimum, it must clearly identify the change as part of its response 
to the description of changes prompt in the Goal Analysis for the goal. LEAs are also strongly encouraged to involve their 
educational partners in the decision of whether or not to revise a baseline and to communicate the proposed change to 
their educational partners. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP may identify a new baseline each year, as 
applicable. 

Year 1 Outcome  

• When completing the LCAP for 2025–26, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the data applies. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one-year LCAP may provide the Year 1 Outcome when completing the 
LCAP for both 2025–26 and 2026–27 or may provide the Year 1 Outcome for 2025–26 and provide the Year 2 Outcome for 2026–
27.  

Year 2 Outcome  

• When completing the LCAP for 2026–27, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the data applies. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 63 of 79 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one-year LCAP may identify the Year 2 Outcome as not applicable when 
completing the LCAP for 2026–27 or may provide the Year 2 Outcome for 2026–27. 

Target for Year 3 Outcome  

• When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the target outcome for the relevant metric the LEA expects to achieve by the end of 
the three-year LCAP cycle. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP may identify a Target for Year 1 or Target for Year 
2, as applicable. 

Current Difference from Baseline 

• When completing the LCAP for 2025–26 and 2026–27, enter the current difference between the baseline and the yearly outcome, as 
applicable. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP will identify the current difference between the 
baseline and the yearly outcome for Year 1 and/or the current difference between the baseline and the yearly outcome for Year 2, 
as applicable. 

Timeline for school districts and COEs for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome  Year 2 Outcome  
Target for Year 3 

Outcome 
Current Difference 

from Baseline 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2024–25 or when 
adding a new metric. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2024–25 or when 
adding a new metric. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2025–26. Leave 
blank until then. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2026–27. Leave 
blank until then. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2024–25 or when 
adding a new metric. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2025–26 and 
2026–27. Leave blank 
until then. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year. 

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective towards 
achieving the goal. “Effective” means the degree to which the planned actions were successful in producing the target result. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed. 

Note: When completing the 2024–25 LCAP, use the 2023–24 Local Control and Accountability Plan Annual Update template to complete the 
Goal Analysis and identify the Goal Analysis prompts in the 2024–25 LCAP as “Not Applicable.” 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 64 of 79 

A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal, including relevant challenges and successes 
experienced with implementation.  

o Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation process.  

o This discussion must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned action or implemented a planned action in 
a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned Percentages 
of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in expenditures or 
percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
● Describe the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. “Effectiveness” means 

the degree to which the actions were successful in producing the target result and “ineffectiveness” means that the actions did not 
produce any significant or targeted result. 

o In some cases, not all actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal.  

o When responding to this prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the 
context of performance on a single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping 
actions with metrics will allow for more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics 
is working and increase transparency for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include 
multiple actions and metrics that are not closely associated. 

o Beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven effective over a three-
year period.  

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

o As noted above, beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven 
effective over a three-year period. For actions that have been identified as ineffective, the LEA must identify the ineffective action 
and must include a description of the following: 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 65 of 79 

▪ The reasons for the ineffectiveness, and  

▪ How changes to the action will result in a new or strengthened approach. 

Actions:  
Complete the table as follows. Add additional rows as necessary.  

Action # 

• Enter the action number.  
Title 

• Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables.  
Description 

• Provide a brief description of the action.  

o For actions that contribute to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, the LEA may include an explanation of 
how each action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA's goals for unduplicated students, as described in 
the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students section. 

o As previously noted, for each action identified as 1) contributing towards the requirement to increase or improve services for foster 
youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and low-income students and 2) being provided on an LEA-wide 
basis, the LEA must identify one or more metrics to monitor the effectiveness of the action and its budgeted expenditures. 

o These required metrics may be identified within the action description or the first prompt in the increased or improved services 
section; however, the description must clearly identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the effectiveness of the action and the 
action(s) that the metric(s) apply to. 

Total Funds 

• Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided in 
the action tables.  

Contributing 

• Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or 
Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No.  

o Note: for each such contributing action, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Services 
section to address the requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496 in the Increased or Improved 
Services section of the LCAP. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 66 of 79 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant foster youth student subgroup are 
encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to foster youth students. 

Required Actions 
For English Learners and Long-Term English Learners 

• LEAs with 30 or more English learners and/or 15 or more long-term English learners must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, 
at a minimum:  

o Language acquisition programs, as defined in EC Section 306, provided to students, and  

o Professional development for teachers.  

o If an LEA has both 30 or more English learners and 15 or more long-term English learners, the LEA must include actions for both 
English learners and long-term English learners. 

For Technical Assistance 
• LEAs eligible for technical assistance pursuant to EC sections 47607.3, 52071, 52071.5, 52072, or 52072.5, must include specific 

actions within the LCAP related to its implementation of the work underway as part of technical assistance. The most common form of 
this technical assistance is frequently referred to as Differentiated Assistance. 

For Lowest Performing Dashboard Indicators 
• LEAs that have Red Dashboard indicators for (1) a school within the LEA, (2) a student group within the LEA, and/or (3) a student group 

within any school within the LEA must include one or more specific actions within the LCAP: 

o The specific action(s) must be directed towards the identified student group(s) and/or school(s) and must address the identified 
state indicator(s) for which the student group or school received the lowest performance level on the 2023 Dashboard. Each 
student group and/or school that receives the lowest performance level on the 2023 Dashboard must be addressed by one or 
more actions.  

o These required actions will be effective for the three-year LCAP cycle. 

For LEAs With Unexpended LREBG Funds 
• To implement the requirements of EC Section 52064.4, LEAs with unexpended LREBG funds must include one or more actions 

supported with LREBG funds within the 2025–26, 2026–27, and 2027–28 LCAPs, as applicable to the LEA. Actions funded with LREBG 
funds must remain in the LCAP until the LEA has expended the remainder of its LREBG funds, after which time the actions may be 
removed from the LCAP.  

o Prior to identifying the actions included in the LCAP the LEA is required to conduct a needs assessment pursuant to EC Section 
32526(d). For information related to the required needs assessment please see the Program Information tab on the LREBG 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/ca/lrebgpgminfo.asp


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 67 of 79 

Program Information web page. Additional information about the needs assessment and evidence-based resources for the 
LREBG may be found on the California Statewide System of Support LREBG Resources web page. The required LREBG needs 
assessment may be part of the LEAs regular needs assessment for the LCAP if it meets the requirements of EC Section 
32526(d). 

o School districts receiving technical assistance and COEs providing technical assistance are encouraged to use the technical 
assistance process to support the school district in conducting the required needs assessment, the selection of actions funded by 
the LREBG and/or the evaluation of implementation of the actions required as part of the LCAP annual update process.  

o As a reminder, LREBG funds must be used to implement one or more of the purposes articulated in EC Section 32526(c)(2). 

o LEAs with unexpended LREBG funds must include one or more actions supported by LREBG funds within the LCAP. For each 
action supported by LREBG funding the action description must: 

▪ Identify the action as an LREBG action; 

▪ Include an explanation of how research supports the selected action; 

▪ Identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the impact of the action; and 

▪ Identify the amount of LREBG funds being used to support the action.  

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income 
Students  
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single 
dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students as defined in EC Section 42238.02 in 
grades TK–12 as compared to all students in grades TK–12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose 
meet regulatory requirements. Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader 
understanding of educational partners to facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this section must align with the actions 
included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing.  

Please Note: For the purpose of meeting the Increased or Improved Services requirement and consistent with EC Section 42238.02, long-term 
English learners are included in the English learner student group. 

Statutory Requirements 
An LEA is required to demonstrate in its LCAP how it is increasing or improving services for its students who are foster youth, English learners, 
and/or low-income, collectively referred to as unduplicated students, as compared to the services provided to all students in proportion to the 
increase in funding it receives based on the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the LEA (EC Section 42238.07[a][1], EC 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/ca/lrebgpgminfo.asp
https://systemofsupport.org/posts/2024/09/lrebg/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC


2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 68 of 79 

Section 52064[b][8][B]; 5 CCR Section 15496[a]). This proportionality percentage is also known as the “minimum proportionality percentage” or 
“MPP.” The manner in which an LEA demonstrates it is meeting its MPP is two-fold: (1) through the expenditure of LCFF funds or through the 
identification of a Planned Percentage of Improved Services as documented in the Contributing Actions Table, and (2) through the explanations 
provided in the Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students section. 

To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or 
improved by those actions in the LCAP that are identified in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services 
requirement, whether they are provided across the entire LEA (LEA-wide action), provided to an entire school (Schoolwide action), or solely 
provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s) (Limited action).  

Therefore, for any action contributing to meet the increased or improved services requirement, the LEA must include an explanation of: 

• How the action is increasing or improving services for the unduplicated student group(s) (Identified Needs and Action Design), and  
• How the action meets the LEA's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priority areas (Measurement of Effectiveness). 

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions 
In addition to the above required explanations, LEAs must provide a justification for why an LEA-wide or Schoolwide action is being provided to 
all students and how the action is intended to improve outcomes for unduplicated student group(s) as compared to all students.  

• Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further 
explanation as to how, are not sufficient.  

• Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does not meet the increased 
or improved services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For School Districts Only 
Actions provided on an LEA-wide basis at school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent must also 
include a description of how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state 
and any local priority areas. The description must provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting 
research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions provided on a Schoolwide basis for schools with less than 40 percent enrollment of unduplicated pupils must also include a 
description of how these actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and 
any local priority areas. The description must provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting 
research, experience, or educational theory. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Complete the tables as follows: 

Total Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 69 of 79 

• Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on 
the number and concentration of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. This amount includes the Additional 15 percent 
LCFF Concentration Grant. 

Projected Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration Grant  

• Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding, as described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates 
it will receive in the coming year. 

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year  

• Specify the estimated percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services 
provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage  

• Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF 
Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

LCFF Carryover — Dollar  

• Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not identified in the LCFF 
Carryover Table, specify an amount of zero ($0). 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year  

• Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required 
Carryover Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEA’s percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be 
increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 
15496(a)(7). 

Required Descriptions: 

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions 
For each action being provided to an entire LEA or school, provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated 
student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s) and why it is being 
provided on an LEA or schoolwide basis, and (3) the metric(s) used to measure the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the 
unduplicated student group(s). 
If the LEA has provided this required description in the Action Descriptions, state as such within the table. 

Complete the table as follows: 

Identified Need(s) 

Provide an explanation of the unique identified need(s) of the LEA’s unduplicated student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed.  



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 70 of 79 

An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards an unduplicated student group(s) when the LEA explains the need(s), 
condition(s), or circumstance(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) identified through a needs assessment and how the action addresses 
them. A meaningful needs assessment includes, at a minimum, analysis of applicable student achievement data and educational partner 
feedback. 

How the Action(s) are Designed to Address Need(s) and Why it is Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 

Provide an explanation of how the action as designed will address the unique identified need(s) of the LEA’s unduplicated student group(s) for 
whom the action is principally directed and the rationale for why the action is being provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis. 

• As stated above, conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection 
or further explanation as to how, are not sufficient.  

• Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does not meet the increased 
or improved services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness 

Identify the metric(s) being used to measure the progress and effectiveness of the action(s). 

Note for COEs and Charter Schools: In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

Limited Actions 

For each action being solely provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s), provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) 
of the unduplicated student group(s) being served, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s), and (3) how the 
effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s) will be measured.  

If the LEA has provided the required descriptions in the Action Descriptions, state as such. 

Complete the table as follows: 

Identified Need(s) 

Provide an explanation of the unique need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being served identified through the LEA’s needs assessment. 
A meaningful needs assessment includes, at a minimum, analysis of applicable student achievement data and educational partner feedback. 

How the Action(s) are Designed to Address Need(s) 

Provide an explanation of how the action is designed to address the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being 
served. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 71 of 79 

Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness 

Identify the metric(s) being used to measure the progress and effectiveness of the action(s). 

For any limited action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage, as applicable. 

• For each action with an identified Planned Percentage of Improved Services, identify the goal and action number and describe the 
methodology that was used. 

• When identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the 
contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the 
amount of LCFF funding that the LEA estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 

• For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning providers 
know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by hiring additional staff 
to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which, based on the LEA’s current pay scale, the LEA estimates 
would cost $165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are 
foster youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional 
assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated cost of 
$165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Total Planned Expenditures Table and then convert the quotient to a 
percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

Additional Concentration Grant Funding 
A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 
An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in EC Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using 
these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that 
is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of 
unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff and/or 
classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff.  

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA: 

• An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not 
applicable. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 72 of 79 

• Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the 
number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 
percent.  

• An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as a 
single-school LEA or an LEA that only has schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must 
describe how it is using the funds to increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who 
provide direct services to students at selected schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing 
support. 

• In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a 
school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to 
retain staff providing direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Complete the table as follows:  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that 
is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration 
of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA.  

o The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA.  

o The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff and the number of enrolled students as 
counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year.  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated 
students that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a 
concentration of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA.  

o The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA.  

o The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of FTE staff and the number of enrolled students as counted on the first 
Wednesday in October of each year. 

Action Tables 
Complete the Total Planned Expenditures Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate 
the other Action Tables. Information is only entered into the Total Planned Expenditures Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing 
Actions Annual Update Table, and the LCFF Carryover Table. The word “input” has been added to column headers to aid in identifying the 
column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables.  

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 73 of 79 

• Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For 
example, when developing the 2024–25 LCAP, 2024–25 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2023–24 will be the current LCAP Year. 

Total Planned Expenditures Table 
In the Total Planned Expenditures Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year: 

• LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year. 

• 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount estimated LCFF entitlement for the coming school year, excluding the 
supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant program, the former 
Home-to-School Transportation program, and the Small School District Transportation program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8). 
Note that the LCFF Base Grant for purposes of the LCAP also includes the Necessary Small Schools and Economic Recovery Target 
allowances for school districts, and County Operations Grant for COEs. 

See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF entitlement 
calculations.  

• 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants estimated on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school year. 

• 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is 
calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 
CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared 
to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table from the prior LCAP 
year. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

• Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated 
based on the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the LCFF Carryover — 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 74 of 79 

Percentage. This is the percentage by which the LEA must increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils as compared to 
the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

• Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 

• Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  

• Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All,” or by entering 
a specific student group or groups. 

• Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or 
improved services requirement; OR, type “No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement. 

• If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades the 
entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools.” If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans.” Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate. 

• Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time for 
which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year,” or “2 Years,” or “6 Months.” 

• Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  

• Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and 
the Total Funds column. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 75 of 79 

• LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 

o Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement, it must include some measure 
of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action contributes to 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement the action. 

• Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

o Note: Equity Multiplier funds must be included in the “Other State Funds” category, not in the “LCFF Funds” category. As a 
reminder, Equity Multiplier funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, funding provided to Equity Multiplier schoolsites for 
purposes of the LCFF, the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the CCSPP. This means that Equity Multiplier funds must not be used to 
replace funding that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to implement LEA-wide actions identified in the LEA’s 
LCAP or that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to implement provisions of the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the 
CCSPP. 

• Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 

• Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to unduplicated 
students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for the action as 
a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English learners, 
and/or low-income students. 

o As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved 
Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional 
percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA 
estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning 
providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by hiring 
additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which, based on the LEA’s current pay scale, 
the LEA estimates would cost $165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating 
to students who are foster youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services 
provided by instructional assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would 
divide the estimated cost of $165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the 
quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 76 of 79 

Contributing Actions Table 
As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved 
Services?’ column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if 
actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses.   

Annual Update Table 
In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any. 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?’ column to ensure that only 
actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use 
the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in the 
LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and 
concentration grants estimated based on the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to 
implement this action, if any. 

• Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis 
only to unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality 
improvement anticipated for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). 

o Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example 
implements the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and 
determines that the action was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA 
reviews the original estimated cost for the action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data 
and to coordinate supports for students that estimated actual cost would have been $169,500 due to a cost of living 
adjustment. The LEA would divide the estimated actual cost of $169,500 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data 
Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved 
Services for the action. 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of estimated LCFF Target Entitlement for the current school year, 

excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant program, 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 77 of 79 

the former Home-to-School Transportation program, and the Small School District Transportation program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 
15496(a)(8). Note that the LCFF Base Grant for purposes of the LCAP also includes the Necessary Small Schools and Economic 
Recovery Target allowances for school districts, and County Operations Grant for COEs. See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 
42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF entitlement calculations. 

• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year: This percentage will not be entered. The 
percentage is calculated based on the amounts of the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) and the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6), pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8), plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the 
prior year. This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services 
provided to all students in the current LCAP year. 

Calculations in the Action Tables 
To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the 
information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the 
functionality and calculations used are provided below. 

Contributing Actions Table 
• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column. 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services 

o This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column. 

• Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5) 

o This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), 
converting the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5). 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
Pursuant to EC Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental 
and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) 
and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is equal to or greater 
than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual 
Percentage of Improved Services will display “Not Required.” 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 78 of 79 

o This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on the 
number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds). 

• 7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds). 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 7 from 4) 

o This amount is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) subtracted from the Total Planned 
Contributing Expenditures (4). 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column. 

• 8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column. 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8) 

o This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of 
Improved Services (8). 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year (6 divided by 9 plus Carryover %) 

o This percentage is the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6) divided by the Estimated Actual 
LCFF Base Grant (9) plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the prior year.  

• 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8) 

o This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then 
converting the quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8). 

• 12. LCFF Carryover — Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9) 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Innovations Academy Page 79 of 79 

o If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to 
Increase or Improve Services (10), the LEA is required to carry over LCFF funds.  

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) 
from the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Base Grant (9). This amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year. 

• 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9) 

o This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the 
coming LCAP year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9). 

California Department of Education 
November 2024 
 
 



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 1

2025 Budget, Policy, and 
Legislative Update: 

Governor's Proposed Budget
Tuesday, January 21

9:30AM-12:30PM PST

Welcome!

Find slides and resources here:
www.chartercenter.org/bpl-proposed

1

SupplyBank.org

For Wildfire-Impacted Schools

School Funding During 
Emergencies and 
School Closures

January 8, 2025
Eric Premack

Governor Issues 
Executive Order 

Flexing A Few 
Deadlines and 

Mandates for Fire-
Impacted School 

January 15, 2025
Eric Premack

Consider Contributing 
to SupplyBank.org
www.supplybank.org

2

1

2



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 2

Founded in 1992. Active ever since.

We offer leadership trainings, 
resources, and membership to 

California charter school leaders.

We tirelessly advocate for charter 
schools in Sacramento.

About CSDC

www.chartercenter.org
3

Continuing the Series

www.chartercenter.org/trainings

Governor's Proposed 
Budget

January 21, 2025
9:30AM-12:30PM

May Revise
May 20, 2025

9:30AM-12:30PM

Adopted State 
Budget

July 17, 2025
9:30AM-12:30PM

4

3

4



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 3

• Questions for the presenters? Post to the Q&A as we go
• Download the Slides: www.chartercenter.org/bpl-proposed
• Webinar Recording: Available shortly after live webinar at link above
• Eval Survey: www.surveymonkey.com/r/csdcwebinar 
• Other questions? csdc@chartercenter.org 

Webinar Housekeeping

5

Legislative Update

Laura Kerr
Legislative and Community 
Outreach Specialist

5

6



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 4

2025 Legislative 
Process 

Bills
Feb – April: Policy Hearings 

Mar - May: Fiscal Committees

May – June: Floor Votes/Second 
House

July 15 - Summer Recess

August – Sept.: Fiscal and Floor

Aug. 31: Deadline to send to 
Governor

Sept. 30: Deadline for Gov to act 

Budget 
Feb – April: Sub-Com. Hearings 
May: May Revise, Budget Com. 
Hearings
June 15: Legislative deadline
June 30:  Governor must sign 

7

2024 Legislative Leadership Shifts 
Assembly 

• Speaker, Robert Rivas (D-Hollister) 
• Assembly Education Committee
 Al Muratsuchi (D – Torrence)
 Josh Hoover (R – Folsom) 
 Dawn Addis (D – San Luis Obispo) 
 David Alverez (D - San Diego) **
 Mia Bonta (D – Oakland) 
 Robert Garcia (D – Long Beach)
 Leticia Castillo (R - Corona) 
 Josh Lowenthal (D – Long Beach)
 Darshanna Patel (D – San Diego) 

7

8



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 5

2024 Legislative Leadership Shifts 

Senate
• President Pro Tem Mike McGuire (D –

Healdsburg)
• Senate Education Committee:
 Sasha Renee Perez (D - Pasadena)
 Rosilicie Ochoa Bogh (R -Ycaipa)
 Steven Choi (R – Irvine)
 Dave Cortese (D - San Jose
 Eloise Gomez Reyes (D - San 

Bernardino)
 Lena Gonzalez (D – Long Beach)

• Senate Budget: 
 Senator John Laird (D - Santa Cruz),

9

2025 Critical Issues  

AB 84 (Murtasuchi) Charter School Audits
• State Controller/San Diego County 

Prosecutor Taskforce Report
• FCMAT/LAO report on NCB Funding
• Joint Legislative Audit Committee 

Possible Implications 
• Summer tracks reforms
• Adult serving charter schools
• NCB Moratorium  
• Authorizers and Oversight 

CSDC continues to collaborate with members 
on these important issues. 

10

9

10



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 6

2025 Critical Issues

Other Emerging & Returning Issues  
• Cost of living 
• Wild Fire implications on budget and policy
• Trump Administration "resistance" 
• Adult serving charter schools 
• NCB Moratorium  
• Maternity Leave 

11

Be a Charter School 
Advocate

• Research new legislators and follow 
them on social media

• Send scheduling requests now for 
graduation (Resource) 

• Join us for Advocacy 301 – Establishing 
your own policy agenda, having your 
voice heard in the legislative process 
through lobby meetings, letters, and 
hearings. 

• Register today!

12

11

12



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 7

Q&A

Please ask your questions in the Q&A 
feature!

13

Accountability and the 
Renewal Picture

Susanne Coie
Accountability and Development 
Specialist

13

14



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 8

2025 Accountability Updates
• LCAP update & reminder
• Dashboard-ish:

• Long Term English Learners 
• California Science Test
• California Growth Model
• Verified data

• Charter renewal trends 
• CSDC resources 

15

Local Control and Accountability Plan:
Reminder & Update

• Reminder: By February 28, must present to board a mid-year report
on LCAP expenditures
o By March 31, for impacted LA County schools

• Update: New requirements related to Learning Recovery Emergency 
Block Grant (LREBG) funds:
o Report on all planned expenditures using LREBG funds
o Identify actions supported with LREBG funds

• Identify at least one metric to monitor the impact of 
each action or service

o Identify whether LEAs have unexpended LREBG funds 

16

15

16



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 9

The Evolving California School Dashboard:
Long Term English Learners (LTELs)

• LTEL= “An EL student who has not attained English language proficiency 
within seven years of initial classification”

• 14th student group on the Dashboard, starting in 2024
• May affect renewal category and state and federal accountability

• If >30 students in the ELA, Math, ELPI and CCI indicators

17

The Evolving California School Dashboard:
The California Science Test

• Science test administered in Grades 5 and 8 and once in Grades 10-12
• 2024 Dashboard provides Science scores as information
• In July, State Board is expected to decide if to add a Science indicator 

to the Dashboard
• CSDC advocates against adding a Science Indicator
 Major limitation: "Change"--a component of "Color"--

would have little meaning 
 100% new students in prior year and target year cohorts
 Such concerns can be high stakes for charter schools because 

of charter renewal 
• But relatively low stakes for other LEAs

18

17

18



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 10

California is Finally Getting a Growth Metric:
2024 California Growth Model to Post Soon

• In 2021, State Board approved the CA Growth Model
o Posted 2019 data set

• Evaluates “how good” is student growth on CAASPP 
o Based on individual student growth from the prior year
o E.g., compares a student's growth in Grade 4 to the growth of other students 

who had the same baseline score in Grade 3
o Only available for Grades 4-8

• CDE anticipates posting 2024 CA Growth Model data in January
• Different from other data provided by the state

o Growth metrics are best approach to reflect a school's impact, using test scores 
o Until now, schools have had to pay for growth metrics:
 CORE Student Growth Percentiles (CAASPP)
 Local assessments, including from State Board-adopted "verified data" 

sources

19

Dashboard Could Incorporate California Growth Model,
Addressing Some, not All, Issues

• State Board expected to decide if and how to incorporate CA Growth Model data into the 
Dashboard at July 2025 meeting

• At January meeting:
o CDE pointed to some challenges, also proposed non-Dashboard based options
o CSDC called out a longstanding problem in charter renewal—lack of growth data across 

K-12
 Noted that, after 2026, authorizers will no longer be required to consider in charter 

renewals growth data and postsecondary outcomes from verified data sources
• 2024 CCSA bill to remove sunset of the verified data requirement did not pass

 Urged the State Board to incorporate Growth Model data into Dashboard indicators—
and also local assessment growth data

 Urged the State Board to examine charter renewal data provisions
o CSDC appreciates the leadership of State Board president Linda Darling Hammond and 

others calling for a close look at how the Dashboard is functioning in state accountability

20

19

20



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 11

Charter Renewals & CSDC Support

• Charter renewals playing out as expected
• Mostly okay
• Oakland and LAUSD renewals proving to be rough

• CSDC urges charter schools that may have difficult renewals to start early
• Years in advance, identify needed program changes to target desired renewal 

category and to show growth
• Allow plenty of time to probe related data and build a clear renewal data narrative 

based on robust evidence
• Build support and understanding of school's program

• CSDC resources 
• 2024 CSDC Renewal Worksheet—includes California Growth Model data
• CSDC Renewal Data Guide—36-page draft is available on request 
• 101-, 201-, 301-level webinars recorded in 2024; more in 2025
• Reach out

21

Q&A

Please ask your questions in the Q&A 
feature!
Upcoming CSDC webinars:

22

21

22



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 12

2025-26 Proposed Budget

Eric Premack
Executive Director & Founder

Governor’s 
2025-26 
K-12 Education 
Budget 
Proposals

24

23

24



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 13

Wildfire Impacts

• Palisades and Eaton fires burned many 
schools, including six charter schools
o Aveson School of Leaders
o Odyssey South
o Pasadena Rosebud Academy
o Marquez Elementary
o Palisades Elementary
o Palisades High (partial)

• Many families of students and staff 
impacted too

• Click on school names with links to 
donate, or see CSDC's list

25

Wildfire Response

• Governor declared emergency, issued multiple executive orders in response
o Partially relaxes emergency ADA requirements and some deadlines for Los 

Angeles County schools
o See CSDC's summary for key details

• Special session budget legislation introduced yesterday
o $1 million for Office of Public School Construction to provide technical assistance 

to districts, charter schools
o $2.5 billion [sic.] for disaster relief and augmenting state budget, broad 

discretion for Governor to spend
o CSDC presumes more legislation will follow

26

25

26



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 14

Wildfire Reminders & Implications 

• Emergency preparation, response increasing part of school leaders' job description:
o Must plan to pivot to independent study within 10 days
o It's very difficult to figure out how to pivot during an emergency
o New mandate to add plan to existing schoolsite safety plan this spring

• Further stress on challenging property insurance market
o May trigger requirements for more fuel reduction, "hardening" of school facilities 

in fire-prone areas

• Income tax filing deadline for Los Angeles County residents extended to October 15
o This will make estimating state tax revenues more of a challenge

27

Governor’s Budget: Economic & State Revenue

• State, national economic picture remains sound
• Much improved picture relative to a year ago
• Resulting in strong state tax revenues
• Governor's Budget assumes continued economic growth in 2025-26
• Tempered with many cautions on risks

• Governor's estimates align closely with Legislative Analyst's November 
Forecast

• Analyst describes Governor's proposals as "reasonable"

28

27

28



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 15

• Increased estimated state tax revenues drive corresponding increase in Proposition 
98 Guarantee
o +$3.9 billion in 2024-25
o +$3.2 billion in 2025-26
o $7.9 billion total

• Governor proposes spending most of the increase on COLA, a few program 
expansions, big block grant, and numerous one-time items

• Governor would under-spend 2024-25 Guarantee by $1.6 billion
o Waiting until May to see if anticipated revenues materialize

• $1.5 billion deposit to Proposition 98 reserves
o Partially retoring previously-depleted "cushion"

Proposition 98 Education Funding Guarantee

29

Governor’s Education Budget: Big Picture

• Fund 2.43% estimated cost-of-living adjustment (COLA)

• Continued full implementation of universal Transitional Kindergarten, Expanded 
Learning, Universal Meals

• $1.8 billion block grant 

• Long list of augmentations, mostly one-time, many familiar

30

29

30



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 16

31

2025-26 Local Control Funding Formula Rates
(2025-26 Governor’s Budget, CSDC Estimates, 

Including statutory 2.43% COLA)
Grade Span

9-127-84-6K-3TK

$12,438$10,733$10,423$10,269$10,269Base Rate (w/ 0.76% COLA)

$1,068$1,068K-3 CSR Grade Span Adjustment (@10.4%)

$3239-12 CTE Grade-Span Adjustment (@2.6%)

Supplemental and Concentration Factors & Funding for “Unduplicated” Pupils

$2,552$2,147$2,085$2,267$2,267Supplemental Add-On (@20%)
School Qualifies if UPP >55 percentConcentration Threshold

$8,295$6,977$6,775$7,369$7,369
Concentration Add-On (@65% for pupils
above threshold)

$3,152+Transitional Kindergarten Add-On

Local Control Funding Formula: COLA Prospects 

• Department of Finance projecting moderate COLAs in upcoming years

• Statutory COLA is based on 8 quarters’ worth of federal data
• We currently have 6 quarters of data
• Final 2 quarters' data coming in late January, April
• So actual statutory COLA will change

LCFF Cost-of-Living Adjustments
2027-282026-272025-262024-252023-242022-232021-222020-212019-20

8.22%6.56%1.70%2.31%3.26%Statutory
1.07%8.22%13.26%5.07%03.26%Funded

3.63%3.52%2.43%DOF Estimate
??2.43%CDSC Estimate

32

31

32



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 17

LCFF:  Modeling COLA Using FCMAT Calculator

• FCMAT has posted updated version #25.b of its LCFF Calculator
• It's updated with new COLA estimates for 2025-26+
• It has NOT been higher TK Add-On for reducing TK adult ratio from 12:1 to 10:1
• FCMAT plans to post updated version after CDE certifies First Principal 

Apportionment
• CSDC suggests modeling other COLA scenarios too

• Including zero COLA, given volatile state revenues
• You can do this on lines 15 and 16 of the Data Entry tab in the Calculator

33

LCFF Equity Multiplier

• Governor proposes to continue funding to this LCFF add-on
• Directs funds to schoolsites with >25% "non stability" and >70% low SES rates
• Statutory COLA
• No other apparent changes proposed

• Funded from fixed, line-item appropriation, so per-student rate fluctuates

• Reminders:
• Must use to increase/improve evidence-based services
• Supplement, not supplant LCFF, ELO-P, Reading/Literacy, and Community School funds
• Additional LCAP components, including "focus goals" for low scoring subgroups, teacher 

credentialing issues, documenting stakeholder engagement

34

2025-262024-252023-24

TBDTBD$1,052.61Per-Student Rate

$51,763$50,535$50,000Minimum Floor

33

34



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 18

LCFF:  Attendance Recovery Reminder

• Last summer's budget legislation established new Attendance Recovery option
• Optional, starting in 2025-26 school year

• Would allow schools to "recover" lost ADA if students attend make-up classes
o Before/after school, weekends, summer, intersessions

• Complex rules, ripe for tweaks and clarification

• CSDC's preliminary analysis shows Attendance Recovery can "pencil," if:
o Staff are available
o You can get students' butts in seats
o You can coordinate, leverage ELO-P funding

35

Student Support & Professional Dev't Block Grant

• Governor proposes funding new, $1.8 billion block grant
o To support "rising costs" and other statewide priorities (e.g., professional 

development, teacher retention, career-technical expansion)
o Key "trailer bill" details not yet posted

• Governor's finance staff tell CSDC:
o Spending restrictions will be "relatively flexible"
o Allocation formula "will most likely be based on per-ADA, but details are being 

finalized"

• CSDC estimates would provide around $313/ADA

36

35

36



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 19

Universal Pre-K

• Governor proposes completing full implementation of Universal Pre-K in 2025-26

• Would complete multi-year Transitional Kindergarten expansion
Fifth Birthday Is BetweenYear

September 2 and December 22021-22

September 2 and February 22022-23

September 2 and April 22023-24

September 2 and June 22024-25

Fourth birthday by September 12025-26

37

Transitional Kindergarten Compliance

• Governor proposes $875 million ongoing to implement 1:10 pupil-to-adult ratio cap
• From current 1:12 cap
• Maintain current class size cap of 24 (average over all TK classrooms at a 

schoolsite)
• Additional funding via TK Add-On to LCFF

• TK teachers first assigned to a TK classroom after July 1, 2015, by August 1, 2025 
must have:
• 24 semester units of ECE/EDC credit, or
• Child development permit or early childhood specialist credential from CTC, or
• Comparable experience in a classroom setting with preschoolers, as determined 

by the employer
• Use current local flexibility to locally approve any teachers with equivalent on-

the-job experience with preschoolers in advance of deadline

38

37

38



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 20

Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P)

• Governor proposes to expand eligibility for "Tier I" ELO-P funding
• Current law provides Tier I funding to schools serving 75%+ unduplicated pupils
• Governor proposes to expand this to schools serving 55%+ unduplicated pupils
• $434 million expansion cost would bring total appropriation to $4.4 billion
• No statutory COLA, no growth funding, so Tier II funding rates are declining

• Reminders:
• Funds must be expended by June 30 following fiscal year
• Schools annually must declare intent to operate ELO-P
• ELO-P funds may be spent on forthcoming Attendance Recovery option

39

Expansion of "Tier I" Expanded Learning (ELO-P)

"Tier I" Schools Serving
55%+ Unduplicated Pupils

• Shall offer access to all K-6 pupils, provide 
access to all pupils whose parent/guardian 
requests

• Fixed $2,750 per PY K-6 ADA x UPP
• Minimum $50,000 grant

"Tier II" Schools Serving
<55% Unduplicated Pupils

• Shall offer access to all unduplicated K-6 
pupils, provide access to unduplicated 
pupils whose parent/guardian requests

• Funding based on prior-year K-6 ADA x UPP
• Rate has declined sharply:

o $2,054 in 2022-23
o $1,803 in 2023-24
o $1,580 in 2024-25 (preliminary)
o Unused funds will be reallocated to 

boost rates
• Minimum $50,000 grant

40

39

40



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 21

Charter School Facilities Grant Program

• Reimburses lease/rent costs for charter schools serving 55%+ low-income students
• Funds lesser of $1,470/ADA or 75 percent of eligible costs
• Two components:  (1) Rent/lease, (2) “other” costs 

• For 2025-26 Governor proposes:
• $13.6 million “current service level” augmentation
• $1.8 million statutory 2.43% COLA
• Total funding $184 million

• CSDC estimates Governor's proposal:
• Would fund only rent/lease component, perhaps with minor deficit
• Would provide zero funding for "other" costs

41

New Round of Charter Facilities Incentive Grants

• CSFA won third round of federal Charter Facilities Incentive Grants
• Revised program regulations pending review
• Facilities grant program, provides up to:

o $1,500/student (max $250K/year) for rent/lease, or
o $2,000/student (max $500K/year) for purchase/construction

• CSFA currently estimates application window will open in October
• Competitive application, grants preference based on:

o Proportion of low-income students served
o Smarter-Balanced test scores
o Proportion of SPED, homeless, foster youth served
o Proximity to non-charter schools in "differentiated assistance" status

42

41

42



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 22

Proposition 2 State Facilities Bond Funding

• Voters approved Prop 2 in November, includes $600 million set-aside for charters
• Funds allocated via state's uber-complex School Facilities Program (SFP)
• Jointly administered by Office of Public School Construction and California School 

Finance Authority (OPSC and CSFA)
• Regional set-asides, with competitive preference granted for:
 Local district is overcrowded
 Proportion of low-income students
 Reconstructing a pre-existing, district-owned facility
 Not-for-profit status

• OPSC/CSFA presented at CSDC conference and will offer webinars soon
• Application window opens May 4th, closes August 31st
• Check OPSC website and CSFA website for details

43

Reading Literacy & Math Coaches

• Governor proposes $500 million, one-time for 2025-26
o Doubles $250 million/year in 2022 and 2023 budgets for reading coaches

• Few details available now
• CSDC presumes it will be similar to the current program

o Add math coaches

44

43

44



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 23

Grades K-2 Literacy Screenings

• Law mandates administering literacy screenings for grades K-2 in 2025-26
o Must select, implement one of four state-approved screening instruments

• State appropriated $25 million this year for staff training
o $21.16/student enrolled in K-2 (excluding TK)

• Governor proposes adding $40 million, one-time funding in 2025-26
o To support instruments, materials, and staff training
o CSDC estimates funding at $33.85/student

45

Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant (LREBG)

• State apportioned $7.9 billion for LREBG in 2022
• Then cut it by $1.1 billion, in 2023, retroactively, CDE clawed-back funds
• Governor's Budget proposes $379 million for first of three restoration payments
• Funds came with extensive strings attached
• 2024 legislation added needs assessment and additional LCAP content

o If spending either "old" or "new" LREBG funding
o Stems from settlement of lawsuit over learning loss during Pandemic

• Funded on a "unit" basis:
o Unit = ADA multiplied by unduplicated pupil percentage (UPP)
o CSDC estimates 2025-26 unit rate around $114/unit

46

45

46



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 24

Career-Technical Education Master Plan

• Governor's 2023 executive order called for new CTE Master Plan
• Planning work underway, outline fuzzy but starting to emerge

• Governor's Budget proposes:
o Allowing K-12 schools to spend Student Support & PD Grant on CTE
o $100 million, one-time to CCC System to launch "Credit for Prior Learning" and 

"Career Passport" initiatives
o $9 million for state forecasting of needed skills, coordination
o "Streamline applications for TK-12 career technical education categorical 

programs into a single consolidated application and include dual enrollment and 
pathway programs"

47

Prop 28 Arts & Music in Schools Funding

• Dedicates 1 percent of Proposition 98 Guarantee funding for arts education
• Governor's Budget estimates nearly 15% increase in funding for 2025-26
• Actual rate will lock in May, will vary 

• CSDC's current funding estimates:
• 2024-25:  $107/student, plus $74/low-income student
• 2025-26:  $122/student, plus $84/low-income student, IF current Proposition 98 

Funding Guarantee estimates hold

48

47

48



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 25

Prop 28 Arts & and Music in Schools Funding

• Reminders:
• Must spend to supplement, not supplant existing funding for arts education
• Must allocate funding to each school site based on its data
• School must create an expenditure plan
• LEAs with 500+ pupils must spend 80%+ to employ arts education staff

• Remaining spent on training, supplies and materials, and arts education partnership 
programs

• CDE may waive these requirements upon request of school principal, “for good 
cause shown”

• 1% cap on administrative expenses
• Funds available for up to three years, unspent funds revert to CDE
• Post annual board-approved report on website detailing how funds were spent, submit 

to CDE
• Compliance subject to audit (audit guidelines under development, likely adopted by 

March)
• See Audit Guide regulations

49

Teacher Prep & Professional Development

• Governor proposes continued spending on teacher pipeline:
• $150 million, one-time for Teacher Recruitment Incentive Grant
• $100 million, one-time for additional National Board Certification support
• Details pending release of "trailer" bill

50

49

50



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 26

Special Education

• COLA increases statewide "AB 602" target rate to $918

• No other major new SPED proposals from Governor thus far . . .

51

State-Mandated Cost Block Grant

• COLA would increase per-ADA rates slightly for charter schools in 2025-26:
• Grades K-8:   $20.55
• Grades 9-12: $57.11

52

51

52



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 27

Universal Free Meals

• Governor proposes continued full implementation, plus:
o $106 million augmentation, ongoing to “fully fund” universal school meals 

program in 2025-26
o Plus statutory COLA
o Plus $150 million, one-time Kitchen Infrastructure Grant
 Details pending

53

Cost Pressures: CalSTRS

54

• CalSTRS board opted to hold employer rate flat for 2024-25

• CalSTRS can increase/decrease employer rate by up to 1 percent/year
• Not to exceed 20.25 percent cap 
• Rates shown in blue italics are reflect CSDC's expectation
• CSDC anticipates CalSTRS will opt to hold at 19.1% for 2025-26 when it decides in May

CalSTRS Employer Contribution Rates
2028-292027-282026-272025-262024-252023-242022-232021-22Year

19.1%19.1%19.1%19.1%19.1%19.1%16.92%16.15%Rate

53

54



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 28

Cost Pressures: CalPERS

• Estimated CalPERS employer rate increases moderated slightly

• Rates shown in blue italics are CalPERS' latest estimates
• CalPERS will determine actual 2025-26 rate in May

CalPERS Employer Contribution Rates
2029-302028-292027-282026-272025-262024-252023-242022-23Year

27.8%28.2%28.5%27.5%27.4%27.05%26.68%26.68%Rate

55

Cost Pressures:  Minimum Wage

• Minimum wage to continue to increase notwithstanding defeat of Proposition 32

CSDC estimates in italics, subject to change. Local minimum wage may be higher.

202820272026202520242023
$ 17.70$ 17.30$ 16.90$ 16.50$ 16.00$ 15.50CA State Minimum Wage

Minimum Overtime Exemption Salaries
$ 1,416$ 1,384$ 1,352$ 1,320$ 1,280$ 1,240Weekly
$ 6,136$ 5,997$ 5,859$ 5,720$ 5,547$ 5,373Monthly
$ 61,360$ 59,973$ 58,586$ 57,200$ 55,466$ 53,73310-Month
$ 73,631$ 71,967$ 70,303$ 68,639$ 66,559$ 64,480Annual

56

55

56



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 29

Mid-Year Audit Guide Amendments

• State Controller is preparing proposed amendments to Audit Guide regulations
• Advisory group meets behind closed doors to discuss potential changes
• Changes can be high stakes if they are punitive and retroactive

• Current-year (2024-25) Audit Guide changes under discussion:
• Kindergarten continuance form requirement if held in regular K for second year
• Continued compliance review of Prop 28 Arts & Music in Schools expenditures
• Extending auditing of early/middle college compliance to programs 
• Compliance with mid-year LCAP update mandate
• ELO-P staff/volunteer health screening and fingerprint clearance compliance
• ELO-P vendor contracts call for notifications of health/safety issues, required 

vendors to ask parents re: health (e.g., health/asthma) issues
• Submitted In-Person Instruction grant expenditure report timely
• Independent study hourly/fractional documentation, tweaks to short/long-term

57

Mid-Year Audit Guide Amendment Proposals

• For next year (2025-26), CDE proposing:
• Auditing of charter compliance with independent study "things of value" statute:
 Initial draft would impose equivalent spending mandate vis-a-vis classroom-

based programs
• School safety plan mandate compliance, new content
• Compliance with new Attendance Recovery laws

• State Controller proposing adding several controversial recommendations from charter 
auditing task force:

• Auditor independence, sweeping "related party" language, etc.
• Arguably requires legislation

58

57

58



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 30

Federal Charter Implementation/Expansion Grants

• CDE won additional federal charter school implementation and expansion grant 
funding in 2024

• $93 million, 5-year cycle
• Grants available for both

o New and replicating schools:  $800 thousand to $1.9 million, and
o Expanding existing schools:  $500 thousand to $1.1 million

• CDE staff estimate application window may open as soon as late March, funds could 
be awarded in July, subject to USDOE approval

59

Social Security Fairness Act

• New law eliminates two potential penalties affecting many CalSTRS retirees:
o Windfall Elimination Provision
o Government Pension Offset

• Both of the above used to substantially reduce some CalSTRS retirees' benefits
• Complex implementation issues, workload will take time to sort out
• Make sure Social Security Administration has your current address if potentially 

impacted

• Certificated staff paying into CalSTRS will not have to start paying FICA tax
o CSDC is concerned that this change will increase pressure for Congress to 

mandate it

60

59

60



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 31

Immigration Reminders

• Trump threats to implement mass deportations raising concern

• Plyler v. Doe remains settled case law
o May not discriminate in school admissions, etc., on basis of 

citizenship/immigration status

• Current California law sharply limits school cooperation with immigration 
enforcement
o All schools implement have board policies aligning with these state laws
o CSDC's Sample Board Policies available
o Attorney General issued updated guidance

61

Wrap Up and Next Steps

61

62



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 32

CSDC’s Budget Observations

• Governor's Budget is a huge improvement over last year
• Many key details unknown pending release of "trailer" legislation proposal later this 

month 
• Newsom Administration clearly is nervous about downside potential
• Repeated cautions about downside risks, potential need for significant adjustments 

in May Revise to budget proposal

63

CSDC’s Budget Development Suggestions

• Governor’s estimates are reasonable
• Not materially different from Legislative Analyst's independent estimates
• Both Governor and Legislative Analyst caution that a lot could change
• Volatile economic and state revenue picture requires you to plan for broad range of 

possibilities
• As per usual, CSDC suggests:

o Running budget projections with and without major proposed augmentations
o Ensure cash positions can withstand deferrals
o Monitor economic conditions closely
o Monitor CSDC's publications, May Update Webinar

• Ensure staff understand charter schools typically receive less funding than districts

64

63

64



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 33

CSDC's "Crystal Ball" Budgeting Suggestions

More Squishy

• $1.8 billion Student Support & PD 
Block Grant

• ELO-P "Tier I" expansion
• $500 million Reading Literacy grants
• Large increase in Arts & Music in 

Schools funding rate
• $150 million Kitchen Infrastructure
• Other smaller augmentations

More Solid

• Full 2.43% COLA for LCFF, other 
programs

• Full implementation of Universal TK
• Continued implementation of ELO-P
• Continued Universal Meals
• Additional $374 million Learning 

Recovery Block Grant funding

65

Q&A

Please ask your questions in the Q&A 
feature!

66

65

66



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 34

What to expect

Next Session: May Revise– May 20 at 9:30AM

67

Advocacy 301

Upcoming Trainings

February 13, 2025
Live Webinar • 10:00-11:00AM

2025 CBO Training 

January 21-May 6, 2025
WAITLIST

2025 CSDC Conference

October 6-8  •  Palm Springs, CA
Save the Date!

.
A

www.chartercenter.org/trainings
68

67

68



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 35

Thank You

csdc@chartercenter.org

http://www.chartercenter.org/bpl-gov

70

69

70



© 2024-25 Charter Schools Development Center 36

Join the Padlet for this Series

1. Share with us in the Padlet:
o Top Concerns
o Celebrations
o Resource Requests
o Top Questions (post-webinar)

2. Upvote the posts you especially resonate with
3. Keep engaged with us

Chat , Q&A feature, 
Email the CSDC Help Desk at 
csdc@chartercenter.org  

Access the Padlet:
https://padlet.com/csdc1/bpl25

Scan the QR Code

71

71


	Board Agenda 5_13_25.pdf
	Board Meeting Minutes 3_11_25
	Fiscal Innovations Academy Mail - Innovations - 2024-25 Interim Audit
	Innovations Fiscal Policies Feb28 2023 Final
	Innovations Fiscal Policies May 2025 Proposed
	Reading Screener Selection and Adoption
	DECLARATION OF NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS25-26
	Kiran_Resume
	Kiran Simma 
	Kiran Simma 
	Summary 
	Experience 
	AT&T  / Software Specialist Test Engineer 

	Education 
	 

	LCAP Comparison Summary and Table
	LCAP Summary of Comparison 2024 and 2025.pdf
	Innovations_Academy_LCAP_Comparison_2024_vs_2025

	Draft LCAP for Feedback2025
	LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
	Budget Overview for the 2025-26 School Year
	Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2025-26 School Year

	Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2024-25

	Local Control and Accountability Plan
	Plan Summary [2025-26]
	General Information
	Reflections: Annual Performance
	Reflections: Technical Assistance
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Engaging Educational Partners
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2024-25]
	Actions

	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2025-26]
	Required Descriptions
	LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions
	Limited Actions
	Additional Concentration Grant Funding


	2025-26 Total Expenditures Table
	2025-26 Contributing Actions Table
	2024-25 Annual Update Table
	2024-25 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	2024-25 LCFF Carryover Table

	Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions
	Introduction and Instructions
	Plan Summary
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	General Information
	Reflections: Annual Performance
	Reflections: Technical Assistance
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness



	Engaging Educational Partners
	Purpose
	Requirements
	Requirements
	Instructions

	Goals and Actions
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	Focus Goal(s)
	Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding
	Broad Goal
	Maintenance of Progress Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results:
	Goal Analysis:
	Actions:
	Required Actions
	For English Learners and Long-Term English Learners
	For Technical Assistance
	For Lowest Performing Dashboard Indicators
	For LEAs With Unexpended LREBG Funds



	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Purpose
	Statutory Requirements
	LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions
	For School Districts Only

	Requirements and Instructions

	Action Tables
	Total Planned Expenditures Table
	Contributing Actions Table
	Annual Update Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table
	Calculations in the Action Tables
	Contributing Actions Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table





	CharterSchoolConferenceInfoFYI



